

Request for Proposals (RFP) #2023-22

Incarcerated Individual Parenting Program

Issue Date: December 19, 2023

Proposal Due Date: February 2, 2024 by 3:00 P.M.

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

- 1. Read the entire RFP document. Note the key issues such as: critical dates, qualifying and mandatory requirements, services required, and proposal packaging requirements.
- 2. The services are to be provided in eight facilities identified in Section V. The facilities are located in the Green Haven, Sullivan and New York City Hubs. One bid will be received to include 3 Hubs (Green Haven, Sullivan and New York City) for Incarcerated Individual Parenting. NOTE: The Hubs have changed since the last RFP.
- **3.** Bidders are permitted to communicate with the designated contacts ONLY. Note the name, address, phone numbers and email of the designated contacts. (see Section II Designated Contact).
- **4.** Any amendments, clarifications, responses to questions, and updates to this RFP will be posted on the NYS Contract Reporter website (http://www.nyscr.ny.gov/) and the DOCCS website (https://doccs.ny.gov/procurement-opportunities)
- **5.** It is the responsibility of the bidder to address all amendments, clarifications or updates pertaining to this RFP. All applicable amendment information must be incorporated in the bidder's proposal.
- **6.** Take advantage of the Questions and Answers period. All questions must be submitted in writing to the designated email address by the date and time specified in Section III Key Events/Dates.
- 7. Review the RFP document and your proposal. Make sure all requirements are addressed and all submission copies are identical and complete.
- **8.** Complete and submit with your proposals all required forms. All required forms are either included or links are provided for the latest revised documents available online.
- **9.** Package your proposals as instructed in Section XII Proposal Submission. Ensure your proposal conforms to the packaging requirements. Proposals not packaged accordingly may be deemed non-responsive.
- 10. Submit your proposal so that it is received by the designated due date and time (see Section III Key Events/Dates). DOCCS may not consider for award proposals received after the due date and time indicated.

Glossary of Terms

Awardee/Successful Bidder	Entity selected to be awarded a tentative contract.
Bid or Offer or Proposal	The formal written response to this document.
	Any person, partnership, firm, corporation, or other
Bidder or Offeror or Proposer	authorized entity submitting a proposal pursuant to this
	solicitation.
CCW	Children Center Workers
Commissioner	Commissioner of the Department of Corrections and
	Community Supervision or duly authorized representative
Contractor	The successful bidder awarded a contract as a result of this
DOCCS	Department of Corrections and Community Supervision
EST	Eastern Standard Time
Facility	Correctional Facility
Hub	A group of correctional facilities within the same geographic region.
Incarcerated Individual	Convicted felon that is incarcerated
Request for Proposals (RFP)	This solicitation document.
Vendor	Any individual or entity doing business with New York State.

Table of Contents

NOtio	ce to Bladers	∠
Glos	sary of Terms	2
l.	Overview	5
II.	Designated Contacts	5
III.	Key Events/Dates	6
IV.	Minimum Bidder Qualifications	6
٧.	Scope of Services	7
VI.	Requirements	12
VII.	Administrative Information	19
	A. Method of Award	19
	B. Price	19
	C. Term of Contract	19
	D. Method of Payment.	19
	E. Price Adjustment (Escalation/De-escalation)	20
VIII.	Contract Clauses	21
	A. Freedom of Information Law/Trade Secrets.	21
	B. Conflict of Interest	21
	C. Subcontractors	21
	D. Debriefing	22
	E. Termination.	22
	F. Ethics Compliance.	23
	G. Indemnification	23
	H. New York State Vendor File Registration	23
IX.	Legal Required Forms	24
Χ.	Procurement Rights	34
XI.	Proposal Content	36
	A. Mandatory Requirements	36
	B. Technical Proposal	37
	C. Diversity Practice Questionnaire	40
	D. Cost Proposal	40

XII.	Proposal Submission	40
	A. RFP Questions and Clarifications	40
	B. Proposal Packaging and Submission	41
	C. Proposal Due Date	42
XIII.	Proposal Evaluation Criteria and Selection Process	42
	A. Proposal Evaluation and Scoring	42
	B. Final Composite Score	43
	C. Notification of Award	43

Attachment A – Appendix A, Standard Clauses for New York State Contracts

Attachment B – Application Cover Sheet

Attachment C – Cost Proposal Form

Attachment D – Bid Declination Form

Attachment E – Legal Required Forms

Attachment F - M/WBE Requirements and Forms

Attachment G - Diversity Practices Questionnaire

Attachment H – Bid Submission Checklist

Attachment I - DOCCS Directives

- #2216-Fingerprinting/Criminal History Inquiry-New Employees & Contractors
- #4750 Volunteer Services Program
- #4900 Security in the Gate Area
- #4027 Sexual Victimization Prevention & Response
- #4936 Search of DOCCS Employees
- Orientation Program for Per Diem and Non-Departmental Employees

Attachment J - New York State DOCCS Facilities and Regional Map

NYS DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND COMMUNITY SUPERVISION **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS #2023-22** INCARCERATED INDIVIDUAL PARENTING

L **OVERVIEW**

The Department of Corrections and Community Supervision (hereafter "the Department" or "DOCCS") seeks proposals from organizations for the development and implementation of a program to provide educational and therapeutic support to incarcerated individuals regarding effective parenting training for incarcerated individuals, enhancing marital and family relationships, individual and family counseling and staffing of children's visiting centers. The services are to be provided in eight facilities identified in Section V (see attached map). The facilities are located in the Green Haven, Sullivan and NYC Hubs. One bid will be received to include 3 Hubs (Green Haven, Sullivan and NYC) for Incarcerated Individual Parenting. NOTE: The Hubs have changed since the last RFP.

Incarceration of an individual can seriously undermine the stability of a family in a variety of ways. An incarcerated individual may experience guilt as a result of the impact of his/her actions on the family and sense a loss of identity within the family. The family may face emotional turmoil, feelings of separation, abandonment, and economic hardship. The remaining parent often must assume the responsibilities of both parents and may experience the added burden of dealing with the children's feelings of confusion. anger, separation, and loss.

The goal of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to procure a comprehensive Incarcerated Individual Parenting Program for eligible incarcerated fathers, designed to mitigate the effects of the incarcerated individuals' incarceration on their families. The program will address the issues and challenges experienced by both incarcerated individuals and their families. The goal will be to assist incarcerated individuals to maintain bonds with their families and improve the outcomes for both the incarcerated individuals and their families upon the incarcerated individuals' eventual return to the communities.

The Department realizes that most incarcerated individuals eventually return to their families and communities and is therefore invested in the improvement of parent-child bonds and strengthening incarcerated individuals' parenting skills. By recognizing the importance of services designed specifically for incarcerated parents and their families, DOCCS is providing an opportunity to assist with family connectivity.

II. **DESIGNATED CONTACTS**

All inquiries concerning this RFP will be addressed to the following Designated Contacts:

PRIMARY CONTACT

ALTERNATE CONTACT Frank Arpey Ronald Brown

NYS Department of Corrections and Community NYS Department of Corrections and Community Supervision

Division of Support Operations/Contract Procurement Unit 550 Broadway Menands, New York 12204 Voice: 1-518-486-9008

Email: Frank.Arpey@doccs.ny.gov

Supervision Division of Support Operations/Contract Procurement Unit

550 Broadway Menands, New York 12204 Voice: 1-518-486-5304

Email: Ronald.Brown@doccs.ny.gov

Contacting anyone other than the designated contacts may result in rejection of bid. See details in Section IX.A.1 - Procurement Lobbying Act.

All questions and inquiries must be submitted in writing via email, citing the particular proposal section and paragraph number, to the Contract Procurement Unit. Please reference "RFP 2023-22" on the subject line of your email.

Bidders are cautioned to read this document thoroughly to become familiar with all aspects of the bid. Prospective Bidders should note that all clarifications and exceptions including those relating to the terms and conditions of the contract are to be resolved prior to the submission of a bid.

Answers to all questions of a substantive nature will be posted in the form of a formal addendum at the following websites: DOCCS (https://doccs.ny.gov/procurement-opportunities) and NYS Contract Reporter https://doccs.ny.gov/procurement-opportunities) and NYS Contract Reporter https://www.nyscr.ny.gov/. Any questions received after the due date and time (see Section III - *Key Events/Dates*) may not be addressed. The addendum will become part of the ensuing contract.

Bidders entering into a contract with the State are expected to comply with all the terms and conditions contained herein.

III. KEY EVENTS/DATES

The table below outlines the schedule for important action dates. If the State finds it necessary to change any of these dates, notification will be accomplished through an addendum to this RFP.

<u>Event</u>	<u>Date</u>
Request for Proposals (RFP) Issued	December 19, 2023
Written Bidders Questions Deadline	December 29, 2023 by 3:00 PM EST
DOCCS Issues Responses to Questions (estimated)	January 12, 2024
Proposals Due to DOCCS	February 2, 2024, by 3:00 PM EST
Successful Bidder Selection (estimated)	February 16, 2024
Contract Start Date	April 1, 2024

NOTE: This is a tentative timetable, which may ONLY be modified to address the State's needs.

IV. MINIMUM BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS

Bidders are advised that the State's intent is to ensure that only qualified and reliable contractors enter into a contract to perform the work as defined in this document.

A. <u>Cover Letter</u> - The cover letter must confirm that the Bidder understands all of the terms and conditions contained in this RFP and will comply with all the provisions of this RFP. Further, should the contract be awarded to your company, you would be prepared to begin services on April 1, 2024, or upon approval by OSC (whichever date is later), as indicated in Section III - Key Events/Dates. The cover letter must include the full contact information of the person(s) DOCCS shall contact regarding the bid and must also include the name(s) of principal(s) of the company responsible for this contract, their function, title, and number of years of service with company. A Bidder Representative authorized to make contractual obligations must sign the cover letter. The letter must also state whether or not subcontractors will be used, and the name, address, and intended role of each proposed subcontractor (see Section VIII-C - Subcontractors).

- B. <u>Pre-Requisites</u> The State considers the following qualifications to be pre-requisites in order to be considered as a qualified Bidder for purposes of this solicitation. Any bidder who cannot provide evidence of meeting these requirements will be considered non-responsive and that bidder's proposal will be immediately rejected, prior to the scoring process.
 - Proposer must have a minimum of five (5) years' experience operating incarcerated individual parenting and children's service programs **or**
 - Related programs for convicted felons; or
 - Community based parenting programs as well as qualifications for providing such services;
 and
 - The bidder will be expected to have the financial stability and organizational capacity, as well as the legal authority and integrity to enter into a contract with New York State.

Failure to meet any of the above qualifications in whole or in part may result in a non-responsive bid determination and rejection of the bid.

V. <u>SCOPE OF SERVICES</u>

This program aims to enhance the parent-child relationship during and after incarceration through parenting and child development education, visitation, support groups and counseling. In carcerated individuals with long-term sentences need support to sustain connections with their children, while incarcerated individuals with short-term sentences need skills for maintaining an active parenting role and communicating with their children's caregiver to ease their transition into the family unit once released.

NOTE: HUBS FOR THESE FACILITIES HAVE CHANGED SINCE LAST RFP

<u>Location of Services</u> - The Incarcerated Individual Parenting Program, including the children's visiting centers and family counseling components, must be implemented in eight New York State correctional facilities, as listed below. A map showing the facilities is included as Attachment J. **One contract will be awarded to service three (3) Hubs: Green Haven Hub, Sullivan Hub and New York City Hub.**

Green Haven Hub:

Green Haven Correctional Facility 594 Route 216 Stormville, NY 12582

Wallkill Correctional Facility 50 McKenderick Road Wallkill, NY 12589 Fishkill Correctional Facility 18 Strack Drive Beacon, NY 12508 Shawangunk Correctional Facility 200 Quick Road Wallkill, NY 12589

Sullivan Hub:

Eastern NY Correctional Facility Institution Road Napanoch, NY 12458 Otisville Correctional Facility 57 Sanitorium Road Otisville, NY 10963

Woodbourne Correctional Facility 99 Prison Road Woodbourne, NY 12788

New York City Hub:

Sing Sing Correctional Facility 354 Hunter Street Ossining, NY 10553

Children's Center at the following five facilities: NOTE: HUBS HAVE CHANGED SINCE LAST RFP

Fishkill Correctional Facility (Green Haven Hub) Shawangunk Correctional Facility (Green Haven Hub) Sing Sing Correctional Facility (New York City Hub) Wallkill Correctional Facility (Green Haven Hub) Woodbourne Correctional Facility (Sullivan Hub)

No Children's Center at the following three facilities:

Eastern NY Correctional Facility (Sullivan Hub)
Green Haven Correctional Facility (Green Haven Hub)
Otisville Correctional Facility (Sullivan Hub)

<u>Program Goals</u> - The objective of the contract resulting from this RFP is for participating incarcerated individuals to achieve improved parenting skills and family relationships. Proposals must address how the Bidder will provide services consistent with the following key program components that will support achievement of the program goals:

- Incarcerated individual parenting education and training
- Enhancing marriage and family relationships
- Individual and family counseling
- Children's visiting centers
- Development and provision of training for designated DOCCS staff aimed at facilitating the aforementioned goals.

<u>Family Support Services and Training</u> - The selected provider will deliver the family support services and staff training described in this RFP, with the overall goal of reducing the effects of incarceration on the families and helping incarcerated individuals strengthen family bonds to best facilitate a successful return to family and community.

Each proposal must include the following:

- program plan with a statement of program philosophy
- description of the overall program design and a description of program components consistent with the Department's desired program goals
- outline of the curriculum and the proposed program schedule that include details regarding any AV support/educational materials
- list of job titles and functions
- job descriptions
- required staff qualifications
- staff assignments and work schedules
- space requirements
- if outside consultants will be used and, if so, details including availability of résumés

<u>Attendance Policy</u> - Bidders must describe in detail the program they propose to implement using the guidelines provided. Bidders will describe the proposed attendance policy that will apply to the incarcerated individuals participating in the program.

Program Standards - Bidders will propose a program that conforms generally to the following standards:

- The group is expected to be facilitated by a qualified contract staff person with approximately 15-20 incarcerated individuals who are referred to the program by facility program services staff.
- At each facility, the group shall meet on a weekly basis on designated days and times. Completion of the primary parenting component will require 32-48 hours. (For example: A 48-hour curriculum delivered 2 hours/2 days per week will meet for a three-month period.)
- Enhancing intimate partner and family relationships component will require 24 classroom hours.
- A minimum of two program cycles must be held in a one year period at each facility.
- Focus of the groups shall be parenting, family relationships or other curriculum that supports the overall program goals.

Be aware that incarcerated individuals' educational levels may impact their ability to comprehend course materials. Many incarcerated individuals have low educational achievement levels and parenting materials designed for the general public may be too difficult to understand. Attempts must be made to tailor content of the session to meet the needs of the group members.

The Contractor will be expected to conduct a screening evaluation to help identify the specific need areas prevalent in the group.

<u>Delivery Modes</u> - The primary service delivery mode to be used is a group format, with individual sessions scheduled when a need is indicated. The group sessions will use a multi-mode approach including, but not limited to, the modes listed below. The Bidder is encouraged to suggest other ideas as well. Suggested modes include the following:

- Didactic presentation
- Guest speakers
- Group discussion of incarcerated individual-suggested topics
- Role plays
- Audio Visual

<u>Evidence-based Practices</u> - These sessions are expected to be supplemented with readings and homework assignments or other appropriate independent tasks.

The preferred program will utilize evidence-based practices including, but not limited to the following:

- pre- and post-test evaluations that assess baseline knowledge
- assessment of behavior and attitudes at the commencement of the service
- re-assessment of behavior and attitudes at conclusion of the service
- final evaluation to review or determine the impact of the program

The Bidder's proposal must fully describe the proposed pre- and post- assessment tool(s).

KEY PROGRAM COMPONENTS

<u>Incarcerated Individual Parenting Education and Training</u> – Note: The Hubs have changed since the last RFP was issued for these services.

The incarcerated individual parenting program will be delivered by the Contractor's staff who will provide the services within three (3) Hubs identified in section V (1. Green Haven Hub: Green Haven, Fishkill, Shawangunk and Wallkill. 2. Sullivan Hub: Eastern NY, Otisville, and Woodbourne correctional facilities. 3. New York City Hub: Sing Sing correctional facility.) Incarcerated individual parenting facilitators/instructors must collaborate with department staff regarding screening, monitoring, pre- and post-assessments and evaluation of services.

The following specific objectives have been identified for the Incarcerated Individual Parenting Education and Training component:

- To design and implement a curriculum for the teaching of parenting classes to incarcerated individuals;
- To provide incarcerated men with the child development knowledge and skills necessary to enhance their ability to parent effectively; and
- To provide incarcerated individuals with the skills to make healthy lifestyle choices and decisions that will be in the best interest of both the incarcerated individuals and their children.

Suggested topics for the group sessions include, but are not limited to, the topics listed below. Bidders are encouraged to identify other relevant topics.

- Child Development Stages
- Special Needs of Children
- Incarcerated Fathers' Issues
- Communication Skills
- Discipline and Corrective Behavior
- Dysfunctional Family Issues

Enhancing Marriage and Family Relationships - Enhancing marriage and family relationships will promote the development of and identify characteristics of healthy marital and family relationships.

Objectives should include the following:

- Addressing the effects of incarceration on relationships and family dynamics;
- Introducing educational materials that combine lessons promoting individual life skills, couple relationships, parenting, step-families and co-parenting skills;
- Encouraging awareness of negative cognitive and behavioral patterns and practicing skills that enhance individual and family well-being; and
- Identifying strengths and specific areas of challenge that require additional work and focus.

Suggested topics may include but are not limited to the following:

- Communication skills
- Identifying individual conflict styles
- Domestic violence
- Racial and cultural issues
- Ethics and morality
- Conflict resolution
- Re-entry/transitional planning
- Breaking the incarceration cycle

Individual and Family Counseling Services - The Family Counseling Services component will provide educational classes and seminars for selected married/committed participants of the Parenting Program and their spouses/partners. The purpose of the service is to grant couples the benefit of enhancing communication skills and improving family relationships.

The provider will be responsible for designing creative means to facilitate family counseling sessions that incorporate long distances and transportation issues. Additionally, program participants will receive group and individual counseling.

The Bidder will describe a detailed plan designed to achieve the goals of the family counseling component, including, but not limited to, the following:

- Conducting family needs assessments for participating family members, with the goal of identifying needs in order to provide community referrals for family members.
- Providing family counseling sessions for participants and their family members for the enhancement of communication skills and conflict resolution.
- Mitigating the negative psychological and emotional effects resulting from incarceration.
- Assisting with family re-entry by the creation of a family action plan that promotes supportive and beneficial relationships.

<u>Children's Centers</u> - The Children's Center consists of a visiting area within the regular prison visiting room that provides a supervised environment for fathers to interact with their children in a positive way. The Contractor will supply the children's centers with books, blocks, crayons and paper. The centers are currently furnished with child-size furniture.

The Children's Centers are expected to be open on weekend days and on the ten (10) recognized State holidays*, during the hours listed below, by facility:

Correctional Facility	Hours
Eastern NY	N/A
Fishkill	9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.
Green Haven	N/A
Otisville	N/A
Shawangunk	8:30 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.
Sing Sing	8:30 a.m. – 2:30 p.m.
Wallkill	8:30 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.
Woodbourne	8:30 a.m. – 2:15 p.m.

^{*} http://www.cs.ny.gov/attendance leave/2024 legal holidays.cfm

The Children's Centers must be staffed by the Contractor during these times. In add ition, the Contractor will be required to provide DOCCS-approved, job-specific training, including on-the-job training, to incarcerated individuals who have been approved by the Department to work in the Children's Centers as Children Center Workers (CCW). The CCWs will have met specified DOCCS criteria to qualify for this position. The CCWs will be supervised in the Children's Center by the Contractor in conjunction with DOCCS staff.

Bidders must describe in their proposal their training plans for incarcerated individuals who will work in the Children's Centers.

Services provided through the Children's Centers are designed to support the goal of improving or maintaining incarcerated individuals' relationships with their children. The following specific objectives have been identified for the Children's Centers:

- To provide a family friendly, engaging environment within the prison confines, by means of which quality time may be re-established and family bonds maintained.
- To allow for the integration of skills learned in the parenting education component to be practiced.
- To allow incarcerated individuals fathers time to address the needs of their children enhancing their capacity to nurture and socialize with their children.

<u>Training DOCCS Staff</u> - The Contractor will develop a comprehensive visitor experience training for DOCCS staff designed to be delivered to facility staff involved in visitor processing and intended to improve visitor/staff relations. All facilities included in contract will be focus for roll-out with DOCCS able to expand statewide. Training will include, but not be limited to the following:

- Training vignettes to include discussion questions/guide focusing on visiting
- Communication skills that help improve positive staff/family interactions.
- Understanding age-appropriate interactions and behavior expectations, and
- Cultural awareness related to children and families.

Bidders must submit the following with their proposals:

- Description of the proposed training curriculum to include videos, case scenarios and interactive exercises.
- Objectives and goals for the training,
- Proposed training methodology, to include video based and in person training
- Training topics proposed to supplement the topics listed above.

<u>Records and Reporting Requirements</u> - The Contractor will be required to maintain complete records concerning all areas of contract performance in accordance with Appendix A, Standard Clauses for New York State Contracts.

<u>Incarcerated Individual Parenting Services</u> Contractor will maintain case records for each program participant which will permit the reporting of program compliance data to the Department. The records will include, but not be limited to the following:

- individual assessments
- progress notes
- discharge summaries
- evaluations

Case records will be maintained in compliance with the Department's protocols. All records maintained by the Contractor will be made available to the Department.

Reporting Requirements - The contractor will be expected to provide reports to the Department as part of a mutual plan to monitor the delivery of services and the results of the program. Proposals will include the Bidder's plan to comply with the reporting standards, including at a minimum the following reports:

<u>Monthly Reports</u> - The Contractor must provide brief monthly reports to be developed with the Department after the contract is awarded. The pre- and post-assessment tool(s) results for the monthly reporting periods will be compared (by individual participant and/or in aggregate) to assess learning or behavior changes.

<u>Quarterly Reports</u> - The Contractor will provide quarterly reports to the Department in a format that is preapproved by the Department. The reports will include the following:

- A narrative summary identifying program accomplishments during the quarter, problems encountered, and action plans to address the problems, and
- Cumulative data reflecting year-to-date program information.

<u>Annual Reports</u> - Within 30 days of the end of each contract year, the Contractor will submit an annual report to the Department in a format to be pre-approved by the Department. This report will include the following:

- A full description and total number of programs/trainings delivered in the preceding 12 months
 of the contract term.
- A narrative and statistical report that fully describes program accomplishments, problems and resolutions, including recommendations for the next contract year.
- The total number of participants in the Incarcerated Individual Parenting Program.
- A detailed fiscal report outlining expenditures for the contract year.

<u>Program Monitoring and Improvement</u> - Proposals must detail the Bidder's plan to monitor its delivery of services and ensure timely response to problems encountered. The plan should detail how the Bidder proposes to use the results to improve services. A staff supervision and development plan should be included.

Please Note:

- Bidders must submit separate proposals for each Hub (Green Haven OR Sullivan) that they
 are bidding.
- All personnel hired by the contractor agree, by virtue of accepting his/her assignment, to abide by all the rules and regulations of DOCCS, and all relevant American Correctional Association Expected Practices.
- DOCCS reserves the right to complete background checks on all personnel employed by the contractor, and to reject the services of any individual considered unacceptable by DOCCS for security or other cause.
- DOCCS reserves the right to reject any contracted personnel whose credentials fail to meet minimum standards as established by the New York State Department of Civil Service.

VI. REQUIREMENTS

Bidders must demonstrate the following:

- That their background and experience qualify them to provide these services and that they have the fiscal integrity and organizational structure to support this undertaking.
- That they can provide the services described in Section V Scope of Services in a manner that best meets the needs and operations of DOCCS.

- They will comply with all standard and appropriate regulations governing contracts with the State
 of New York (see Attachment A). All provisions and requirements of Appendix A Standard Clauses
 for New York State Contracts (dated January 2014) will be incorporated into any contract resulting
 from this solicitation and will be binding upon the parties to such contract.
- That they have a willingness to work with DOCCS to achieve any goals established relative to subcontracting and purchasing supplies from Minority and Women-Owned Businesses (M/WBE) (see Attachment F – M/WBE Requirements and Forms).

M/WBE Compliance

CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR PARTICIPATION BY NEW YORK STATE CERTIFIED MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR MINORITY GROUP MEMBERS AND WOMEN

New York State Law: Pursuant to New York State Executive Law Article 15-A and Parts 140-145 of Title 5 of the New York Codes, Rules and Regulations DOCCS is required to promote opportunities for the maximum feasible participation of New York State-certified Minority and Women-owned Business Enterprises ("MWBEs") and the employment of minority group members and women in the performance of DOCCS contracts.

Business Participation Opportunities for MWBEs

For purposes of this solicitation, DOCCS hereby establishes an overall goal of 0 percent for MWBE participation, **0 percent** for New York State-certified Minority-owned Business Enterprise ("MBE") participation and **0 percent** for New York State-certified Women-owned Business Enterprise ("WBE") participation (based on the current availability of MBEs and WBEs). A contractor ("Contractor") on any contract resulting from this procurement ("Contract") must document its good faith efforts to provide meaningful participation by MWBEs as subcontractors and suppliers in the performance of the Contract. To that end, by submitting a response to this RFP, the bidder agrees that DOCCS may withhold payment pursuant to any Contract awarded as a result of this RFP pending receipt of the required MWBE documentation. The directory of MWBEs can be viewed at: https://ny.newnycontracts.com. For guidance on how DOCCS will evaluate a Contractor's "good faith efforts," refer to 5 NYCRR § 142.8.

The bidder understands that only sums paid to MWBEs for the performance of a commercially useful function, as that term is defined in 5 NYCRR § 140.1, may be applied towards the achievement of the applicable MWBE participation goal.

The portion of a contract with an MWBE serving as a broker that shall be deemed to represent the commercially useful function performed by the MWBE shall be 25 percent of the total value of the contract.

In accordance with 5 NYCRR § 142.13, the bidder further acknowledges that if it is found to have willfully and intentionally failed to comply with the MWBE participation goals set forth in a Contract resulting from this solicitation, such finding constitutes a breach of contract and DOCCS may withhold payment as liquidated damages.

Such liquidated damages shall be calculated as an amount equaling the difference between: (1) all sums identified for payment to MWBEs had the Contractor achieved the contractual MWBE goals; and (2) all sums actually paid to MWBEs for work performed or materials supplied under the Contract.

By submitting a bid or proposal, a bidder agrees to demonstrate its good faith efforts to achieve the applicable MWBE participation goals by submitting evidence thereof through the New York State Contract System ("NYSCS"), which can be viewed at https://ny.newnycontracts.com, provided, however, that a bidder may arrange to provide such evidence via a non-electronic method by contacting the designated contact(s) for this procurement. Additionally, a bidderwill be required to submit the following documents and information as evidence of compliance with the foregoing:

1. An MWBE Utilization Plan with their bid or proposal. Any modifications or changes to an accepted MWBE Utilization Plan after the Contract award and during the term of the Contract must be reported on a revised MWBE Utilization Plan and submitted to DOCCS for review and approval.

DOCCS will review the submitted MWBE Utilization Plan and advise the bidder of DOCCS acceptance or issue a notice of deficiency within 30 days of receipt.

2. If a notice of deficiency is issued, the bidder will be required to respond to the notice of deficiency within seven (7) business days of receipt by submitting to DOCCS, a written remedy in response to the notice of deficiency. If the written remedy that is submitted is not timely or is found by DOCCS to be inadequate, DOCCS shall notify the bidder and direct the bidder to submit, within five (5) business days, a request for a partial or total waiver of MWBE participation goals. Failure to file the waiver form in a timely manner may be grounds for disqualification of the bid or proposal.

DOCCS may disqualify a bidder as being non-responsive under the following circumstances:

- a. If a bidder fails to submit an MWBE Utilization Plan;
- b. If a bidder fails to submit a written remedy to a notice of deficiency;
- c. If a bidder fails to submit a request for waiver; or
- d. If DOCCS determines that the bidder has failed to document good faith efforts.

The successful bidder will be required to attempt to utilize, in good faith, any MBE or WBE identified within its MWBE Utilization Plan, during the performance of the Contract. Requests for a partial or total waiver of established goal requirements made subsequent to Contract Award may be made at any time during the term of the Contract to DOCCS, but must be made no later than prior to the submission of a request for final payment on the Contract.

The successful bidder will be required to submit a quarterly M/WBE Contractor Compliance & Subcontractor Payment Report to DOCCS, by the 10th day following each end of quarter as applicable over the term of the Contract documenting the progress made toward achievement of the MWBE goals of the Contract.

Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements

By submission of a bid or proposal in response to this solicitation, the bidder agrees with all of the terms and conditions of Appendix A – Standard Clauses for All New York State Contracts including Clause 12 - Equal Employment Opportunities for Minorities and Women. The bidder is required to ensure that it and any subcontractors awarded a subcontract for the construction, demolition, replacement, major repair, renovation, planning or design of real property and improvements thereon (the "Work"), except where the Work is for the beneficial use of the bidder, undertake or continue programs to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status. For these purposes, equal opportunity shall apply in the areas of recruitment, employment, job assignment, promotion, upgrading, demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, and rates of pay or other forms of compensation. This requirement does not apply to: (i) work, goods, or services unrelated to the Contract; or (ii) employment outside New York State.

The bidder will be required to submit a Minority and Women-owned Business Enterprise and Equal Employment Opportunity Policy Statement to DOCCS with its bid or proposal.

If awarded a Contract, bidder shall submit a Workforce Utilization Report and shall require each of its Subcontractors to submit a Workforce Utilization Report, in such format as shall be required by DOCCS on a quarterly basis as required during the term of the Contract.

Pursuant to Executive Order #162, contractors and subcontractors will also be required to report the gross wages paid to each of their employees for the work performed by such employees on the contract utilizing the Workforce Utilization Report on a quarterly basis.

Further, pursuant to Article 15 of the Executive Law (the "Human Rights Law"), all other State and Federal statutory and constitutional non-discrimination provisions, the Contractor and sub-contractors will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed (religion), color, sex, national origin, sexual orientation, military status, age, disability, predisposing genetic characteristic, marital status or domestic violence victim status, and shall also follow the requirements of the Human Rights Law with regard to non-discrimination on the basis of prior criminal conviction and prior arrest.

Please Note: Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements may result in a finding of non-responsiveness, non-responsibility and/or a breach of the Contract, leading to the withholding of funds,

suspension or termination of the Contract or such other actions or enforcement proceedings as allowed by the Contract.

Use of Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Enterprises in Contract Performance

Article 17-B of the New York State Executive Law provides for more meaningful participation in public procurement by certified Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Businesses ("SDVOBs"), thereby further integrating such businesses into New York State's economy. DOCCS recognizes the need to promote the employment of service-disabled veterans and to ensure that certified service-disabled veteran-owned businesses have opportunities for maximum feasible participation in the performance of DOCCS contracts.

In recognition of the service and sacrifices made by service-disabled veterans and in recognition of their economic activity in doing business in New York State, Bidders/Contractors are strongly encouraged and expected to consider SDVOBs in the fulfillment of the requirements of the Contract. Such participation may be as subcontractors or suppliers, as protégés, or in other partnering or supporting roles.

For purposes of this procurement, DOCCS conducted a comprehensive search and determined that the Contract does not offer sufficient opportunities to set specific goals for participation by SDVOBs as subcontractors, service providers, and suppliers to Contractor. Nevertheless, Bidder/Contractor is encouraged to make good faith efforts to promote and assist in the participation of SDVOBs on the Contract for the provision of services and materials. The directory of New York State Certified SDVOBs can be viewed at: https://ogs.ny.gov/veterans/

Bidder/Contractor is encouraged to contact the Office of General Services' (OGS) Division of Service-Disabled Veteran's Business Development at 518-474-2015 or VeteransDevelopment@ogs.ny.gov to discuss methods of maximizing participation by SDVOBs on the Contract.

Tax Law § 5-A

TAX LAW § 5-A (Amended April 26, 2006): Tax Law § 5-a, as amended on April 26, 2006, requires certain contractors who are awarded state contracts for commodities and/or services valued at more than \$100,000 (over the full term of the contract, excluding renewals) to certify to the Department of Taxation and Finance (DTF) they are registered to collect New York State (NYS) and local sales and compensating use taxes. The law applies to contracts where the total amount of the contractor's sales delivered into NYS exceed \$300,000 for the four quarterly periods immediately preceding the quarterly period when the certification is made; and with respect to any affiliates and subcontractors whose sales delivered into NYS also exceed \$300,000 in the same manner as noted above for the contractor.

This law imposes upon certain contractors the obligation to certify whether or not the contractor, its affiliates, and its subcontractors are required to register to collect state sales and compensating use tax. The contractors must certify to DTF that each affiliate and subcontractor exceeding the sales threshold is registered with DTF to collect such State and local sales and compensating use taxes. The law prohibits the Comptroller, or other approving agency, from approving a contract to a vendor who is not registered in accordance with the law.

There are two (2) Contractor certification forms, with instructions, required for this bid. Form ST-220-TD is to be submitted directly to DTF. Submission to DTF is a one-time occurrence. If you have already submitted this form to DTF for other bidding opportunities, you do not need to submit the form attached to this bid. If, however, any certification information changes, a new ST-220-TD must be filed with DTF. Form ST-220-CA must be completed and submitted with this bid. This form certifies to the procuring agency that the contractor has filed ST-220-TD with DTF in compliance with the law.

Bidders should complete and submitthe certification forms within two business days of request (if the forms are not submitted to DTF and/or and returned with bid). Bidders shall take the necessary steps to provide properly certified forms within a timely manner to ensure compliance with the law, as failure to do so may render a bidder non-responsive and non-responsible.

Vendors may call DTF at 1-800-698-2909 for any and all questions relating to Tax Law § 5-a and relating to a company's registration status with DTF. For additional information and frequently asked questions, please refer to the DTF website: http://www.tax.ny.gov.

Executive Order Number 26

Bidders should review this executive order prior to submitting proposals. You may access the executive order on the Governor's Web site: https://doccs.ny.gov/language-access-0.

In the event that translation/interpretation services are required for languages other than the Spanish language, the selected Contractor must agree to comply with any requests by DOCCS to provide documents or other assistance.

Public Officers Law

Contractors, consultants, vendors, and subcontractors may hire former State Agency or Authority employees. However, as a general rule and in accordance with New York Public Officers Law, former employees of the State Agency or Authority may neither appear nor practice before the State Agency or Authority, nor receive compensation for services rendered on a matter before the State Agency or Authority, for a period of two years following their separation from State Agency or Authority service. In addition, former

State Agency or Authority employees are subject to a "lifetime bar" from appearing before the State Agency or Authority or receiving compensation for services regarding any transaction in which they personally participated or which was under their active consideration during their tenure with the State Agency or Authority.

Ethics Requirements

The Contractor and its Subcontractors shall not engage any person who is, or has been at any time, in the employ of the State to perform services in violation of the provisions of the New York Public Officers Law, other laws applicable to the service of State employees, and the rules, regulations, opinions, guidelines or policies promulgated or issued by the New York State Joint Commission on Public Ethics, or its predecessors (collectively, the "Ethics Requirements"). The Contractor certifies that all of its employees and those of its Subcontractors who are former employees of the State and who are assigned to perform services under this Contract shall be assigned in accordance with all Ethics Requirements. During the Term, no person who is employed by the Contractor or its Subcontractors and who is disqualified from providing services under this Contract pursuant to any Ethics Requirements may share in any net revenues of the Contractor or its Subcontractors derived from this Contract. The Contractor shall identify and provide the State with notice of those employees of the Contractor and its Subcontractors who are former employees of the State that will be assigned to perform services under this Contract, and make sure that such employees comply with all applicable laws and prohibitions. The State may request that the Contractor provide it with whatever information the State deems appropriate about each such person's engagement, work cooperatively with the State to solicit advice from the New York State Joint Commission on Public Ethics, and, if deemed appropriate by the State, instruct any such person to seek the opinion of the New York State Joint Commission on Public Ethics. The State shall have the right to withdraw or withhold approval of any Subcontractor if utilizing such Subcontractor for any work performed hereunder would be in conflict with any of the Ethics Requirements. The State shall have the right to terminate this Contract at any time if any work performed hereunder is in conflict with any of the Ethics Requirements.

Vendor Responsibility

Contractor must agree to the terms and conditions as noted in Section IX – Legal Required Forms of the RFP concerning Vendor Responsibility.

Encouraging Use of New York State Subcontractors and Suppliers

Public procurements can drive and improve the State's economic engine through promotion of the use of New York businesses by its Contractors. The State, therefore, expects Bidders to provide maximum assistance to New York businesses in their use of the Contract. The potential participation by all kinds of New York businesses will deliver great value to the State and its taxpayers. Read and complete the attached Encouraging Use of New York State Businesses in Contract Performance located in Attachment F and return as part of your proposal.

Diversity Practices

DOCCS has determined, pursuant to New York State Executive Law Article 15-A, that the assessment of the diversity practices of respondents to this procurement is practical, feasible, and appropriate. Diversity practices are the efforts of contractors to include New York State-certified Minority and Women-owned Business Enterprises ("M/WBEs") in their business practices. Diversity practices may include past, present,

or future actions and policies, and include activities of contractor's contracts with private entities and governmental units other than the State of New York. Assessing the diversity practices of contractors enables contractors to engage in meaningful, capacity-building collaborations with M/WBEs.

Accordingly, respondents to this procurement shall be required to include as part of their proposal response to this procurement, as described in this RFP herein, the Diversity Practices Questionnaire as provided by the Division of Minority and Women's Business Development. Bidders must complete the questionnaire in Appendix G. The bidders' responses will be evaluated using a predetermined rating scale.

DOCCS Departmental Directives, Policies and Procedures

Contractor must agree to comply with all applicable New York State and DOCCS policies, procedures, regulations and directives throughout the term of the contract. Any individual Provider or staff hired by the Contractor to work in the facilities and approved by DOCCS, by virtue of accepting his/her assignment, must abide by all policies, rules and regulations of the Department.

Specifically, each individual Provider is to be made aware of and agree to comply with the following Department Directives, as currently written, or as revised. (see Attachment I).

- #2216-Fingerprinting/Criminal History Inquiry-New Employees and Contractors
- #4750 Volunteer Services Program
- #4900 Security in the Gate Area
- #4027 Sexual Victimization Prevention & Response
- #4936 Search of DOCCS Employees

Note: Directive #4900 is not included in this RFP, but will be made available to the approved Contractor. This Directive will have no bearing on bid price.

Each Provider shall participate in an Orientation Program at the facility in accordance with Training Manual 7.150 "Orientation Program for Per Diem and Non-Departmental Employees" (included in Attachment I).

DOCCS Policies implementing the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA)

In keeping with the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA), DOCCS has zero tolerance for sexual abuse or sexual harassment. DOCCS recognizes that incarcerated individuals and parolees have the right to be free from sexual abuse and sexual harassment.

The contractor agrees to participate in Orientation and periodic training: Contractor shall require all staff to participate in general PREA training ("Sexual Abuse Prevention and Response Introduction/Refresher") as well as specialized PREA training for medical professionals ("Incarcerated individuals Sexual Assault Post Exposure Protocol/PREA") prior to providing services under the Contract. Such training shall be conducted at the Correctional Facility and each Provider shall sign acknowledgement forms that they have completed and understand the training that has been provided. Periodic training, including review of annual written refresher information (DOCCS Training Bulletin #7) and refresher training at least every two years, is also mandatory.

The training will address the contractor's responsibilities under the Department's sexual abuse and sexual harassment prevention, detection, and response policies and procedures pursuant to PREA. This includes zero-tolerance for sexual abuse and sexual harassment; Providers duties to report allegations of sexual abuse, harassment or retaliation; the right of incarcerated individuals to be free from sexual abuse and harassment; how to avoid inappropriate relationships with incarcerated individuals; how to communicate effectively and professionally with incarcerated individuals including lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, intersex, and gender nonconforming incarcerated individuals; and other requirements.

Providers will read the most updated version of the Policy on the Prevention of Sexual Abuse of Incarcerated individuals and Training Bulletin 7 "PREA: Sexual Abuse Prevention and Response". All Providers must acknowledge receipt in writing that they will be held accountable for and act in accordance with the policy and the law.

Prohibition of Sexual Misconduct

Providers are prohibited from having any sexual contact or engaging in any sexual conduct with an incarcerated individual. In accordance with Penal Law section 130.05, it is a crime for any employee to engage in sexual conduct or sexual contact with an incarcerated individual. For purposes of Penal Law section 130.05, an employee also includes any person providing direct services to incarcerated individuals in a State correctional facility pursuant to a contractual arrangement with the Department or, in the case of a volunteer, a written agreement with the Department.

Any Provider who engages in sexual abuse shall be prohibited from contact with incarcerated individuals and shall be reported to law enforcement agencies, unless the activity was clearly not criminal, and to relevant licensing bodies. DOCCS shall take appropriate remedial measures, and shall consider whether to prohibit further contact with incarcerated individuals, in the case of any other violation of agency sexual abuse or sexual harassment policies by a Provider

Background Check Requirements

Background checks are required for all staff. As set forth below, Contractor shall be obligated to undertake and complete the following background checks for each Provider it proposes prior to the start of their engagement. DOCCS shall not be held liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor to perform background checks.

DOCCS shall perform a criminal background records check of each Provider under the contract in accordance with Directive #2216 "Fingerprinting/Criminal History Inquiry – New Employees, and Contractors."

1. Background Check

- a. When a Contractor proposes a Provider, any previously completed background check shall be furnished with such Provider's Master File at the time of proposal. If there was no previous background check, the Contractor shall perform a complete background check and provide the results thereof to the correctional facility. If a prior background check was completed more than six months, then the Contractor shall perform an updated background check and provide the results thereof to the correctional facility.
- b. The Contractor is responsible for completing background checks on each Provider prior to such Provider beginning work. The completion of a background check of a given Provider shall not provide a given Provider with clearance to secured areas. A Contractor is required to maintain records of background checks for the Contract term, to include them in the Candidate's Master File, and make such records available to the State when requested.
- c. At a minimum, the background check must include the following steps:
 - i. Undertaking a criminal history record check including a) a national criminal history check, and b) state and county criminal checks using the NYS Office of Court Administration (NYSOCA) and comparable searches of states where the person lived, worked or attended school during the past five years. In the alternative, a Contractor may elect to obtain the record of convictions from NYSOCA directly and from their equivalents from other states where the person lived, worked or attended school during the past 5 years;
 - ii. For positions in which the Candidate may be working directly or indirectly with minors, the elderly, or incapacitated individuals, determine if the Candidate is listed on the NYS Sex Offender Registry. The Authorized User is responsible for communicating these circumstances to the Contractor;
 - iii. Verification of previous employment for the past five years;
 - iv. Verification of educational background;
 - v. Verification of social security number and U.S. citizenship or legal resident status;
 - vi. Any other check requested by the correctional facility as necessary.

After the completion of the background check, the Contractor shall provide the results to the correctional facility. The correctional facility shall review the information and make a determination about the suitability of the Provider in accordance with the relevant statutory and contractual provisions.

2. Staff Removal

If a Contractor becomes aware that any Provider it has provided to work for a correctional facility becomes a potential unacceptable risk to the State, the Contractor shall immediately notify the correctional facility, and jointly decide if it is necessary to remove that Provider from the site. If a Provider is removed, the Contractor will propose a qualified substitute. A correctional facility may waive the removal of a Provider by providing a written waiver to the Contractor. Should a correctional facility find a Provider to be an unacceptable risk to the State, the correctional facility shall notify the Contractor and may request that the Contractor provide a replacement.

Master File - "Master File" shall mean an electronic file maintained by Contractor for each staff servicing the correctional facility. The Master File must include: qualifications, certifications, licenses, and background checks.

VII. ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

A. Method of Award

This is a service contract solicitation. Proposals will be reviewed and evaluated by a selection panel using a predetermined scoring method. The resulting scores of the selection panel will be documented and filed in the Procurement Record. Awards will be approved by the offices of the Attorney General and the State Comptroller, as required by law. Because this is a service contract solicitation, awards will be made on the basis of "best value from a responsive and responsible offeror," in accordance with the State Finance Law. "Best value" for the purpose of this solicitation shall mean "the bid obtaining the highest overall combined score based on the technical score, diversity practice score, plus the financial evaluation score.

B. Price

Bidders are required to submit pricing using <u>Attachment C - Cost Proposal Form</u>. Cost information must not appear in the technical proposal. All cost information must be completely independent as this is reviewed separately. The cost submittal must be enclosed in a <u>separate</u>, sealed envelope labeled "RFP 2023- 22 Cost Proposal."

Bidder's bid price shall be inclusive of all costs including travel, licenses, insurance, administrative, profit, all labor and equipment costs, reporting or other requirements, all overhead costs, and other ancillary costs. Details of service not explicitly stated in these specifications, but necessarily attendant thereto are deemed to be understood by the Bidder and included herein.

Totals for each budget component and the budget grand total must be clearly indicated. Travel costs, if applicable, may not exceed the NYS travel rates published by the Office of the State Comptroller at www.osc.state.ny.us/agencies/travel

Bidders should also adhere to the New York State Office of General Services Business Services Center Non-Employee Travel (NET) Guidelines. Non-NYS employees who provide services to and/or travel on behalf of New York State agencies may be entitled to the reimbursement of travel related expenses as allowed by the terms and conditions of agreements entered into with State agencies. This includes non-employees that work directly with an agency and those who work for a vendor who has a contract or purchase order agreement with a State agency. In many cases the NET reimbursement process follows the guidelines in the NYS Office of the State Comp troller's (OSC) Travel Manual for State employees traveling on State business. BSC NET Guidelines: https://bsc.ogs.ny.gov/non-employee-travel-net

C. Term of Contract

The contract resulting from this RFP will start on April 1, 2024 or upon OSC approval, whichever date is later, and continue for a term of five (5) years.

D. Method of Payment

Any payment made by DOCCS to the contract vendor will be made through direct payment upon submission of billing invoices. Compensating balances will not be employed. Contract vendor must provide complete and accurate billing invoices to DOCCS in order to receive payment. Billing invoices submitted to DOCCS on a standard voucher must contain all information and supporting documentation. The Contractor will need to submit billing invoices on a monthly basis. Specific invoicing schedules will be determined mutually between DOCCS and the Contractor after notice of contract award. The contractor is required to submit a budget modification detailing any programmatic or line item changes to the original contract budget to the DOCCS's Contract Manger. All programmatic changes to the contract budget must be pre-approved by DOCCS. Any budget modification that is greater than 5 percent will require a detailed justification. Failure to submit a valid budget modification will delay the processing of vouchers for payment.

Budget Modifications

Contractor agrees to adhere to this budget. Requests for budget modifications to reallocate funds among budget line items or among budget categories shall be requested in advance, in writing, with an explanation for the modification. If the modification is requested due to overspending, all budget lines should be reviewed, for overspending, and modifications to any budget lines must be estimated to the end of the contract period. Monthly budget modifications are not permitted and should not be submitted more than once quarterly. Invoices may not be submitted until the budget modification has been approved, in writing, by DOCCS.

Payment for invoices submitted by the Contractor shall only be rendered electronically unless payment by paper check is expressly authorized by the Commissioner, in the Commissioner's sole discretion, due to extenuating circumstances. Such electronic payment shall be made in accordance with ordinary State procedures and practices. The Contractor shall comply with the State Comptroller's procedures to authorize electronic payments. Authorization forms are available at the State Comptroller's website at http://www.sfs.ny.gov/index.php/vendors, by email at Helpdesk@sfs.ny.gov or telephone 518-457-7717.

Contractor acknowledges that it will not receive payment on any invoices submitted under this contract if it does not comply with the State Comptroller's electronic payment procedures, except where the Commissioner has expressly authorized payment by paper check as set forth above.

Please note that in conjunction with New York State's implementation of a new Statewide Financial System (SFS), the Office of the State Comptroller (OSC) requires all vendors doing business with New York State agencies to be a registered vendor within OSC's Vendor Management Unit. For contracts to be approved and executed by both DOCCS and OSC, a contractor must be enrolled in SFS. If the awardee does not already have a New York State Vendor ID, upon notice of contract award, the contractor must submit a completed OSC Substitute W-9 form to DOCCS. This information will allow DOCCS to initiate the vendor registration process. Once a vendor has received a NYS Vendor ID, they will be able to enroll in SFS. If the contractor is already a registered vendor and enrolled within SFS, the contractor shall provide their assigned NYS Vendor ID upon request.

Instructions regarding invoice submission will be provided to the vendor after notice of contract award.

E. Price Adjustment (Escalation/De-escalation)

Bidders should submit a proposal with the understanding that all rates shall be firm for the first year of the contract. When requested, 60 days prior to each anniversary for years two (2) through five (5) of the award, the Contractor or DOCCS may request a rate change (increase or decrease) based upon fluctuations in the latest published copy of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for All Urban Consumers, as published by the U S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Washington, D.C. 20212. (Specifically—Northeast Urban, Not Seasonally Adjusted, Services, Series ID: CUUR0100SAS). No adjustment shall exceed five (5) percent. The index is also available through the Internet at the US Bureau of Labor Statistics web site at www.bls.gov.

If during the time the Price Adjustment is requested, and the above series ID is discontinued or no longer published on the BLS website (www.bls.gov), the DOCCS will negotiate a mutually acceptable replacement index. Adjustments will be based on the most recent monthly data available at the time of final contract approval. Once established, the same month will be used for the entire term of the contract.

The Contractor has the sole responsibility to submit invoices at the adjusted rate on the applicable anniversary date and shall provide a copy of the index and other supporting documentation necessary to support the increase or decrease to the Authorized User, as appropriate. Should the Contractor fail to submit adjusted invoices and/or supporting documentation within three (3) months after the applicable anniversary date, the Contractor shall be deemed to have waived its right to any increase in price for that year, but the State shall not be barred from making the appropriate adjustment in the case of a decrease determined in accordance with the above methodology.

VIII. CONTRACT CLAUSES

A. Freedom of Information Law / Trade Secrets

During the evaluation process, the content of each bid will be held in confidence and details of any bid will not be revealed (except as may be required under the Freedom of Information Law or other State law). The Freedom of Information Law provides for an exemption from disclosure for trade secrets or information the disclosure of which would cause injury to the competitive position of commercial enterprises. This exception would be effective both during and after the evaluation process. Should you feel your firm's bid contains any such trade secrets or other confidential or proprietary information, **you must submit a request to except such information from disclosure.** Such request must be in writing, must state the reasons why the information should be accepted from disclosure and must be provided at the time of submission of the subject information. Requests for exemption of the entire contents of a bid from disclosure have generally not been found to be meritorious and are discouraged. Kindly limit any requests for exemption of information from disclosure to bona fide trade secrets or specific information, the disclosure of which would cause a substantial injury to the competitive position of your firm.

B. Conflict of Interest:

Bidder must disclose any existing or contemplated relationship with any other person or entity, including relationships with any member, shareholders of 5% or more, parent, subsidiary, or affiliated firm, which would constitute an actual or potential conflict of interest or appearance of impropriety, relating to other clients/customers of the Respondent or former officers and employees of the Agencies and their Affiliates, in connection with your rendering services enumerated in this RFP. If a conflict does or might exist, please describe how your Staffing Firm would eliminate or prevent it. Indicate what procedures will be followed to detect, notify the Agencies of, and resolve any such conflicts.

Bidder must disclose whether it, or any of its members, shareholders of 5% or more, parents, affiliates, or subsidiaries, have been the subject of any investigation or disciplinary action by the New York State Commission on Public Integrity or its predecessor State entities (collectively, "Commission"), and if so, a brief description must be included indicating how any matter before the Commission was resolved or whether it remains unresolved.

Additionally, a bidder will be required to submit the **Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of Interest or Detrimental Effect** form located within this RFP as evidence of compliance with the foregoing.

C. Subcontracting

The Contractor agrees not to subcontract any of its services, unless as indicated in its bid, without the prior written approval of the DOCCS. Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld upon receipt of written request to subcontract.

The Contractor may arrange for a portion/s of its responsibilities to be subcontracted to qualified, responsible subcontractors, subject to approval of the DOCCS. If the Contractor determines to subcontract a portion of the services, the subcontractors must be clearly identified and the nature

and extent of its involvement in and/or proposed performance must be fully explained by the Contractor to the DOCCS. As part of this explanation, the subcontractor must submit to the DOCCS a completed Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of Interest or Detrimental Effect form, as required by the Contractor prior to execution of a contract.

The Contractor retains ultimate responsibility for all services performed under a contract.

All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain provisions, which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this RFP. Unless waived in writing by DOCCS, all subcontracts between the Contractor and subcontractors shall expressly name DOCCS as the sole intended third party beneficiary of such subcontract. DOCCS reserves the right to review and approve or reject any subcontract, as well as any amendment to said subcontract(s), and this right shall not make DOCCS a party to any subcontract or create any right, claim, or interest in the subcontractor or proposed subcontractor against DOCCS.

DOCCS reserves the right, at any time during the contract term to verify that the written subcontract between the Contractor and subcontractors is in compliance with all of the provisions of this Section and any subcontract provisions contained in this RFP.

The Contractor shall give DOCCS immediate notice in writing of the initiation of any legal action or suit which relates in any way to a subcontract with a subcontractor or which may affect the performance of the Contractor's duties under a contract. Any subcontract shall not relieve the Contractor in any way of any responsibility, duty and/or obligation of a contract.

If at any time during performance under the contract the total compensation to a subcontractor exceeds or is expected to exceed \$100,000, that subcontractor shall be required to submit and certify a Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire.

D. Debriefing

Bidders will be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to the opportunity for debriefings. Unsuccessful Bidders will be notified in writing and will be offered an opportunity for a debriefing. Bidders requesting a debriefing prior to the final approval of the contract must make a request in writing to the designated contact person within fifteen (15) calendar days of the notification. The debriefing would be limited to review of that Bidder's proposal. After the final contract approval, DOCCS shall, upon request, provide a debriefing to any Bidder that responded to the solicitation, regarding the reason that the proposal submitted by the unsuccessful Bidder was not selected for a contract award. The post award debriefing should be requested by the bidder within thirty (30) days of approval of the contract as posted on the OSC website (web address below): https://wwe2.osc.state.ny.us/transparency/contracts/contractsearch.cfm

E. <u>Termination</u>

1. Agency Termination

Event of default: if DOCCS, in its sole discretion, deems the Contractor's or that of its officers, Employees, subcontractors, agents, licensees, licensors, or affiliates, services are unsatisfactory, negligent or grossly negligent, DOCCS will send a written cure notice in accordance with the Notice provisions of the contract, and Contractor shall have thirty (30) days to correct the deficiencies noted. If the deficiencies are not corrected, DOCCS may terminate this contract immediately upon written notice. Notwithstanding the foregoing, DOCCS reserves the right to terminate immediately for cause.

Deficient Certifications: If the awarded contract has a value greater than \$15,000, DOCCS shall have the right to terminate in the event the State Finance Law sections 139-j and 139-k certifications executed by the Contractor are found to be false or incomplete. If the contract has a value of greater than \$100,000 and Contractor's sales for the immediately preceding four quarters were greater than \$300,000, or if the contract has a value of \$125,000 or greater, DOCCS shall have the right to terminate in the event the Contractor's Department of Taxation and Finance Contractor Certification form, ST 220-CA, statements are found to be false or incomplete.

Lack of Funds: If for any reason the State of New York terminates or reduces its appropriations to DOCCS, the awarded contract may be terminated or reduced at DOCCS's discretion, provided that no such reduction or termination shall apply to allowable costs already incurred by the Contractor where funds are available to the DOCCS for payment of such costs. In any event, no liability shall be incurred by the State (including DOCCS) beyond monies available for the purposes of the awarded contract.

DOCCS may terminate the awarded contract, upon written notice, in the event of any of the following: (i) Contractor makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (ii) a petition in bankruptcy or any insolvency proceeding is filed by or against Contractor and is not dismissed within thirty (30) days from the date of filing; or (iii) all or substantially all of Contractor's property is levied upon or sold in any judicial proceeding.

Convenience of DOCCS: The contract may be terminated at any time upon receipt of thirty (30) days prior written notice given by DOCCS for whatever reason.

This AGREEMENT may be terminated at any time upon mutual written consent of DOCCS and the CONTRACTOR.

In the event of the termination of this AGREEMENT by either party, DOCCS shall be liable for the actual and necessary expenses for services provided by CONTRACTOR up to and including the effective date of termination.

2. Procurement Lobbying Termination

The Department of Corrections and Community Supervision reserves the right to terminate this contract in the event it is found that the certification filed by the Offeror in accordance with New York State Finance Law §139-k was intentionally false or intentionally incomplete. Upon such finding, the Department of Corrections and Community Supervision may exercise its termination right by providing written notification to the Offeror in accordance with the written notification terms of this contract.

F. Ethics Compliance

All bidders/contractors and their employees must comply with the requirements of §§73 and 74 of the Public Officers Law, other state codes, rules, regulations, and executive orders establishing ethical standards for the conduct of business with New York State. In signing the Contract, the Contractor certifies full compliance with those provisions for any present or future dealings, transactions, sales, contracts, services, offers, relations, etc., involving New York State and/or its employees. Failure to comply with those provisions may result in disqualification from the bidding process, termination of contract, and/or other civil or criminal proceedings as required by law.

G. Indemnification

The Contractor shall assume all risks of liability for its performance, or that of any of its officers, employees, subcontractors or agents, of any contract resulting from this solicitation and shall be solely responsible and liable for all liabilities, losses, damages, costs or expenses, including attorney's fees, arising from any claim, action or proceeding relating to or in any way connected with the performance of this Agreement and covenants and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the State of New York, its agents, officers and employees, from any and all claims, suits, causes of action and losses of whatever kind and nature, arising out of or in connection with its performance of any contract resulting from this solicitation, including negligence, active or passive or improper conduct of the Contractor, its officers, agents, subcontractors or employees, or the failure by the Contractor, its officers, agents, subcontractors or employees to perform any obligations or commitments to the State or third parties arising out of or resulting from any contract resulting from this solicitation. The CONTRACTOR's duty to indemnify shall cover direct, indirect, special and consequential damages. Such indemnity shall not be limited to the insurance coverage herein prescribed.

H. New York State Vendor File Registration

Prior to being awarded a contract pursuant to this Solicitation, the Bidder(s) must be registered in the New York State Vendor File (Vendor File) administered by the Office of the State Comptroller (OSC). This is a central registry for all vendors who do business with New York State Agencies and

the registration must be initiated by a State Agency. Following the initial registration, a unique New York State ten-digit vendor identification number will be assigned to your company for usage on all future transactions with New York State. Additionally, the Vendor File enables vendors to use the Vendor Self-Service application to manage all vendor information in one central location for all transactions related to the State of New York. If Bidder is already registered in the New York State Vendor File, list the ten-digit vendor ID number on the Application Cover Sheet (see Attachment B).

If a Bidder is not currently registered with the New York State Vendor File, upon notice of contract award, DOCCS shall request a completed OSC Substitute W-9 form. A fillable form with instructions can be found at the following link:

http://www.osc.state.ny.us/vendors/forms/ac3237s fe.pdf. DOCCS will initiate the vendor registration process. Once the process is initiated, registrants will receive an email from OSC that includes the unique ten-digit vendor identification number assigned to the company and instructions on how to enroll in the online Vendor Self-Service application. For more information on the NYS Vendor File, visit: http://www.osc.state.ny.us/vendor_management/.

To request assignment of a NYS Vendor ID to access the VendRep System in advance of submitting your bid, contact the Office of the State Comptroller's Help Desk at 866-370-4672 or 518-408-4672 or by email at ITServiceDesk@osc.state.ny.us.

IX. LEGAL REQUIRED FORMS

Individuals and corporations entering into contracts with New York State are subject to various laws and must submit certain documents pursuant to State Law or policy. The forms and related excerpts from law, and/or instructions are included in Attachments E and F. Please review the forms carefully and note that some forms require notarized signatures. The mandatory forms and documents include:

A. The following documentation <u>must be submitted at the time of bid submission</u>:

1. Procurement Lobbying Act – State Finance Law § 139j and k – Certificate of Compliance Pursuant to State Finance Law §§139-j and 139-k, this solicitation includes and imposes certain restrictions on communications between DOCCS and an Offeror/Bidder during the procurement process. An Offeror/Bidder is restricted from making contacts from the earliest notice of intent to solicit offers/bids through final award and approval of the Procurement Contract by DOCCS and, if applicable, the Office of the State Comptroller ("restricted period") to other than designated staff unless it is a contact that is included among certain statutory exceptions set forth in State Finance Law §139-j (3) (a). Designated staff, as of the date hereof, is identified in Section II – Designated Contact of this solicitation. DOCCS employees are also required to obtain certain information when contacted during the restricted period and make a determination of the responsibility of the Offeror/Bidder pursuant to these two statutes. Certain findings of non-responsibility can result in rejection for contract award and in the event of two findings within a four-year period, the Offeror/Bidder is debarred from obtaining governmental Procurement Contracts. Further information about these requirements can be found on the OGS website: https://ogs.nv.gov/acpl

2. Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire

DOCCS conducts a review of prospective contractors ("Bidders") to provide reasonable assurances that the Bidder is responsive and responsible. A Questionnaire is used for non-construction contracts and is designed to provide information to assess a Bidder's responsibility to conduct business in New York based upon financial and organizational capacity, legal authority, business integrity, and past performance history. By submitting a bid, Bidder agrees to fully and accurately complete the "Questionnaire." The Bidder acknowledges that the State's execution of the Contract will be contingent upon the State's determination that the Bidder is responsible, and that the State will be relying upon the Bidder's responses to the Questionnaire when making its responsibility determination.

DOCCS recommends each Bidder to file the required Questionnaire online via the New York State VendRep System. It is recommended that all Bidders become familiar with the requirements of the Questionnaire early in the process to provide sufficient time to complete the Questionnaire.

To enroll in the VendRep System, please refer to the VendRep System Instructions and User Support for Vendors available at the Office of the State Comptroller's (OSC) website, http://www.osc.state.ny.us./vendrep/vendor_index.htm or to use, go directly to the VendRep System online at https://www.osc.state.ny.us/state-vendors/vendrep/vendrep-system

A Bidder's online Questionnaire cannot be viewed by DOCCS until the Bidder has certified the Questionnaire. To assist the State in determining the responsibility of the Bidder, the Bidder should complete and certify (or recertify) the Questionnaire no more than six (6) months prior to the bid due date.

OSC provides direct support for the VendRep System through user assistance, documents, online help, and a help desk. For VendRep assistance, contact the OSC Help Desk at 866-370-4672 or 518-408-4672 or ITServiceDesk@osc.state.ny.us.

Bidders opting to complete the paper questionnaire can access this form and associated definitions via the OSC website at: http://www.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/forms-vendor.htm

The Contractor must remain a responsible vendor throughout the duration of the contract and, if at any time the Contractor is found to be not responsible or there is a question as to the vendor's responsibility, any activities pursuant to the contract may be suspended. Finally, the contract may be terminated following a finding of non-responsibility.

The Bidder agrees that if it is awarded a Contract the following shall apply:

The Bidder agrees that if it is found by the State that the Bidder's responses to the Questionnaire were intentionally false or intentionally incomplete, on such finding, DOCCS may terminate the Contract. In no case shall such termination of the Contract by the State be deemed a breach thereof, nor shall the State be liable for any damages for lost profits or otherwise, which may be sustained by the Contractor as a result of such termination.

The CONTRACTOR shall at all times during the Contract term remain responsible. The CONTRACTOR agrees, if requested by the Commissioner of DOCCS or his designee, to present evidence of its continuing legal authority to do business in New York State, integrity, experience, ability, prior performance, and organizational and financial capacity.

The DOCCS Commissioner or his designee, in his or her sole discretion, reserves the right to suspend any or all activities under this Contract, at any time, when he or she discovers information that calls into question the responsibility of the Contractor. In the event of such suspension, the Contractor will be given written notice outlining the particulars of such suspension. Upon issuance of such notice, the Contractor must comply with the terms of the suspension order. Contract activity may resume at such time as the DOCCS Commissioner or his designee issues a written notice authorizing a resumption of performance under the Contract.

Upon written notice to the Contractor, and a reasonable opportunity to be heard with appropriate DOCCS officials or staff, the Contract may be terminated by the NYS DOCCS at the Contractor's expense where the Contractor is determined by DOCCS to be non-responsible. In such event, DOCCS may complete the contractual requirements in any manner deemed advisable and pursue available legal equitable remedies for breach.

3. Encouraging Use of New York State Businesses in Contract Performance In an ongoing effort to use New York State (NYS) businesses, DOCCS encourages bidders to partner with NYS subcontractors and/or suppliers. For this solicitation, bidders should identify the NYS businesses that they plan to use if awarded the contract resulting from this solicitation by completing the form entitled Encouraging Use of New York State Businesses in Contract Performance (see Attachment

F). If known, please identify the businesses and attach the requested information. Return the completed form with your proposal. If you do not plan to partner with a NYS business, please indicate this on the form and return it with your proposal.

4. M/WBE - EEO Policy Statement

By completing the Minority/Women-Owned Business Enterprises – Equal Employment Opportunity (M/WBE-EEO) Policy Statement (see Attachment F), Bidder agrees to adopt DOCCS' policies to assist in achieving the M/WBE contract participation goals set by DOCCS and provide Equal Employment Opportunities.

5. **EEO Staffing Plan**

The Bidder will be required to submit an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Staffing Plan (Form EEO 100) identifying the anticipated work force to be utilized on the contract (see Attachment F).

B. The following documentation will be required from the Vendor <u>upon notice of contract</u> award:

1. Insurance Requirements

Prior to the commencement of the work to be performed by the Contractor hereunder, the Contractor shall file with The People of the State of New York, DOCCS Certificates of Insurance (hereinafter referred to as "Certificates"), evidencing compliance with all requirements. Such Certificates shall be of a form and substance acceptable to DOCCS.

Certificate acceptance and/or approval by DOCCS does not and shall not be construed to relieve Contractor of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under the Contract.

Contractors shall be required to procure, at their sole cost and expense, and shall maintain in force at all times during the term of any Contract resulting from this Solicitation, policies of insurance as required by this Section. All insurance required by this Section shall be written by companies that have an A.M. Best Company rating of "A-," Class "VII" or better. In addition, companies writing insurance intended to comply with the requirements of this Section should be licensed or authorized by the New York State Department of Financial Services to issue insurance in the State of New York. DOCCS may, in its sole discretion, accept policies of insurance written by a non-authorized carrier or carriers when certificates and/or other policy documents are accompanied by a completed Excess Lines Association of New York (ELANY) affidavit or other documents demonstrating the company's strong financial rating. If, during the term of a policy, the carrier's A.M. Best rating falls below "A-," Class "VII," the insurance must be replaced, on or before the renewal date of the policy, with insurance that meets the requirements above.

Bidders and Contractors shall deliver to DOCCS evidence of the insurance required by this Solicitation and any Contract resulting from this Solicitation in a form satisfactory to DOCCS. Policies must be written in accordance with the requirements of the paragraphs below, as applicable. While acceptance of insurance documentation shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, acceptance and/or approval by DOCCS does not, and shall not be construed to, relieve Bidders or Contractors of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under this Solicitation or any Contract resulting from this Solicitation.

The Contractor shall not take any action or omit to take any action that would suspend or invalidate any of the required coverages during the term of the Contract.

A. General Conditions Applicable to Insurance

All policies of insurance required by this Solicitation or any Contract resulting from this Solicitation shall comply with the following requirements:

1. Coverage Types and Policy Limits. The types of coverage and policy limits required from Bidders and Contractors are specified in Paragraph B Insurance Requirements below.

- 2. Policy Forms. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein or agreed to in the Contract resulting from this Solicitation, all policies of insurance required by this Section shall be written on an occurrence basis.
- 3. Certificates of Insurance/Notices. Bidders and Contractors shall provide DOCCS with a Certificate or Certificates of Insurance, in a form satisfactory to DOCCS as detailed below, and pursuant to the timelines set forth in Section B below. Certificates shall reference the Solicitation or award number and shall name The New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, Harriman Campus, 1220 Washington Avenue, Albany, New York 12226-2050, as the certificate holder.

Certificates of Insurance shall

- Be in the form acceptable to DOCCS and in accordance with the New York State Insurance Law (e.g., an ACORD certificate);
- Disclose any deductible, self-insured retention, aggregate limit or exclusion to the policy that materially changes the coverage required by this Solicitation or any Contract resulting from this Solicitation;
- Refer to this Solicitation and any Contract resulting from this Solicitation by award number:
- Be signed by an authorized representative of the referenced insurance carriers; and
- Contain the following language in the Description of Operations / Locations / Vehicles section: Additional insured protection afforded is on a primary and non-contributory basis. A waiver of subrogation is granted in favor of the additional insureds.

Only original documents (certificates of insurance and any endorsements and other attachments) or electronic versions of the same that can be directly traced back to the insurer, agent or broker via e-mail distribution or similar means will be accepted.

DOCCS generally requires Contractors to submit only certificates of insurance and additional insured endorsements, although DOCCS reserves the right to request other proof of insurance. Contractors should refrain from submitting entire insurance policies, unless specifically requested by DOCCS. If an entire insurance policy is submitted but not requested, DOCCS shall not be obligated to review and shall not be chargeable with knowledge of its contents. In addition, submission of an entire insurance policy not requested by DOCCS does not constitute proof of compliance with the insurance requirements and does not discharge Contractors from submitting the requested insurance documentation.

- 4. Primary Coverage. All liability insurance policies shall provide that the required coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to other insurance available to the People of the State of New York, the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, any entity authorized by law or regulation to use the Contract and their officers, agents, and employees. Any other insurance maintained by the People of the State of New York, the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, any entity authorized by law or regulation to use the Contract and their officers, agents, and employees shall be excess of all applicable Contractor's insurance, including any umbrella and/or excess policies, and shall not contribute with the Bidder/Contractor's insurance.
- 5. Breach for Lack of Proof of Coverage. The failure to comply with the requirements of this Section at any time during the term of the Contract shall be considered a breach of the terms of the Contract and shall allow the People of the State of New York, the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, any entity authorized by law or regulation to use the Contract and their officers, agents, and employees to avail themselves of all remedies available under the Contract or at law or in equity.
- 6. **Self-Insured Retention/Deductibles.** Certificates of Insurance must indicate the applicable deductibles/self-insured retentions for each listed policy. Deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000.00 are subject to approval from DOCCS. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Bidders and Contractors shall be solely responsible for all claim expenses and loss payments within the

- deductibles or self-insured retentions. If the Bidder/Contractor is providing the required insurance through self-insurance, evidence of the financial capacity to support the self-insurance program along with a description of that program, including, but not limited to, information regarding the use of a third-party administrator shall be provided upon request. If the Contractor is unable to meet their obligation under any deductible, self-insured retention or self-insurance, neither the People of the State of New York nor DOCCS will be obligated to drop down to cover those amounts.
- 7. Subcontractors. Prior to the commencement of any work by a Subcontractor, the Contractor shall require such Subcontractor to procure policies of insurance as required by this Section and maintain the same in force during the term of any work performed by that Subcontractor.
- 8. Waiver of Subrogation. For all liability policies and the workers' compensation insurance required below, the Bidder/Contractor shall cause to be included in its policies insuring against loss, damage or destruction by fire or other insured casualty a waiver of the insurer's right of subrogation against The People of the State of New York, the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, any entity authorized by law or regulation to use the Contract and their officers, agents, and employees, or, if such waiver is unobtainable (i) an express agreement that such policy shall not be invalidated if the Contractor waives or has waived before the casualty, the right of recovery against The People of the State of New York, the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, any entity authorized by law or regulation to use the Contract and their officers, agents, and employees or (ii) any other form of permission for the release of The People of the State of New York, the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, any entity authorized by law or regulation to use the Contract and their officers, agents, and employees. A Waiver of Subrogation Endorsement shall be provided upon request. A blanket Waiver of Subrogation Endorsement evidencing such coverage is also acceptable.
- 9. Additional Insured. The Contractor shall cause to be included in each of the liability policies required below, ISO form CG 20 10 11 85 (or a form or forms that provide equivalent coverage, such as the combination of CG 20 10 04 13 and CG 20 37 04 13) and form CA 20 48 10 13 (or a form or forms that provide equivalent coverage), naming as additional insureds: The People of the State of New York, the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, any entity authorized by law or regulation to use the Contract and their officers, agents, and employees. An Additional Insured Endorsement evidencing such coverage shall be provided to DOCCS pursuant to the timelines set forth in Section B below. A blanket Additional Insured Endorsement evidencing such coverage is also acceptable. For Contractors who are self-insured, the Contractor shall be obligated to defend and indemnify the above-named additional insureds with respect to Commercial General Liability and Business Automobile Liability, in the same manner that the Contractor would have been required to pursuant to this Section had the Contractor obtained such insurance policies.
- 10. Excess/Umbrella Liability Policies. Required insurance coverage limits may be provided through a combination of primary and excess/umbrella liability policies; however, a minimum of one million dollars (\$1,000,000.00) must be primary coverage for general liability and auto liability. All Contractor's applicable insurance policies, including umbrella and excess insurance, will be primary to any insurance, self-insurance, deductible or self-insured retention of The People of the State of New York, the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision, or any entity authorized by law or regulation to use the Contract and their officers, agents, and employees. If coverage limits are provided through excess/umbrella liability policies, then a Schedule of underlying insurance listing policy information for all underlying insurance policies (insurer, policy number, policy term, coverage and limits of insurance), including proof that the excess/umbrella insurance follows form must be provided upon request.

- 11. Notice of Cancellation or Non-Renewal. Policies shall be written so as to include the requirements for notice of cancellation or non-renewal in accordance with the New York State Insurance Law. Within five (5) business days of receipt of any notice of cancellation or non-renewal of insurance, the Contractor shall provide DOCCS with a copy of any such notice received from an insurer together with proof of replacement coverage that complies with the insurance requirements of this Solicitation and any Contract resulting from this Solicitation.
- 12. Policy Renewal/Expiration Upon policy renewal/expiration, evidence of renewal or replacement of coverage that complies with the insurance requirements set forth in this Solicitation and any Contract resulting from this Solicitation shall be delivered to DOCCS. If, at any time during the term of any Contract resulting from this Solicitation, the coverage provisions and limits of the policies required herein do not meet the provisions and limits set forth in this Solicitation or any Contract resulting from this Solicitation, or proof thereof is not provided to DOCCS, the Contractor shall immediately cease work. The Contractor shall not resume work until authorized to do so by DOCCS.
- 13. Deadlines for Providing Insurance Documents after Renewal or Upon Request. As set forth herein, certain insurance documents must be provided to the DOCCS Procurement Services contact identified in the Contract Award Notice after renewal or upon request. This requirement means that the Contractor shall provide the applicable insurance document to DOCCS as soon as possible but in no event later than the following time periods:
 - For certificates of insurance: 5 business days
 - For information on self-insurance or self-retention programs: 15 calendar days
 - For other requested documentation evidencing coverage: 15 calendar days
 - For additional insured and waiver of subrogation endorsements: 30 calendar days
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Contractor shall have promptly requested the
 insurance documents from its broker or insurer and shall have thereafter diligently
 taken all steps necessary to obtain such documents from its insurer and submit them
 to DOCCS, DOCCS shall extend the time period for a reasonable period under the
 circumstances, but in no event, shall the extension exceed 30 calendar days.

B. Insurance Requirements:

Bidders and Contractors shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect, throughout the term of any Contract resulting from this Solicitation, at their own expense, the following insurance with limits not less than those described below and as required by the terms of any Contract resulting from this Solicitation, or as required by law, whichever is greater:

Insurance Type		Proof of Coverage is Due
Commercial General Liability	[Not less than 1,000,000 each occurrence]	Upon Notification of Tentative Award
General Aggregate	\$3,000,000	And updated in accordance with
Products – Completed Operations Aggregate	\$5,000,000	Contract
Personal and Advertising Injury	\$1,000,000	
Medical Expenses Limit	\$5,000	
Business Automobile Liability Insurance	[Not less than \$1,000,000 each occurrence]	
Professional Errors and Omissions/Malpractice Insurance	[Not less than \$1,000,000 each occurrence/Not less than \$3,000,000 each occurrence]	

Insurance Type		Proof of Coverage is Due
Date Breach/Cyber Liability	[Not less than \$1,000,000 each occurrence]	
Workers' Compensation	C-105.2, SI-12, U26.3 or GSI-105.2 (acceptable forms)	Contact your Ins. Carrier or licensed NYS insurance agent for these forms.
Disability Benefits	DB-120.1 or DB-155 (acceptable forms)	Contact your Ins. Carrier or licensed NYS insurance agent for these forms.

1. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Such liability shall be written on the current edition of ISO occurrence form CG 00 01, or a substitute form providing equivalent coverage and shall cover liability arising from premises operations, independent contractors, products-completed operations, broad form property damage, personal & advertising injury, cross liability coverage, liability assumed in a contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a contract) [and explosion, collapse & underground coverage].

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage.

- General Aggregate
- Products Completed Operations Aggregate
- Personal and Advertising Injury
- Each Occurrence

Coverage shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

- Premises liability;
- Independent contractors:
- Blanket contractual liability, including tort liability of another assumed in a contract;
- Defense and/or indemnification obligations, including obligations assumed under the Contract;
- Cross liability for additional insureds;
- Products/completed operations for a term of no less than three [1-3] years, commencing upon acceptance of the work, as required by the Contract;
- [Explosion, collapse and underground hazards; and
- Contractor means and methods].
- Business Automobile Liability Insurance: Such insurance shall cover liability arising out
 of any automobile used in connection with performance under the Contract, including
 owned, leased, hired and non-owned automobiles bearing or, under the circumstances
 under which they are being used, required by the Motor Vehicles Laws of the State of New
 York to bear, license plates.

In the event that the Contractor does not own, lease or hire any automobiles used in connection with performance under the Contract, the Contractor does not need to obtain Business Automobile Liability Insurance, but must attest to the fact that the Contractor does not own, lease or hire any automobiles used in connection with performance under the Contract on a form provided by DOCCS. If, however, during the term of the Contract, the Contractor acquires, leases or hires any automobiles that will be used in connection with performance under the Contract, the Contractor must obtain Business Automobile Liability Insurance that meets all of the requirements of this section and provide proof of such coverage to DOCCS in accordance with the insurance requirements of any Contract resulting from this Solicitation.

In the event that the Contractor does not own or lease any automobiles used in connection with performance under the Contract, but the Contractor does subcontract, hire and/or utilize non-owned automobiles in connection with performance under the Contract, the Contractor, subcontractor or owner of the automobile(s) must: (i) obtain Business Automobile Liability Insurance as required by this Solicitation or any Contract resulting from this Solicitation, except that such insurance may be limited to liability arising out of hired and/or non-owned automobiles, as applicable; and (ii) attest to the fact that the Contractor does not own or lease any automobiles used in connection with performance under the Contract, on a form provided by DOCCS. If, however, during the term of the Contract, the Contractor acquires or leases any automobiles that will be used in connection with performance under the Contract, the Contractor must obtain Business Automobile Liability Insurance that meets all of the requirements of this Section and provide proof of such coverage to DOCCS in accordance with the insurance requirements of any Contract resulting from this Solicitation.

3. Professional Errors and Omissions:

If providing professional occupation job titles., the Contractor shall maintain Professional Liability insurance.

- a. Such insurance shall apply to professional errors, acts, or omissions arising out of the scope of services.
- b. If coverage is written on a claims-made policy, the Contractor warrants that any applicable retroactive date precedes the start of work; and that continuous coverage will be maintained, or an extended discovery period exercised, throughout the performance of the services and for a period of not less than three years from the time work under this Contract is completed. Written proof of this extended reporting period must be provided to DOCCS prior to the policy's expiration or cancellation.
- c. The policy shall cover professional misconduct for lack of ordinary skill for those positions defined in the Scope of Services of this Contract.
- d. If such professional title includes computer related services, coverage must include the following (is not limited to): consulting, data processing, programming, system integration, software development, installation, distribution or maintenance, systems analysis or design, training, staffing or other support services, any electronic equipment, computer hardware or software developed, manufactured, distributed, licensed, marketed or sold.
- 4. Data Breach/Cyber Insurance: Contractor is required to maintain during the term of this contract and as otherwise required herein, Data Breach and Privacy/Cyber Liability Insurance, including coverage for failure to protect confidential information and failure of the security of the Contractor's computer systems or the Authorized Users' system due to the actions of the Contractor which results in unauthorized access to the Authorized User(s) or their data.

5. Workers' Compensation Insurance and Disability Benefits Requirements:

Sections 57 and 220 of the New York State Workers' Compensation Law require the heads of all municipal and state entities to ensure that businesses applying for contracts have appropriate workers' compensation and disability benefits insurance coverage.

These requirements apply to both original contracts and renewals. Failure to provide proper proof of such coverage or a legal exemption will result in a rejection of a Bid or any contract renewal. A Bidder will not be awarded a Contract unless proof of workers' compensation and disability insurance is provided to DOCCS. Proof of workers' compensation and disability benefits coverage, or proof of exemption must be submitted to DOCCS at the time of Bid submission, policy renewal, contract renewal, and upon request. Proof of compliance must be submitted on one of the following forms designated by the New York State Workers' Compensation Board.

An ACORD form is not acceptable proof of New York State workers' compensation or disability benefits insurance coverage.

Proof of Compliance with Workers' Compensation Coverage Requirements:

- Form CE-200, Certificate of Attestation for New York Entities With No Employees and Certain Out of State Entities, That New York State Workers' Compensation and/or Disability Benefits Insurance Coverage is Not Required, which is available on the Workers' Compensation Board's website (www.wcb.ny.gov);
- Form C-105.2 (9/07), Certificate of Workers' Compensation Insurance, sent to DOCCS by the Contractor's insurance carrier upon request, or if coverage is provided by the New York State Insurance Fund, they will provide Form U-26.3 to DOCCS upon request from the Contractor; or
- Form SI-12, Certificate of Workers' Compensation Self-Insurance, available from the New York State Workers' Compensation Board's Self-Insurance Office, or
- Form GSI-105.2, Certificate of Participation in Workers' Compensation Group Self-Insurance, available from the Contractor's Group Self-Insurance Administrator.

Proof of Compliance with Disability Benefits Coverage Requirements:

- Form CE-200, Certificate of Attestation for New York Entities With No Employees and Certain Out of State Entities, That New York State Workers' Compensation and/or Disability Benefits Insurance Coverage is Not Required, which is available on the Workers' Compensation Board's website (www.wcb.ny.gov);
- Form DB-120.1, Certificate of Disability Benefits Insurance, sent to DOCCS by the Contractor's insurance carrier upon request; or
- Form DB-155, Certificate of Disability Benefits Self-Insurance, available from the New York State Workers' Compensation Board's Self-Insurance Office.

An instruction manual clarifying the New York State Workers' Compensation Law requirements is available for download at the New York State Workers' Compensation Board's website, http://www.wcb.ny.gov. Once on the site, click on the Employers/Businesses tab and then click on Employers' Handbook.

Workers' Compensation - http://www.wcb.ny.gov/content/onlineforms/obtainC105.jsp
Disability Benefits - http://www.wcb.ny.gov/content/onlineforms/obtainDB120-1.jsp
Exemption - http://www.wcb.ny.gov/content/ebiz/wc db exemptions/requestExemptionOverview.jsp

Department of Taxation and Finance Contractor Certification – Forms ST-220-CA & ST-220-TD
 The Contractor must submit Form ST-220-CA (see Attachment E) to certify that it has filed Form ST-220-TD with the NYS Department of Taxation and Finance (DTF) and that the information contained on Form ST-220-TD is correct and complete as of the date that the Contractor files Form ST-220-CA. Bidders may access and complete a fillable Form ST-220-CA by using the following limit.

http://www.tax.nv.gov/pdf/current forms/st/st220ca fill in.pdf.

Form ST-220-TD (see Attachment E) must be filed directly with DTF at the address on the front page of the form. Bidders may access and complete a fillable Form ST-220-TD using the following link: http://www.tax.ny.gov/pdf/current_forms/st/st220td_fill_in.pdf.

For Questions and Answers Concerning Tax Law Section 5-a, go to NYS Department of Taxation and Finance (DTF) at http://www.tax.ny.gov/pdf/publications/sales/pub223.pdf. Vendors may call DTF directly at 1-800-698-2909 for any and all questions relating to Tax Law Section 5-a and relating to a company's registration status with the DTF. For additional information and frequently asked questions, please refer to the DTF website: http://www.tax.ny.gov.

3. Consultant Disclosure Legislation Requirement

Pursuant to New York State Finance Law, Section 163(4)(g), state agencies must require all contractors, including subcontractors, that provide consulting services for State purposes pursuant to a contract to submit an annual employment report for each such contract, such report to include for each employment category within the contract: the number of employees employed to provide services under the contract, the number of hours they work, and the total compensation under the contract for those employees. Consulting services are defined as analysis, evaluation, research, training, data processing, computer programming, engineering, environmental, health, and mental health services, accounting, auditing, paralegal, legal, or similar services.

Upon notification of tentative award for this RFP, the selected Contractor must complete Form A, State Consultant Services Contractor's Planned Employment (see Attachment E). The completed Form A must include information for all employees that will be providing services under the contract resulting from this RFP.

The Contractor must submit Form B, State Consultant Services Contractor's Annual Employment Report (see Attachment E), to report annual employment information required by the statute. This form captures historical information, detailing actual employment data for the most recently concluded State fiscal year (April 1 – March 31).

A completed Form B must be submitted annually by May 15 for each State fiscal year (or portion thereof) the contract is in effect, to DOCCS, the Office of the State Comptroller, and the Department of Civil Service. Details, including addresses, will be provided to the contract awardee.

4. Non-Disclosure Agreement

A Non-Disclosure Agreement will be made part of the awarded contract (see Attachment E).

No-Use – Recipient agrees not to use the Confidential Information in anyway, except for the purpose of the projects or assignments they are performing for DOCCS.

No Disclosure – Recipient agrees to use its best efforts to prevent and protect the Confidential Information, or any part thereof, from disclosure to any person other than Recipient's employees and/or consultants designated by DOCCS having a need of disclosure in connection with Recipients' authorized use of the Confidential Information. This includes employees and consultants that may not be directly working on the project or job. Recipient agrees not to disclose the nature of the work to any third party without prior written DOCCS consent. In circumstance where the signer of this document is representing a Recipient with more than one employee, the Recipient also agrees that all of its current and future staff who may be involved in the relationship with DOCCS have been and will be instructed in the requirements of this agreement.

Protection of Secrecy – Recipient agrees to take all steps reasonably necessary to protect the secrecy of the Confidential Information, and to prevent the Confidential Information from falling into the public domain or into the possession of unauthorized persons. Such steps shall include keeping Confidential Information stored in a locked office/facility where only authorized personnel would have access.

HIPAA - Contractor agrees that all medical information/records will be kept confidential by all employees as well as subcontractors in accordance with applicable state and federal laws, including but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996

(hereinafter referred to as "HIPAA") and the regulations thereunder. In addition, Contractor will also be subject to any New York State laws, rules, regulations or DOCCS directives concerning confidentiality of medical records.

5. M/WBE Utilization Plan

Upon notice of tentative award, Bidder is required to submit an M/WBE Utilization Plan (Form M/WBE 100-G) (see Attachment G). The Utilization Plan shall list the M/WBE's the contractor intends to use to perform the State Contract and a description of the contract scope of work that the contractor intends to structure to meet the goals on the State contract, and the estimated or, if known, actual dollar amounts to be paid to and performance dates of each component of a State contract that the contractor intends to be performed by a NYS certified minority or women-owned business. Any modifications or changes to the agreed participation by NYS Certified M/WBE's set forth in the Utilization Plan submitted with the bid or proposal, after the contract award and during the term of the contract, must be reported on a revised M/WBE Utilization Plan submitted to DOCCS.

6. Executive Order Number 177

Bidders must review Executive Order 177 prior to submitting bids/proposals. You may access the executive order on the Governor's website:

https://www.governor.ny.gov/sites/governor.ny.gov/files/atoms/files/EO177.pdf

Bidders must complete the EO177 Certification form located within this RFP (see Attachment E) as evidence of compliance with the foregoing and submit with bid/proposal.

X. PROCUREMENT RIGHTS

- A. DOCCS reserves the right to the following:
 - At any time, amend RFP specifications to correct errors or oversights, and to supply additional information as it becomes available. All bidders who have received this RFP will be supplied with all amendments or additional information issued.
 - 2. Seek clarifications and revisions of proposals.
 - 3. Change any of the scheduled dates stated herein with written notice to all bidders who have received this RFP.
 - 4. Disqualify proposals that fail to meet mandatory requirements.
 - 5. Request any non-mandatory documents from bidder.
 - 6. Amend, modify, or withdraw this RFP at any time and without notice to or liability to any bidder or other parties for expenses incurred in preparation of a proposal.
 - 7. Not to proceed with an award.
 - 8. Reject any and all proposals received in response to the RFP.
 - 9. Make an award under the RFP in whole, or in part.
 - 10. Use proposal information obtained through site visits, management interviews and the State's investigation of a bidder's qualifications, experience, ability or financial standing, and any material or information submitted by the bidder in response to the agency's request for clarifying information in the course of evaluation and/or selection under the RFP.
 - 11. Prior to the bid opening, direct bidders to submit proposal modifications addressing subsequent RFP amendments.
 - 12. Eliminate any mandatory, non-material specifications that cannot be complied with by all of the prospective bidders.
 - 13. Waive any requirements that are not material.
 - Negotiate with a successful bidder within the scope of the RFP in the best interests of the State.
 - 15. Conduct contract negotiations with the next responsible bidder, should the agency be unsuccessful in negotiating with the selected bidder.
 - 16. Utilize any and all ideas submitted in the proposals received.
 - 17. Unless otherwise specified in the solicitation, every offer is firm and not revocable for a period of 180 days from the bid opening.

- 18. Require clarification at any time during the procurement process and/or require correction of arithmetic or other apparent errors for the purpose of assuring a full and complete understanding of a bidder's proposal and/or to determine a bidder's compliance with the requirements of the solicitation.
- B. Issuance of this RFP does not commit DOCCS to award a contract or to pay any costs involved in preparation of proposals. All proposals are submitted at the sole responsibility of the bidder.
- C. The proposal must be signed by the Chief Executive Officer or an Authorized Designee of the agency and shall constitute a firm offer by the bidder for a minimum period of 180-days after proposal submission. The proposal shall serve as the basis for the contract with the successful bidder.
- D. Bidders may propose to partner or sub-contract with other entities to meet the terms of this RFP. In such a case, however, DOCCS will only communicate with the bidder, not the partner or sub-contractor. If bidder proposing such is awarded, the partner or sub-contractor will be required to complete a Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire.
- E. Successful bidder will be required to assure compliance with certain provisions of both state and federal Law. These include, but are not limited to, assurance of non-discrimination, affirmative action in hiring and provision of services, and the protection of client records as required by law and regulation. Proposals from Minority and Women-Owned Enterprises and Service-Disabled Veterans'-Owned Businesses are encouraged.
- **F.** Unsuccessful bidders will be notified in writing and will be offered an opportunity to be debriefed. A debriefing, if any, will be scheduled for all unsuccessful bidders upon request, at a date, time and location convenient to both DOCCS and the bidder concerned.
- G. Information regarding current contracts may be requested under the Freedom of Information Law (FOIL). FOIL requests should be submitted to DOCCS Records Access Officer. Specific filing information can be obtained at https://openfoil.ny.gov/#/newfoilrequest Information may be provided once the entire procurement process has been completed and formally approved by the appropriate state agencies.
- **H.** Upon contract award, if Contractor is not able to start the program on April 1, 2019, DOCCS has the right to withdraw its award. The proposal with the second highest point allocation will then be awarded a contract.
- I. Upon notice of tentative contract award the bidder will be required to sign the Non-Disclosure Agreement (see Attachment E).
- J. Any negotiated contract must conform to the laws of New York State and will be subject to approval by the Department of Law and the Office of the State Comptroller. The contract will not be effective until approval has been granted by the Department of Law and the Office of the State Comptroller.
- K. Information regarding the procurement procedure may be found on the webpage of the New York State Procurement Guidelines of the State Procurement Counsel at: https://ogs.ny.gov/system/files/documents/2023/09/procurement-guidelines-september-2023-final.pdf
 - and Office of General Services Procurement Services webpage at: https://ogs.nv.gov/procurement.
- L. It is stipulated and agreed by the parties that the laws of the State of New York shall solely and in all respects, govern with relation to any dispute, litigation, or interpretation arising out of or connected with any contract resulting from this solicitation.
- M. In the event that any one or more of the provisions of the forthcoming contract shall for any reason be declared unenforceable under the laws or regulations in force, such provision will not have any

effect on the validity of the remainder of this said contract, which shall then be construed as if such unenforceable provision had never been written or was never contained in the contract.

- N. In the event of any material breach of service by the contractor, DOCCS shall give written notice specifying the material breach. If such written notice of material breach is given and the contractor does not correct the breach to DOCCS' satisfaction within ten (10) business days after receipt of the written notice, DOCCS shall have the right to unilaterally and immediately terminate the agreement and seek a replacement contractor in order to maintain service without penalty to DOCCS.
- O. Inspection of Books It is expressly understood and agreed that the Department of Corrections and Community Supervision and the New York State Comptroller shall have the right to inspect and audit the Contractor's records covered under this Agreement, in accordance with his statutory responsibility to examine the books and accounts of every Agency. The New York State Comptroller requires, and the Contractor agrees to, the retention of all material that is pertinent to an audit of the operations under any contract resulting from this RFP for a <u>full seven-year period</u> from the expiration of the contact.
- P. Procurement Lobbying Termination DOCCS reserves the right to terminate this contract in the event it is found that the certification filed by the Bidder in accordance with New York State Finance Law §139 j & k was intentionally false or intentionally incomplete. Upon such finding, DOCCS may exercise its termination right by providing written notification to the Bidder in accordance with the written notification terms of this contract.

XI. PROPOSAL CONTENT

This section of the RFP sets forth the criteria to be used by DOCCS for the evaluation of proposals submitted. The evaluation criteria will be applied uniformly and equally, ensuring that each qualified bidder has an opportunity to be fairly considered. Best Value Award will be based on the highest composite bidder's score. Each proposal that meets the submission and mandatory requirements stated in the RFP will receive a numerical score based on the following assigned weight value for the Technical, Diversity Practices Questionnaire and Cost Proposal submitted:

- 65% Technical Proposal
- 5% Diversity Practices
- 30% Cost Proposal

All proposals will be evaluated based on thoroughness in responding to each item below. Bidders are encouraged to include all information that may be deemed pertinent to their proposal. Bidders may be requested to provide clarification based on the State's evaluation procedure. Any clarification will be considered a formal part of the Bidder's original proposal. If further clarification is needed during the evaluation period, DOCCS will contact the Bidder.

In order for the State to evaluate bids fairly and completely, Bidders must follow the format set forth herein and must provide all of the information requested. All items identified in the following list must be addressed as concisely as possible in order for a bid to be considered complete. Failure to conform to the stated requirements may necessitate rejection of the bid.

A. Mandatory Requirements (Pass/Fail)

<u>Pass/Fail Checklist</u> – Will consist of a review of each original proposal to ensure that all submission requirements, mandatory requirements and minimum bidder qualifications are met. Failure to meet any of these requirements in the original proposal may result in a proposal being considered non-responsive.

Only those Bidders who <u>furnish all required information and meet the submission and</u> mandatory requirements will be considered.

- Bidder's Response to Mandatory Requirements (see Section XI, A):
- Technical Proposal: submit two (2) originals and six (4) exact copies.
- Diversity Practices Questionnaire (see Attachment G): submitted in a separate, sealed envelope, clearly labeled "Diversity Practices Questionnaire": three (3) originals.
- Cost Proposal Form (see Attachment C) submitted in a separate, sealed envelope clearly labeled "Cost Proposal": <u>submit three (3) originals.</u>
- Bidder meets the mandatory requirements.
- Mandatory forms and document requirements:
 - Completed Application Cover Sheet (see Attachment B) Cover Letter: submit two (2) original copies.
 - > Submit one (1) original and one (1) exact copy of the following:
 - o Completed Procurement Lobbying Certification (see Attachment E).
 - o Completed and Certified Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire (completed online or paper questionnaire submitted).
 - o Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of Interest or Detrimental Effect
 - Completed DOCCS M/WBE EEO Policy Statement (see Attachment F).
 - Completed EEO Staffing Plan (see Attachment F).
 - Completed EO 177 and 139 Certification (see Attachment E).
 - o EO 16 (Attachment E).
 - Completed Bid Submission Checklist (see Attachment H).
 - Signed copies of all addenda released for this solicitation.

B. Technical Proposal (65%)

Technical Proposals should address the Scope of Services. The overall score for this part of the submission is worth 65% of the final combined score. Please address the following specific components in your responses at a minimum. Bidders should reference the subsection for the component in the Technical Proposal submission.

Do not include any cost information in the Technical Proposal submission.

Bidder's Experience

Bidders should submit the following:

- A description of the organization's experience (including present activities and those within the past five years) operating incarcerated individual parenting and children's service programs; or related programs for convicted felons; or community-based parenting programs
- b. A detailed description of the Bidder's qualifications for providing the services described throughout the RFP.
- c. A detailed description of program results (e.g. how many individuals completed the training) directly related to the Bidder's past similar or comparable programs including a succinct description of the scope(s) for the program(s) and the population(s) served.

Comprehensiveness and Quality of Program Design

d. The selected provider will deliver the family support services and staff training described in this RFP, with the overall goal of reducing the effects of incarceration on the families and helping incarcerated individuals strengthen family bonds to best facilitate a successful return to family and community.

To address this subsection, include the following in your proposal:

- a. program plan with a statement of program philosophy
- **b.** description of the overall program design and a description of program components consistent with the Department's desired program goals
- **c.** outline of the curriculum and the proposed program schedule that include details regarding any A/V

- support/educational materials
- **d.** list of job titles and functions
- e. job descriptions
- f. required staff qualifications
- g. staff assignments and work schedules
- h. space requirements
- i. if outside consultants will be used and, if so, details including availability of résumés
- **e.** Describe how you plan to implement an attendance policy in the Bidder's proposed program for the incarcerated individuals participating in the program.
- f. Describe the proposed program that will conform to the following standards:
 - **a.** The group is expected to be facilitated by a qualified contract staff person with approximately 15-20 incarcerated individuals who are referred to the program by facility program services staff.
 - **b.** At each facility, the group shall meet on a weekly basis on designated days and times. Completion of the primary parenting component will require 32-48 hours. (For example: A 48-hour curriculum delivered 2 hours/2 days per week will meet for a 3 month period.)
 - **c.** Enhancing Marriage and Family Relationships component will require 24 classroom hours.
 - **d.** A minimum of two program cycles must be held in a one-year period at each facility.
 - **e.** Focus of the groups shall be parenting, family relationships or other curriculum that supports the overall program goals.
- g. Provide an overall statement of the goals of the program including the following key program components, and explain how the Bidder will implement the services in each of the program components:
 - a. Incarcerated individual parenting education and training
 - **b.** Enhancing marriage and family relationships
 - c. Individual and family counseling
 - d. Children's visiting centers
 - **e.** Development and provision of training for designated DOCCS staff aimed at facilitating the aforementioned goals.
- h. Describe the multi-modality approach the Bidder will use for the group format.
- i. Describe the evidence-based practices that the Bidder's proposed program plan will include. Specify the supplemental readings and describe the proposed homework assignments.

Key Program Components:

- j. Incarcerated individual parenting education and training
 - **a.** Provide the proposed curriculum to be used for the incarcerated individual parenting training. Include a broad and diverse array of training topics that are relevant and appropriate for the incarcerated individual population.
 - **b.** Describe the evaluation process including the pre- and post-assessments to be used.
 - **c.** Describe how Bidder will provide incarcerated individuals with skills to make healthy lifestyle choices and to make decisions that are in the best interests of the incarcerated individuals and their children.
- k. Enhancing marriage and family relationships

Describe how Bidder proposes to enhance marriage and family relationships with the following objectives:

- a. Addressing the effects of incarceration on relationships and family dynamics
- **b.** Introducing educational materials that combine lessons promoting individual life skills, couple relationships, parenting, step-families and co-parenting skills
- **c.** Encouraging awareness of negative cognitive and behavioral patterns and practicing skills that enhance individual and family well being
- **d.** Identifying strengths and specific areas of challenge that require additional work and focus.
- I. **Individual and family counseling services:** Describe the Bidder's plan to achieve the goals of the family counseling component including the following:
 - **a.** Conducting family needs assessments for participating family members, with the goal of identifying needs in order to provide community referrals for family members.
 - **b.** Providing family counseling sessions for participants and their family members for the enhancement of communication skills and conflict resolution.
 - **c.** Mitigating the negative psychological and emotional effects resulting from incarceration.
 - **d.** Assisting with family re-entry by the creation of a family action plan that promotes supportive and beneficial relationships.

m. Children's Centers:

Provide the Bidder's plan to staff the children's centers at the specified locations during the hours and days required. Describe how the plan will support the goal of improving or maintaining incarcerated individuals' relationships with their children. Plans should address the following objectives identified in the RFP:

- **a.** Providing family friendly, engaging environment to facilitate the maintenance of family bonds.
- **b.** Allowing for the incorporation of skills learned in the parenting education component.
- **c.** Assisting fathers time to address the needs of their children enhancing the fathers' capacity to nurture and socialize with their children.
- n. Bidders must describe in their proposal their training plans for incarcerated individuals who will work in the Children's Centers.
- o. Training DOCCS Staff: The Contractor will develop a comprehensive visitor experience training for DOCCS staff designed to be delivered to facility staff involved in visitor processing and intended to improve visitor/staff relations. All facilities included in contract will be focus for roll-out with DOCCS able to expand statewide. Training will include, but not be limited to the following:
 - a. Training vignettes to include discussion questions/quide focusing on visiting
 - b. Communication skills that help improve positive staff/family interactions,
 - c. Understanding age-appropriate interactions and behavior expectations, and
 - d. Cultural awareness related to children and families.

The training plans should include the following:

- e. Description of the proposed training curriculum to include videos, case scenarios and interactive exercises,
- f. Objectives and goals for the training.
- g. Proposed training methodology, to include video based and in person training
- h. Training topics proposed to supplement the topics listed above.

Records and Reporting Requirements

- Provide the plan to maintain case records for each program participant, including the following:
 - a. Individual assessments
 - **b.** Progress notes
 - c. Discharge summaries
 - **d.** Evaluations
- j. Monthly Reports: Describe the Bidder's proposed monthly report format. Describe how the Bidder will incorporate the pre- and post-assessment results to be used for comparison purposes.
- k. Quarterly Reports: Describe the Bidder's proposed quarterly report format that will include a summary of accomplishments during the quarter, any program accomplishments, problems encountered, and the plans to address problems encountered. The quarterly reports should also present cumulative data for the program.
- Annual Reports: Describe the Bidder's proposed annual report detailing the activities, accomplishments, and expenditures for the contract year.

Program Monitoring/Staffing and Background Program Monitoring and Improvement

- m. Detail the Bidder's plan to monitor its delivery of services and ensure timely responses to problems encountered. Include how the Bidder proposes to use the results to improve services. Include a supervision and development plan for staff.
- n. Staffing and Background Checks: Include a list of staff that will oversee or perform the contracted duties at the correctional facilities. The Bidder should plan to maintain and make available a current listing of staff that includes titles/functions qualifications, salaries, and assignments.

Include a plan for proposed staff members to complete the Volunteer Services process according to Directive #4750.

C. Diversity Practices Questionnaire (5%)

Bidders must complete Attachment G – Diversity Practices Questionnaire as described in this RFP herein. The responses will be evaluated using a separate predetermined rating scale. The resulting scores assigned for diversity practice will be worth up to 5%. The Diversity Practices response is to be packaged in a **separate envelope** labeled as RFP 2023-22 Diversity Practices Questionnaire.

D. Cost Proposal (30%)

The Cost Proposal Form must be completed with no lines omitted. The Bidder shall not deviate from the Cost Proposal Form. Bid prices shall be inclusive of all costs including travel, licenses, insurance, administrative, profit, all labor and equipment costs, reporting or other requirements, all overhead costs, and other ancillary costs. The estimated annual quantities for each title used on Attachment C - Cost Proposal Form are for evaluation purposes only.

XII. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION

A. RFP Questions and Clarifications

Questions and clarifications regarding this RFP must be in writing referencing the RFP number, page number, and section/subsection and emailed to the Contract Procurement Unit at frank.arpey@doccs.ny.gov. Enter "RFP 2023-22" in the subject line.

Prospective Bidders should note that all clarifications and exceptions, including those relating to the terms and conditions of the contract, are to be resolved prior to the submission of a proposal. The deadline for questions and inquiries is by 3:00 p.m. EST on the date specified in Section III – Key Events/Dates. Answers to all questions of a substantive nature will be given to all prospective Bidders in the form of a formal addendum, which will be posted to the following websites: DOCCS https://doccs.nv.gov/procurement-opportunities

and the NYS Contract Reporter https://www.nyscr.ny.gov/ and annexed to and become part of the resultant Contract. DOCCS will issue responses on or about the date listed in Section III – Key Events/Dates. The addendum will be included in the final Contract documentation.

Note: All contacts are subject to certain restrictions defined in State Finance Law §139-j and k (see Section IX.A.1 - Procurement Lobbying Act).

B. Proposal Packaging and Submission

For the purpose of evaluation, each proposal must be submitted in five (5) parts, but mailed together.

 Part I – Response to Mandatory Requirements and Mandatory Forms and Document Requirements - Shall be comprised of the Bidder's response to Minimum Qualifications (Section IV) Mandatory Requirements (Section XI, A) and the submission of mandatory forms and documents included in Attachments E and F and described in Section IX – Legal Required Forms and in other sections of the RFP. Complete and submit one (1) original and one (1) exact copy of each.

Notarized signatures are required on some forms. Include a copy of the **Bid Submission Checklist** (see Attachment H).

- 2. Part II Technical Proposal Submittal Must consist of the technical proposal submittal ONLY. The technical proposal submittal must include a minimum of two (2) originals and six (6) exact copies.
- 3. Part III Diversity Practices Submittal Must consist of the Diversity Practices Questionnaire submittal ONLY. The Diversity Practices Questionnaire must include a minimum of two (2) originals and be clearly marked "RFP 2023-22 Diversity Practices Submittal" in a separate sealed envelope.
- 4. Part IV Cost Proposal Submittal Must consist of the cost proposal submittal ONLY. The cost proposal submittal must include three (3) originals and be clearly marked "RFP 2023-22 Cost Proposal" in a separate sealed envelope.

Each part must be complete in itself in order that the evaluation of each part can be accomplished independently and concurrently, and that the technical submittal can be evaluated strictly on the basis of its merits. **Cost information and Diversity Practices Questionnaire are not to be included in Parts I or II** and must be sealed separately.

The rules established for proposal content and format will be enforced. Variations from the rules prescribed herein may result in disqualification of the proposal. It is in the best interest of the bidder to become familiar with the constraints imposed on its proposal, so that the evaluation process can proceed in a timely manner.

All proposals and accompanying documentation will become the property of the State of New York and will not be returned. The content of each bidder's proposal will be held in strict confidence during the evaluation process. The successful bidder's proposal, including all subsequent correspondence and a copy of the RFP, will be made a part of the contract. Therefore, an authorized representative must sign each original proposal submitted.

PROPOSALS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED VIA FAX OR EMAIL.

Should a Bidder decide not to submit a bid, a completed Bid Declination Form should be submitted (see Attachment D).

C. Proposal Due Date

The completed proposal, with all required attachments and documentation, must be received no later than 3:00 pm, on February 2, 2024. Any proposal received after this date and time may not be accepted.

Please Note: Bidders are reminded to comply with the specific requirements related to the cost component of the proposal.

Proposal must be received in a <u>sealed</u> package marked "**Proposal for RFP 2023-22**" and forwarded to:

Attn: Frank Arpey
NYS Department of Corrections and Community Supervision
Contract Procurement Unit – Support Operations
Proposal for RFP 2023-22
550 Broadway
Menands. NY 12204

XIII. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA AND SELECTION PROCESS

A. Proposal Evaluation and Scoring

DOCCS intends to award <u>one</u> contract to include the Green Haven Hub, Sullivan Hub and NYC Hub as a result of this solicitation.

DOCCS will award a contract based upon evaluation of all aspects of the program according to the needs of the agency and the best interests of the State of New York. Award will go to the provider whose proposal provides the **best value** as determined by DOCCS, pursuant to New York State Finance Law §163 (1)(j). This is defined as the most beneficial **combination of quality and costs** for the services being requested. If the evaluation results in a tie, price shall be the basis for determining the award recipient. The basis for determining the award shall be documented in the procurement record.

A committee of DOCCS personnel will evaluate proposals independently to determine which proposals are most capable of implementing DOCCS requirements based on the following criteria:

Phase 1 - Preliminary Review (Pass/Fail Criteria)

Phase 1 will consist of a review of each original proposal to ensure that all submission requirements (see Section XI, A) are met. Failure to meet any of the submission and mandatory requirements in the original proposal may result in a proposal being considered non-responsive and may result in elimination from further evaluation. All original proposals that meet the submission and mandatory requirements will move to Phase 2. Phase 1 is not scored; it is reviewed for compliance in the pass/fail checklist (see Section XI, A):

Phase 2 - Technical Proposal Submittal (65%)

Phase 2 will consist of evaluation of your detailed technical proposal response (Part II). Proposals will be evaluated based on thoroughness in responding to each item listed in Section XI, B. All proposed services should be adequately and completely described. A paragraph-by-paragraph response in chronological order is advised to provide the Evaluation Committee with the best method to review your proposal.

The Evaluation Committee will grade each item listed in Section XI, B using a 0-5 rating scale. That rating will be applied to the item's weight to determine the item's points. Phase 2 scores are calculated by adding the total points of each evaluator and dividing that number by the total number of evaluators. This will create an average score of all evaluators.

Phase 3 - Diversity Practices (5%)

Respondents must complete Attachment G - Diversity Practices Questionnaire, as described in this RFP herein. The responses will be evaluated using a separate predetermined rating scale. The resulting scores assigned for diversity practice will be worth up to 5%. The Diversity Practices response is to be packaged in a **separate envelope** labeled as RFP 2023-22 Diversity Practices Questionnaire.

Phase 4 - Part IV Cost Proposal Submittal (30%)

Phase 4 will consist of an evaluation of the overall cost (Part IV) of each proposal. Bidders are required to submit pricing using Attachment C – Cost Proposal Form. Each proposal will be scored as follows:

The cost proposal with the lowest total fee will be awarded the maximum possible points. All other bidders will receive a proportionate number of points using the following formula: low bid/bid being evaluated X category weight.

B. Final Composite Score (100%)

The scores for the Technical submittal, Diversity Practices Questionnaire, and Cost submittal will comprise the final composite score. The bid having the highest final composite score will be ranked number one; the bid with the second highest score will be ranked number two and so on. If the evaluation results in a tie, price shall be the basis for determining the award recipient. The basis for determining the award shall be documented in the procurement record.

C. Notification of Award

After the evaluation, the successful Bidder will be notified in writing of a tentative award and that a contract will be forthcoming for execution. The original proposal, and any additions or deletions to the proposal become part of the contract. Contract awards are not final until approved by the Offices of the Attorney General and the State Comptroller.

APPENDIX A

STANDARD CLAUSES FOR NEW YORK STATE CONTRACTS

PLEASE RETAIN THIS DOCUMENT FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
1.	Executory Clause	3
2.	Non-Assignment Clause	3
3.	Comptroller's Approval	3
4.	Workers' Compensation Benefits	3
5.	Non-Discrimination Requirements	3
6.	Wage and Hours Provisions	3-4
7.	Non-Collusive Bidding Certification	4
8.	International Boycott Prohibition	4
9.	Set-Off Rights	4
10.	Records	4
11.	Identifying Information and Privacy Notification	4
12.	Equal Employment Opportunities For Minorities and Women	5
13.	Conflicting Terms	5
14.	Governing Law	5
15.	Late Payment	5
16.	No Arbitration	5
17.	Service of Process	5
18.	Prohibition on Purchase of Tropical Hardwoods	5-6
19.	MacBride Fair Employment Principles	6
20.	Omnibus Procurement Act of 1992	6
21.	Reciprocity and Sanctions Provisions	6
22.	Compliance with Breach Notification and Data Security Laws	6
23.	Compliance with Consultant Disclosure Law	6
24.	Procurement Lobbying	7
25.	Certification of Registration to Collect Sales and Compensating Use Tax by Certain	7
	State Contractors, Affiliates and Subcontractors	
26.	Iran Divestment Act	7
27.	Admissibility of Contract	7

Page 2 June 2023

STANDARD CLAUSES FOR NYS CONTRACTS

The parties to the attached contract, license, lease, amendment or other agreement of any kind (hereinafter, "the contract" or "this contract") agree to be bound by the following clauses which are hereby made a part of the contract (the word "Contractor" herein refers to any party other than the State, whether a contractor, licenser, licensee, lessor, lessee or any other party):

- **1. EXECUTORY CLAUSE.** In accordance with Section 41 of the State Finance Law, the State shall have no liability under this contract to the Contractor or to anyone else beyond funds appropriated and available for this contract.
- 2. NON-ASSIGNMENT CLAUSE. In accordance with Section 138 of the State Finance Law, this contract may not be assigned by the Contractor or its right, title or interest therein assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet or otherwise disposed of without the State's previous written consent, and attempts to do so are null and void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such prior written consent of an assignment of a contract let pursuant to Article XI of the State Finance Law may be waived at the discretion of the contracting agency and with the concurrence of the State Comptroller where the original contract was subject to the State Comptroller's approval, where the assignment is due to a reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Contractor's business entity or enterprise. The State retains its right to approve an assignment and to require that any Contractor demonstrate its responsibility to do business with the State. The Contractor may, however, assign its right to receive payments without the State's prior written consent unless this contract concerns Certificates of Participation pursuant to Article 5-A of the State Finance Law.
- 3. **COMPTROLLER'S APPROVAL.** In accordance with Section 112 of the State Finance Law, if this contract exceeds \$50,000 (or \$75,000 for State University of New York or City University of New York contracts for goods, services, construction and printing, and \$150,000 for State University Health Care Facilities) or if this is an amendment for any amount to a contract which, as so amended, exceeds said statutory amount, or if, by this contract, the State agrees to give something other than money when the value or reasonably estimated value of such consideration exceeds \$25,000, it shall not be valid, effective or binding upon the State until it has been approved by the State Comptroller and filed in his office. Comptroller's approval of contracts let by the Office of General Services, either for itself or its customer agencies by the Office of General Services Business Services Center, is required when such contracts exceed \$85,000. Comptroller's approval of contracts established as centralized contracts through the Office of General Services is required when such contracts exceed \$125,000, and when a purchase order or other procurement transaction issued under such centralized contract exceeds \$200,000.

- **4.** <u>WORKERS'</u> <u>COMPENSATION</u> <u>BENEFITS</u>. In accordance with Section 142 of the State Finance Law, this contract shall be void and of no force and effect unless the Contractor shall provide and maintain coverage during the life of this contract for the benefit of such employees as are required to be covered by the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Law.
- 5. NON-DISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent required by Article 15 of the Executive Law (also known as the Human Rights Law) and all other State and Federal statutory and constitutional non-discrimination provisions, the Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment, nor subject any individual to harassment, because of age, race, creed, color, national origin, citizenship or immigration status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, military status, sex, disability, predisposing genetic characteristics, familial status, marital status, or domestic violence victim status or because the individual has opposed any practices forbidden under the Human Rights Law or has filed a complaint, testified, or assisted in any proceeding under the Human Rights Law. Furthermore, in accordance with Section 220-e of the Labor Law, if this is a contract for the construction, alteration or repair of any public building or public work or for the manufacture, sale or distribution of materials, equipment or supplies, and to the extent that this contract shall be performed within the State of New York, Contractor agrees that neither it nor its subcontractors shall, by reason of race, creed, color, disability, sex, or national origin: (a) discriminate in hiring against any New York State citizen who is qualified and available to perform the work; or (b) discriminate against or intimidate any employee hired for the performance of work under this contract. If this is a building service contract as defined in Section 230 of the Labor Law, then, in accordance with Section 239 thereof, Contractor agrees that neither it nor its subcontractors shall by reason of race, creed, color, national origin, age, sex or disability: (a) discriminate in hiring against any New York State citizen who is qualified and available to perform the work; or (b) discriminate against or intimidate any employee hired for the performance of work under this contract. Contractor is subject to fines of \$50.00 per person per day for any violation of Section 220-e or Section 239 as well as possible termination of this contract and forfeiture of all moneys due hereunder for a second or subsequent violation.
- **6.** WAGE AND HOURS PROVISIONS. If this is a public work contract covered by Article 8 of the Labor Law or a building service contract covered by Article 9 thereof, neither Contractor's employees nor the employees of its subcontractors may be required or permitted to work more than the number of hours or days stated in said statutes, except as otherwise provided in the Labor Law and as set forth in prevailing wage and supplement schedules issued by the State Labor Department. Furthermore, Contractor and its subcontractors must pay at least the prevailing wage rate and pay or provide the prevailing supplements, including the premium rates for overtime pay, as determined by the State Labor Department in

Page 3 June 2023

accordance with the Labor Law. Additionally, effective April 28, 2008, if this is a public work contract covered by Article 8 of the Labor Law, the Contractor understands and agrees that the filing of payrolls in a manner consistent with Subdivision 3-a of Section 220 of the Labor Law shall be a condition precedent to payment by the State of any State approved sums due and owing for work done upon the project.

- **7. NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION.** In accordance with Section 139-d of the State Finance Law, if this contract was awarded based upon the submission of bids, Contractor affirms, under penalty of perjury, that its bid was arrived at independently and without collusion aimed at restricting competition. Contractor further affirms that, at the time Contractor submitted its bid, an authorized and responsible person executed and delivered to the State a non-collusive bidding certification on Contractor's behalf.
- 8. INTERNATIONAL BOYCOTT PROHIBITION. accordance with Section 220-f of the Labor Law and Section 139-h of the State Finance Law, if this contract exceeds \$5,000, the Contractor agrees, as a material condition of the contract, that neither the Contractor nor any substantially owned or affiliated person, firm, partnership or corporation has participated, is participating, or shall participate in an international boycott in violation of the federal Export Administration Act of 1979 (50 USC App. Sections 2401 et seq.) or regulations thereunder. If such Contractor, or any of the aforesaid affiliates of Contractor, is convicted or is otherwise found to have violated said laws or regulations upon the final determination of the United States Commerce Department or any other appropriate agency of the United States subsequent to the contract's execution, such contract, amendment or modification thereto shall be rendered forfeit and void. The Contractor shall so notify the State Comptroller within five (5) business days of such conviction, determination or disposition of appeal (2 NYCRR § 105.4).
- 9. SET-OFF RIGHTS. The State shall have all of its common law, equitable and statutory rights of set-off. These rights shall include, but not be limited to, the State's option to withhold for the purposes of set-off any moneys due to the Contractor under this contract up to any amounts due and owing to the State with regard to this contract, any other contract with any State department or agency, including any contract for a term commencing prior to the term of this contract, plus any amounts due and owing to the State for any other reason including, without limitation, tax delinquencies, fee delinquencies or monetary penalties relative thereto. The State shall exercise its set-off rights in accordance with normal State practices including, in cases of set-off pursuant to an audit, the finalization of such audit by the State agency, its representatives, or the State Comptroller.
- **10. RECORDS.** The Contractor shall establish and maintain complete and accurate books, records, documents, accounts and other evidence directly pertinent to performance under this contract (hereinafter, collectively, the "Records"). The Records

must be kept for the balance of the calendar year in which they were made and for six (6) additional years thereafter. The State Comptroller, the Attorney General and any other person or entity authorized to conduct an examination, as well as the agency or agencies involved in this contract, shall have access to the Records during normal business hours at an office of the Contractor within the State of New York or, if no such office is available, at a mutually agreeable and reasonable venue within the State, for the term specified above for the purposes of inspection, auditing and copying. The State shall take reasonable steps to protect from public disclosure any of the Records which are exempt from disclosure under Section 87 of the Public Officers Law (the "Statute") provided that: (i) the Contractor shall timely inform an appropriate State official, in writing, that said records should not be disclosed; and (ii) said records shall be sufficiently identified; and (iii) designation of said records as exempt under the Statute is reasonable. Nothing contained herein shall diminish, or in any way adversely affect, the State's right to discovery in any pending or future litigation.

- 11. IDENTIFYING INFORMATION AND PRIVACY NOTIFICATION. (a) Identification Number(s). Every invoice or New York State Claim for Payment submitted to a New York State agency by a payee, for payment for the sale of goods or services or for transactions (e.g., leases, easements, licenses, etc.) related to real or personal property must include the payee's identification number. The number is any or all of the following: (i) the payee's Federal employer identification number, (ii) the payee's Federal social security number, and/or (iii) the payee's Vendor Identification Number assigned by the Statewide Financial System. Failure to include such number or numbers may delay payment. Where the payee does not have such number or numbers, the payee, on its invoice or Claim for Payment, must give the reason or reasons why the payee does not have such number or numbers.
- (b) Privacy Notification. (1) The authority to request the above personal information from a seller of goods or services or a lessor of real or personal property, and the authority to maintain such information, is found in Section 5 of the State Tax Law. Disclosure of this information by the seller or lessor to the State is mandatory. The principal purpose for which the information is collected is to enable the State to identify individuals, businesses and others who have been delinquent in filing tax returns or may have understated their tax liabilities and to generally identify persons affected by the taxes administered by the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance. The information will be used for tax administration purposes and for any other purpose authorized by law. (2) The personal information is requested by the purchasing unit of the agency contracting to purchase the goods or services or lease the real or personal property covered by this contract or lease. The information is maintained in the Statewide Financial System by the Vendor Management Unit within the Bureau of State Expenditures, Office of the State Comptroller, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12236.

Page 4 June 2023

- 12. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR MINORITIES AND WOMEN. In accordance with Section 312 of the Executive Law and 5 NYCRR Part 143, if this (i) a written agreement or purchase order instrument, providing for a total expenditure in excess of \$25,000.00, whereby a contracting agency is committed to expend or does expend funds in return for labor, services, supplies, equipment, materials or any combination of the foregoing, to be performed for, or rendered or furnished to the contracting agency; or (ii) a written agreement in excess of \$100,000.00 whereby a contracting agency is committed to expend or does expend funds for the acquisition, construction, demolition, replacement, major repair or renovation of real property and improvements thereon; or (iii) a written agreement in excess of \$100,000.00 whereby the owner of a State assisted housing project is committed to expend or does expend funds for the acquisition, construction, demolition, replacement, major repair or renovation of real property and improvements thereon for such project, then the following shall apply and by signing this agreement the Contractor certifies and affirms that it is Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy that:
- (a) The Contractor will not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status, shall make and document its conscientious and active efforts to employ and utilize minority group members and women in its work force on State contracts and will undertake or continue existing programs of affirmative action to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination. Affirmative action shall mean recruitment, employment, job assignment, promotion, upgradings, demotion, transfer, layoff, or termination and rates of pay or other forms of compensation;
- (b) at the request of the contracting agency, the Contractor shall request each employment agency, labor union, or authorized representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, to furnish a written statement that such employment agency, labor union or representative will not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status and that such union or representative will affirmatively cooperate in the implementation of the Contractor's obligations herein; and
- (c) the Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that, in the performance of the State contract, all qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status.

Contractor will include the provisions of "(a), (b) and (c)" above, in every subcontract over \$25,000.00 for the construction, demolition, replacement, major repair, renovation, planning or design of real property and improvements thereon (the "Work") except where the Work is for the beneficial use of the Contractor. Section 312 does not

apply to: (i) work, goods or services unrelated to this contract; or (ii) employment outside New York State. The State shall consider compliance by a contractor or subcontractor with the requirements of any federal law concerning equal employment opportunity which effectuates the purpose of this clause. The contracting agency shall determine whether the imposition of the requirements of the provisions hereof duplicate or conflict with any such federal law and if such duplication or conflict exists, the contracting agency shall waive the applicability of Section 312 to the extent of such duplication or conflict. Contractor will comply with all duly promulgated and lawful rules and regulations of the Department of Economic Development's Division of Minority and Women's Business Development pertaining hereto.

- **13.** <u>CONFLICTING TERMS</u>. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the contract (including any and all attachments thereto and amendments thereof) and the terms of this Appendix A, the terms of this Appendix A shall control.
- **14. GOVERNING LAW.** This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York except where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise.
- **15.** <u>LATE PAYMENT</u>. Timeliness of payment and any interest to be paid to Contractor for late payment shall be governed by Article 11-A of the State Finance Law to the extent required by law.
- **16.** <u>NO ARBITRATION</u>. Disputes involving this contract, including the breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding arbitration (except where statutorily authorized), but must, instead, be heard in a court of competent jurisdiction of the State of New York.
- 17. SERVICE OF PROCESS. In addition to the methods of service allowed by the State Civil Practice Law & Rules ("CPLR"), Contractor hereby consents to service of process upon it by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. Service hereunder shall be complete upon Contractor's actual receipt of process or upon the State's receipt of the return thereof by the United States Postal Service as refused or undeliverable. Contractor must promptly notify the State, in writing, of each and every change of address to which service of process can be made. Service by the State to the last known address shall be sufficient. Contractor will have thirty (30) calendar days after service hereunder is complete in which to respond.
- **18. PROHIBITION ON PURCHASE OF TROPICAL HARDWOODS.** The Contractor certifies and warrants that all wood products to be used under this contract award will be in accordance with, but not limited to, the specifications and provisions of Section 165 of the State Finance Law, (Use of Tropical Hardwoods) which prohibits purchase and use of tropical hardwoods, unless specifically exempted, by the State or any governmental agency or political subdivision or public benefit corporation. Qualification for an exemption under this

Page 5 June 2023

law will be the responsibility of the contractor to establish to meet with the approval of the State.

In addition, when any portion of this contract involving the use of woods, whether supply or installation, is to be performed by any subcontractor, the prime Contractor will indicate and certify in the submitted bid proposal that the subcontractor has been informed and is in compliance with specifications and provisions regarding use of tropical hardwoods as detailed in § 165 State Finance Law. Any such use must meet with the approval of the State; otherwise, the bid may not be considered responsive. Under bidder certifications, proof of qualification for exemption will be the responsibility of the Contractor to meet with the approval of the State.

- 19. MACBRIDE FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRINCIPLES. In accordance with the MacBride Fair Employment Principles (Chapter 807 of the Laws of 1992), the Contractor hereby stipulates that the Contractor either (a) has no business operations in Northern Ireland, or (b) shall take lawful steps in good faith to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland in accordance with the MacBride Fair Employment Principles (as described in Section 165 of the New York State Finance Law), and shall permit independent monitoring of compliance with such principles.
- 20. OMNIBUS PROCUREMENT ACT OF 1992. It is the policy of New York State to maximize opportunities for the participation of New York State business enterprises, including minority- and women-owned business enterprises as bidders, subcontractors and suppliers on its procurement contracts.

Information on the availability of New York State subcontractors and suppliers is available from:

NYS Department of Economic Development Division for Small Business and Technology Development 625 Broadway

Albany, New York 12245 Telephone: 518-292-5100

A directory of certified minority- and women-owned business enterprises is available from:

NYS Department of Economic Development Division of Minority and Women's Business Development 633 Third Avenue 33rd Floor New York, NY 10017

646-846-7364

email: mwbebusinessdev@esd.nv.gov

https://ny.newnycontracts.com/FrontEnd/searchcertifieddir

ectory.asp

The Omnibus Procurement Act of 1992 (Chapter 844 of the Laws of 1992, codified in State Finance Law § 139-i and Public Authorities Law § 2879(3)(n)–(p)) requires that by signing this bid proposal or contract, as applicable, Contractors certify that whenever the total bid amount is greater than \$1 million:

- (a) The Contractor has made reasonable efforts to encourage the participation of New York State Business Enterprises as suppliers and subcontractors, including certified minority- and women-owned business enterprises, on this project, and has retained the documentation of these efforts to be provided upon request to the State;
- (b) The Contractor has complied with the Federal Equal Opportunity Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-261), as amended;
- (c) The Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to provide notification to New York State residents of employment opportunities on this project through listing any such positions with the Job Service Division of the New York State Department of Labor, or providing such notification in such manner as is consistent with existing collective bargaining contracts or agreements. The Contractor agrees to document these efforts and to provide said documentation to the State upon request; and
- (d) The Contractor acknowledges notice that the State may seek to obtain offset credits from foreign countries as a result of this contract and agrees to cooperate with the State in these efforts.

21. RECIPROCITY AND SANCTIONS PROVISIONS.

Bidders are hereby notified that if their principal place of business is located in a country, nation, province, state or political subdivision that penalizes New York State vendors, and if the goods or services they offer will be substantially produced or performed outside New York State, the Omnibus

Procurement Act 1994 and 2000 amendments (Chapter 684 and Chapter 383, respectively, codified in State Finance Law § 165(6) and Public Authorities Law § 2879(5)) require that they be denied contracts which they would otherwise obtain. NOTE: As of May 2023, the list of discriminatory jurisdictions subject to this provision includes the states of South Carolina, Alaska, West Virginia, Wyoming, Louisiana and Hawaii.

- 22. COMPLIANCE WITH BREACH NOTIFICATION AND DATA SECURITY LAWS. Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the New York State Information Security Breach and Notification Act (General Business Law §§ 899-aa and 899-bb and State Technology Law § 208).
- 23. COMPLIANCE WITH **CONSULTANT** DISCLOSURE LAW. If this is a contract for consulting services, defined for purposes of this requirement to include analysis, evaluation, research, training, data processing, computer programming, engineering, environmental, health, and mental health services, accounting, auditing, paralegal, legal or similar services, then, in accordance with Section 163 (4)(g) of the State Finance Law (as amended by Chapter 10 of the Laws of 2006), the Contractor shall timely, accurately and properly comply with the requirement to submit an annual employment report for the contract to the agency that awarded the contract, the Department of Civil Service and the State Comptroller.

Page 6 June 2023

24. PROCUREMENT LOBBYING. To the extent this agreement is a "procurement contract" as defined by State Finance Law §§ 139-j and 139-k, by signing this agreement the contractor certifies and affirms that all disclosures made in accordance with State Finance Law §§ 139-j and 139-k are complete, true and accurate. In the event such certification is found to be intentionally false or intentionally incomplete, the State may terminate the agreement by providing written notification to the Contractor in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

25. <u>CERTIFICATION OF REGISTRATION TO COLLECT SALES AND COMPENSATING USE TAX BY CERTAIN STATE CONTRACTORS, AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS.</u>

To the extent this agreement is a contract as defined by Tax Law § 5-a, if the contractor fails to make the certification required by Tax Law § 5-a or if during the term of the contract, the Department of Taxation and Finance or the covered agency, as defined by Tax Law § 5-a, discovers that the certification, made under penalty of perjury, is false, then such failure to file or false certification shall be a material breach of this contract and this contract may be terminated, by providing written notification to the Contractor in accordance with the terms of the agreement, if the covered agency determines that such action is in the best interest of the State.

26. IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies in accordance with State Finance Law § 165-a that it is not on the "Entities Determined to be Non-Responsive Bidders/Offerers pursuant to the New York State Iran Divestment Act of 2012" ("Prohibited Entities List") posted at: https://ogs.ny.gov/iran-divestment-act-2012

Contractor further certifies that it will not utilize on this Contract any subcontractor that is identified on the Prohibited Entities List. Contractor agrees that should it seek to renew or extend this Contract, it must provide the same certification at the time the Contract is renewed or extended. Contractor also agrees that any proposed Assignee of this Contract will be required to certify that it is not on the Prohibited Entities List before the contract assignment will be approved by the State.

During the term of the Contract, should the state agency receive information that a person (as defined in State Finance Law § 165-a) is in violation of the above-referenced certifications, the state agency will review such information and offer the person an opportunity to respond. If the person fails to demonstrate that it has ceased its engagement in the investment activity which is in violation of the Act within 90 days after the determination of such violation, then the state agency shall take such action as may be appropriate and provided for by law, rule, or contract, including, but not limited to, imposing sanctions, seeking compliance, recovering damages, or declaring the Contractor in default.

The state agency reserves the right to reject any bid, request for assignment, renewal or extension for an entity that appears on the Prohibited Entities List prior to the award, assignment, renewal or extension of a contract, and to pursue a responsibility review with respect to any entity that is awarded a contract and appears on the Prohibited Entities list after contract award.

27. ADMISSIBILITY OF REPRODUCTION OF CONTRACT. Notwithstanding the best evidence rule or any other legal principle or rule of evidence to the contrary, the Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it waives any and all objections to the admissibility into evidence at any court proceeding or to the use at any examination before trial of an electronic reproduction of this contract, in the form approved by the State Comptroller, if such approval was required, regardless of whether the original of said contract is in existence.

Page 7 June 2023

ATTACHMENT B

Application Cover Sheet

New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision

Application Cover Sheet

Applicant Legal Name:	
Contact Person:	
Business Address:	
Phone:	E-Mail Address:
Fax:	Website Address:
Federal ID #:	NYS Vendor ID #:
Submitted By:	
Name of Authorized Official:	
Title of Authorized Official:	
Signature of Authorized Official:	
Date:	
NOTE: Signature binds applicant to a fi the submission.	rm offer for a 180-day period from the date of

ATTACHMENT C

Cost Proposal Form

EXPENDITURE BASED BUDGET ATTACHMENT C - RFP # 2023-22

PROJECT NAME:	
CONTRACTOR SFS PAYEE NAME:	

SUMMARY

Category of Expense	A) Budget	B) Indirect Costs *	C) Sub-Total	D) Third Party Funds	E) Total Budget (A+B=C-D=E)
1. Personal Services					
a) Salary					
b) Fringe					
Subtotal					
2. Non Personal Services					
a) Contractual Services					
b) Travel					
c) Equipment					
d) Space/Property & Utilities					
e) Operating Expenses					
f) Other					
Subtotal					
Total					

Indirect Cos	st Percentage is	%

PERSONAL SERVICES DETAIL

In the Salary section only include staff positions related to the implementation and administration of the program. If Salary is not applicable leave this section blank.

Position Title	Annualized Salary Per Position	Standard Work Week	Percent of Effort	Number of Months	Funds	Indirect Costs	Third Party Funds	Total Budget
1.								
2.								
3.								
4.								
5.								
6.								
TOTAL								

SALARY JUSTIFICATION AND NARRATIVE
1. Type/Description of Salary, Enter Justification Below
1. Provide an explanation of any exceptions in staffing patterns and/or annual salary costs:
2. Type/Deparintion of Colony Enter Justification Polony
2. Type/Description of Salary, Enter Justification Below

2. Provide an explanation of any exceptions in staffing patterns and/or annual salary costs:
3. Type/Description of Salary, Enter Justification Below
2. Duravida an avalanation of any avanting in staffing natterns and/avangual salam acets.
3. Provide an explanation of any exceptions in staffing patterns and/or annual salary costs:
4. Type/Description of Salary, Enter Justification Below
+. Type/Description of Galary, Enter dustineation Bolow
4. Provide an explanation of any exceptions in staffing patterns and/or annual salary costs:
5. Type/Description of Salary, Enter Justification Below

5. Provide an explanation of any exceptions in staffing patterns and/or annual salary costs:
6. Type/Description of Salary, Enter Justification Below
6. Provide an explanation of any exceptions in staffing patterns and/or annual salary costs:
NOTE: If more positions are needed, please add them using the same format above

FRINGE BENEFIT DETAIL

Fringe Benefits should be budgeted in line with your organization's Standard Fringe Benefit Policy and/or Negotiated Bargaining Agreements and should not Exceed the current NYS rate. Provide a brief explanation of the percentage and composition of the fringe benefit structure. If fringe is not applicable, leave this section blank.

Fringe – Type/Description	Funds	Indirect Costs	Third Party Funds	Total Budget
Full Time Fringe Percent%				
Part Time Fringe Percent%				
TOTAL				

1. Type Description of Fringe: Full Time Fringe, Enter Justification Below:

2. Type Description of Fringe: Part Time Fringe, Enter Justification Below:
Fringe Benefits should be budgeted in line with your organization's Standard Fringe Benefit Police and/or Negotiated Bargaining Agreements and should not exceed the current NYS rate. Provide a brief explanation of the percentage and composition of the budgeted fringe benefit structure. If the budgeted fringe benefits represent an exception to the current NYS rate, please explain the difference.

TRAVEL DETAIL

Travel Type/Description NOTE: Travel will be reimbursed in accordance with OSC Travel Guidelines https://www.osc.state.ny.us/agencies/travel/manual.pdf and BSC Non-Employee Travel Guidelines https://www.osc.state.ny.us/state-agencies/travel?redirect=legacy	Funds	Indirect Costs	Third Party Funds	Total Budget
NOTE: Not-for-Profit Organizations will not be reimbursed sales tax since they are exempt				
Mileage miles x per mile				
Vehicle Rental				
Public Transportation (Train, Bus, Subway)				
Lodging				

Wodio		
Incidentals		
TOTAL		
TRAVEL JUSTIFICATION		
Provide a justification of each description of travel included in the budget		
TRAVEL NARRATIVE		

OPERATING EXPENSES DETAIL

Meals

Operating Expenses Type/Description NOTE: Not-for-Profit Organizations will not be reimbursed sales tax since they are exempt NOTE: Insurances are the responsibility of the vendor and should not be included as a budgeted line item	Funds	Indirect Costs	Third Party Funds	Total Budget
Telephone (land-lines)				
Telephone (cell phones) must be registered to Organization – personal phones will not be reimbursed				
Photo Copier				
Office Supplies				

Postage				
Other:				
TOTAL				
inter justification for each operating expense listed in the budget				
OPERATING EXPENSES NARRATIVE I applicable, please provide an explanation of any extraordinary costs or significant cha ave a dollar threshold whereby the operating expenses of a certain amount must be ju	inges to the orig	inal contract. F	or example, a p	rogram may

OTHER EXPENSES DETAIL

If Other Expenses is not applicable, leave this section blank.

Other Expenses Type/Description NOTE: Not-for-Profit Organizations will not be reimbursed sales tax since they	Funds	Indirect Costs	Third Party	Total Budget
are exempt. NOTE: Insurances are the responsibility of the vendor and should not be included			Funds	
as a budgeted line item				
TOTAL				
OTHER EXPENSES JUSTIFICATION Enter justification for each other expense listed in the budget				
OTHER EXPENSES NARRATIVE If applicable, please provide an explanation of any extraordinary costs or significant char have a dollar threshold whereby the other expenses of a certain amount must be justified		inal contract. F	or example, a p	rogram may

ATTACHMENT D

Bid Declination Form

New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision Attachment D

RFP 2023-22 Incarcerated Individual Parenting Program Bid Declination Form

Please complete the information below and return this form by fax or email to the person listed at the bottom of the form.

Company Name:	
This company will not (check all that apply)	submit a proposal in response to the above-referenced RFP because:
We do not	have the capacity to administer the services.
We do not	provide the type of services described in the RFP.
We are not	interested in working with your Agency.
Other reaso	on(s) – please explain
Please remove our co	mpany from future RFP solicitations: No Yes
Name of Contact Pers	on: Date Returned:
Phone Number:	Fax Number:
Thank you for providing	g information that will help us with future bids for this service.
•	orrections & Community Supervision perations / Contract Procurement Unit

550 Broadway Menands, New York 12204 Email: Frank.Arpey@doccs.ny.gov

ATTACHMENT E

Legal Required Forms

All bidders <u>must submit the following required forms with proposal</u>. Forms are provided in this attachment unless otherwise noted:

- Procurement Lobbying / Prior Non-Responsibility / Procurement Lobbying Termination
- Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire (if not completed online) (see Section IX.A.2 for information and web links to complete)
- Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of Interest or Detrimental Effect
- M/WBE and EEO Policy Statement (see Attachment F)
- EEO Staffing Plan (Form EEO-100) (see Attachment F)
- EO 177 and 139 Certification (Attachment E)
- EO 16 (Attachment E)

The following documentation will be required after notice of tentative award:

- Contractor Insurance Requirements (see Section IX.B.1-2):
 - Commercial General Liability
 - o Comprehensive Business Automobile Liability
 - Errors & Omissions Liability
- Compliance with Workers' Compensation and NYS Disability Benefits Insurance Requirements (see Section IX.B.3):
 - o Proof of Compliance with Workers' Compensation Coverage
 - o Proof of Compliance with Disability Benefits Coverage
- Tax and Finance Form ST-220-CA (Form ST-220-TD is filed directly with NYS Department of Tax & Finance)
- Consultant Disclosure Form A
- Non-Disclosure Agreement

PROCUREMENT LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

By signing, the offerer/bidder affirms that it understands and agrees to comply with the NYS Office of General Services (OGS) procedures relative to permissible contacts, as required by State Finance Law §139-j and §139-k.

Procurement Lobbying information can be accessed at: https://ogs.ny.gov/acpl

	grees to comply with the procedures of the Government En red by State Finance Law §139-j (3) and §139-j (6) (b).	tity
By:	Date:	
Name:	Title:	
Contractor Name:		
Contractor Address:		
	-	
Prior Non-Responsibility Determination	ons – State Finance Law §139-k	
1. Has any Government Entity made a finding	ng of non-responsibility against this organization/company? No	Yes
•	n-responsibility due to a violation of SFL§139-j or r incomplete information to a Government Entity?	Yes
Has any Government Entity terminated or organization/company due to the intention	r withheld a procurement contract with this onal provision of false or incomplete information? No	Yes
If yes to any of the above questions, provide	e complete details on a separate page and attach.	
Offerer Certification:		
I certify that all information provided to this complete, true and accurate.	e Governmental Entity with respect to State Finance Law §	}139-k
Ву:	Date:	
Name:	Title:	

Procurement Lobbying Termination

DOCCS reserves the right to terminate this contract in the event it is found that the certification filed by the Offeror/bidder in accordance with New York State Finance Law §139-k was intentionally false or intentionally incomplete. Upon such finding, DOCCS may exercise its termination right by providing written notice to the Offeror/bidder in accordance with the written notification terms of the contract.

Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of Interest or Detrimental Effect

The Firm offering to provide commodities/services pursuant to this RFP, as a contractor, joint venture contractor, subcontractor, or consultant, attests that its performance of the services outlined in this solicitation does not and will not create a conflict of interest with nor position the Firm to breach any other contract currently in force with the State of New York.

Furthermore, the Firm attests that it will not act in any manner that is detrimental to any State project on which the Firm is rendering services. Specifically, the Firm attests that:

- 1. The fulfillment of obligations by the Firm, as proposed in the response, does not violate any existing contracts or agreements between the Firm and the State;
- 2. The fulfillment of obligations by the Firm, as proposed in the response, does not and will not create any conflict of interest, or perception thereof, with any current role or responsibility that the Firm has with regard to any existing contracts or agreements between the Firm and the State;
- 3. The fulfillment of the obligations by the Firm, as proposed in the response, does not and will not compromise the Firm's ability to carry out its obligations under any existing contracts between the Firm and the State;
- 4. The fulfillment of any other contractual obligations that the Firm has with the State will not affect or influence its ability to perform under any contract with the State resulting from this RFP;
- 5. During the negotiation and execution of any contract resulting from this RFP, the Firm will not knowingly take any action or make any decision which creates a potential for conflict of interest or might cause a detrimental impact to the State as a whole including, but not limited to, any action or decision to divert resources from one State project to another;
- 6. In fulfilling obligations under each of its State contracts, including any contract which results from this RFP, the Firm will act in accordance with the terms of each of its State contracts and will not knowingly take any action or make any decision which might cause a detrimental impact to the State as a whole including, but not limited to, any action or decision to divert recourses from one State project to another;
- 7. No former officer or employee of the State who is now employed by the Firm, nor any former officer or employee or the Firm who is now employed by the State, has played a role with regard to the administration of this contract procurement in a manner that may violate section 73(8)(a) of the State Ethics Law; and
- 8. The Firm has not and shall not offer to any employee, member or director of the State any gift, whether in the form of money, service, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise, or in any other form, under circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended to influence said employee, member or director, or could reasonably be expected to influence said employed, member or director, in the performance of the official duty of said employee, member or director or was intended as a reward for any official action on the part of said employee, member or director.

Firms responding to this RFP should note that the State recognizes that conflicts may occur in the future because a Firm may have existing or new relationships. The State will review the nature of any such new relationships and reserves the right to terminate the contract for cause if, in its judgment, a real or potential conflict of interest cannot be cured.

Name, Title:	
Signature:	Date:

This form must be signed by an authorized executive or legal representative.



NYS REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 177 CERTIFICATION

The New York State Human Rights Law, Article 15 of the Executive Law, prohibits discrimination and harassment based on age, race, creed, color, national origin, sex, pregnancy or pregnancy-related conditions, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, marital status, familial status, domestic violence victim status, prior arrest or conviction record, military status or predisposing genetic characteristics.

The Human Rights Law may also require reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities and pregnancy-related conditions. A reasonable accommodation is an adjustment to a job or work environment that enables a person with a disability to perform the essential functions of a job in a reasonable manner. The Human Rights Law may also require reasonable accommodation in employment on the basis of Sabbath observance or religious practices.

Generally, the Human Rights Law applies to:

- all employers of four or more people, employment agencies, labor organizations and apprenticeship training programs in all instances of discrimination or harassment;
- employers with fewer than four employees in all cases involving sexual harassment; and,
- any employer of domestic workers in cases involving sexual harassment or harassment based on gender, race, religion or national origin.

In accordance with Executive Order No. 177, the Contractor hereby certifies that it does not have institutional policies or practices that fail to address the harassment and discrimination of individuals on the basis of their age, race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, marital status, military status, or other protected status under the Human Rights Law.

Executive Order No. 177 and this certification do not affect institutional policies or practices that are protected by existing law, including but not limited to the First Amendment of the United States Constitution, Article 1, Section 3 of the New York State Constitution, and Section 296 (11) of the New York State Human Rights Law.

STATE FINANCE LAW § 139-L CERTIFICATION

Contractor and each person signing on behalf of any Contractor certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that the Contractor has and has implemented a written policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace and provides annual sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees. Such policy shall, at a minimum, meet the requirements of section two hundred one-g of the labor law.

If the Contractor cannot make the foregoing certification, such Contractor shall so state and shall furnish a signed statement that sets forth in detail the reasons that the Contractor cannot make the certification.

By signing you certify your express authority to sign on behalf of yourself, your company, or other entity and full knowledge and acceptance of this Certification document and that all information provided is complete, true and accurate.

Authorized Signature	D	ate
Print Name	Ti	tle
Company Name		
D/B/A - Doing Business As (if ap	plicable)	
Address		
City	State	Zip

Certification Under Executive Order No. 16 Prohibiting State Agencies and Authorities from Contracting with Businesses Conducting Business in Russia

Executive Order No. 16 provides that "all Affected State Entities are directed to refrain from entering into any new contract or renewing any existing contract with an entity conducting business operations in Russia." The complete text of Executive Order No. 16 can be found here.

The Executive Order remains in effect while sanctions imposed by the federal government are in effect. Accordingly, vendors who may be excluded from award because of current business operations in Russia are nevertheless encouraged to respond to solicitations to preserve their contracting opportunities in case the sanctions are lifted during a solicitation or even after award in the case of some solicitations.

As defined in Executive Order No. 16, an "entity conducting business operations in Russia" means an institution or company, wherever located, conducting any commercial activity inRussia or transacting business with theRussian Government or with commercial entities headquartered inRussia or with their principal place of business inRussia in the form of contracting, sales, purchasing, investment, or any business partnership.

Is Vendor an entity conducting business operations in Russia, as defined above? Please answer by checking one of the following boxes:

	No, Vendor does not conduct business operations in Russia within the meaning of Executive Order No. 16.
2.a	Yes, Vendor conducts business operations in Russia within the meaning of Executive
	Order No. 16 but has taken steps to wind down business operations in Russia or is
	inthe process of winding down business operations in Russia. (Please provide a
	detaileddescriptionofthewinddownprocessandascheduleforcompletion.)
2.b	Yes, Vendor conducts business operations in Russia within the meaning of Executive
	OrderNo.16butonlytotheextentnecessarytoprovidevitalhealthandsafety
	services within Russia or to comply with federal law, regulations, executive orders, or
	directives. (Please provide a detailed description of the services being provided or
	the relevant laws, regulations, etc.)
3.	Yes, Vendor conducts business operations in Russia within the meaning of Executive Order No. 16.
	0.100.100.100
nd operatio	ned certifies under penalties of perjury that they are knowledgeable about the Vendor's business ons and that the answer provided herein is true to the best of their knowledge and belief. dor Name:
nd operatio	ned certifies under penalties of perjury that they are knowledgeable about the Vendor's business ons and that the answer provided herein is true to the best of their knowledge and belief. dor Name: (legal entity)
nd operatio	ned certifies under penalties of perjury that they are knowledgeable about the Vendor's business ons and that the answer provided herein is true to the best of their knowledge and belief. dor Name: (legal entity) By:
nd operatio	ned certifies under penalties of perjury that they are knowledgeable about the Vendor's business ons and that the answer provided herein is true to the best of their knowledge and belief. dor Name: (legal entity)
nd operatio	ned certifies under penalties of perjury that they are knowledgeable about the Vendor's business ons and that the answer provided herein is true to the best of their knowledge and belief. dor Name: (legal entity) By:
nd operatio	ned certifies under penalties of perjury that they are knowledgeable about the Vendor's business ons and that the answer provided herein is true to the best of their knowledge and belief. dor Name: (legal entity) By: (signature)

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION FORMS (Pursuant to Section 5-A of the Tax Law)

Form ST-220-CA (2 pages)

Regardless of whether ST-220-TD is being filed/updated for this bid or not, these 2 pages must be completed, signed and returned with this bid.

Form available at:

http://www.tax.ny.gov/pdf/current_forms/st/st220ca_fill_in.pdf

Form ST-220-TD (4 pages)

If filing with the Department of Taxation& Finance for the first time, or previously submitted information needs to be updated, these 4 pages must be removed from this bid, completed, signed and submitted directly to the Department of Taxation and Finance.

Form available at:

http://www.tax.ny.gov/pdf/current_forms/st/st220td_fill_in.pdf



Contractor Certification to Covered Agency (Pursuant to Section 5-a of the Tax Law, as amended, effective April 26, 2006)

For information, consult Publication 223, Questions and Answers Concerning Tax Law Section 5-a (see Need Help? on back).

Contractor name					For covered agency use only
Contractor's principal place of business		City	State	ZIP code	Contract number or description
Contractor's mailing address (if different that	n above)				Estimated contract value over the full term of contract (but not
Contractor's federal employer identification	n number (EIN) C	ontractor's sales t	ax ID number (if different fro	om contractor's EIN)	including renewals)
Contractor's telephone number	Covered agency na	ame			
Covered agency address					Covered agency telephone number
I,					
contractor's knowledge, the inform The contractor has previously filed	•		•	on with	
and, to the best of the contractor's as of the current date, and thus the	0 .			y filed Form ST-	ert contract number or description) 220-TD, is correct and complete
Sworn to this day of	, 20	_			
(sign before a nota	ary public)			(titi	ie)

Instructions

General information

Tax Law section 5-a was amended, effective April 26, 2006. On or after that date, in all cases where a contract is subject to Tax Law section 5-a, a contractor must file (1) Form ST-220-CA, Contractor Certification to Covered Agency, with a covered agency, and (2) Form ST-220-TD with the Tax Department before a contract may take effect. The circumstances when a contract is subject to section 5-a are listed in Publication 223, Q&A 3. See Need help? for more information on how to obtain this publication. In addition, a contractor must file a new Form ST-220-CA with a covered agency before an existing contract with such agency may be renewed.

Note: Form ST-220-CA must be signed by a person authorized to make the certification on behalf of the contractor, and the acknowledgement on page 2 of this form must be completed before a notary public.

When to complete this form

As set forth in Publication 223, a contract is subject to section 5-a, and you must make the required certification(s), if:

- i. The procuring entity is a covered agency within the meaning of the statute (see Publication 223, Q&A 5);
- ii. The contractor is a contractor within the meaning of the statute (see Publication 223, Q&A 6); and
- iii. The contract is a contract within the meaning of the statute. This is the case when it (a) has a value in excess of \$100,000 and (b) is a contract for commodities or services, as such terms are defined for purposes of the statute (see Publication 223, Q&A 8 and 9).

Furthermore, the procuring entity must have begun the solicitation to purchase on or after January 1, 2005, and the resulting contract must have been awarded, amended, extended, renewed, or assigned on or after April 26, 2006 (the effective date of the section 5-a amendments).

Individual, Corporation, Partnership, or LLC Acknowledgment

STATE OF } : SS.:
COUNTY OF }
On the day of in the year 20 , before me personally appeared ,
known to me to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument, who, being duly sworn by me did depose and say that
_he resides at ,
Town of
County of
State of; and further that:
[Mark an \boldsymbol{X} in the appropriate box and complete the accompanying statement.]
(If an individual): _he executed the foregoing instrument in his/her name and on his/her own behalf.
☐ (If a corporation): _he is the
of
☐ (If a partnership): _he is a
of, the partnership described in said instrument; that, by the terms of said partnership, _he is authorized to execute the foregoing instrument on behalf of the partnership for purposes set forth therein; and that, pursuant to that authority, _he executed the foregoing instrument in the name of and on behalf of said partnership as the act and deed of said partnership.
(If a limited liability company): _he is a duly authorized member of, LLC, the limited liability company described in said instrument; that _he is authorized to execute the foregoing instrument on behalf of the limited liability company for purposes set forth therein; and that, pursuant to that authority, _he executed the foregoing instrument in the name of and on behalf of said limited liability company as the act and deed of said limited liability company.
Notary Public
Registration No.

Privacy notification

The Commissioner of Taxation and Finance may collect and maintain personal information pursuant to the New York State Tax Law, including but not limited to, sections 5-a, 171, 171-a, 287, 308, 429, 475, 505, 697, 1096, 1142, and 1415 of that Law; and may require disclosure of social security numbers pursuant to 42 USC 405(c)(2)(C)(i).

This information will be used to determine and administer tax liabilities and, when authorized by law, for certain tax offset and exchange of tax information programs as well as for any other lawful purpose.

Information concerning quarterly wages paid to employees is provided to certain state agencies for purposes of fraud prevention, support enforcement, evaluation of the effectiveness of certain employment and training programs and other purposes authorized by law.

Failure to provide the required information may subject you to civil or criminal penalties, or both, under the Tax Law.

This information is maintained by the Manager of Document Management, NYS Tax Department, W A Harriman Campus, Albany NY 12227; telephone (518) 457-5181.

Need help?



Visit our Web site at www.tax.ny.gov

- · get information and manage your taxes online
- · check for new online services and features

Telephone assistance

Sales Tax Information Center:

(518) 485-2889

To order forms and publications:

(518) 457-5431

Text Telephone (TTY) Hotline (for persons with hearing and speech disabilities using a TTY): (518) 485-5082

Persons with disabilities: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we will ensure that our lobbies, offices, meeting rooms, and other facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. If you have questions about special accommodations for persons with disabilities, call the information center.



Department of Taxation and Finance

Contractor Certification

(Pursuant to Tax Law Section 5-a, as amended, effective April 26, 2006)

For information, consult Publication 223, Questions and Answers Concerning Tay Law Section 5-a (see Need help? below)

ST-220-TD

(4/15)

Contractor name			
Contractor's principal place of business	City	State	ZIP code
Contractor's mailing address (if different than above)	City	State	ZIP code
Contractor's federal employer identification number (EIN)	Contractor's sales tax ID number (#	f different from contractor's EIN)	Contractor's telephone number
Covered agency or state agency	Contract number or description		Covered agency telephone number
Covered agency address	City	State	ZIP code

General information

Tax Law section 5-a, as amended, effective April 26, 2006, requires certain contractors awarded certain state contracts valued at more than \$100,000 to certify to the Tax Department that they are registered to collect New York State and local sales and compensating use taxes, if they made sales delivered by any means to locations within New York State of tangible personal property or taxable services having a cumulative value in excess of \$300,000, measured over a specified period. In addition, contractors must certify to the Tax Department that each affiliate and subcontractor exceeding such sales threshold during a specified period is registered to collect New York State and local sales and compensating use taxes. Contractors must also file Form ST-220-CA. Contractor Certification to Covered Agency, certifying to the procuring state entity that they filed Form ST-220-TD with the Tax Department and that the information contained on Form ST-220-TD is correct and complete as of the date they file Form ST-220-CA

All sections must be completed including all fields on the top of this page, all sections on page 2, Schedule A on page 3, if applicable, and *Individual, Corporation, Partnership, or LLC Acknowledgement* on page 4. If you do not complete these areas, the form will be returned to you for completion.

For more detailed information regarding this form and Tax Law section 5-a, see Publication 223, Questions and Answers Concerning Tax Law Section 5-a, (as amended, effective April 26, 2006). See Need help? for more information on how to obtain this publication.

Note: Form ST-220-TD must be signed by a person authorized to make the certification on behalf of the contractor, and the acknowledgement on page 4 of this form must be completed before a notary public.

Mail completed form to:

NYS TAX DEPARTMENT DATA ENTRY SECTION W A HARRIMAN CAMPUS ALBANY NY 12227-0826

Privacy notification

New York State Law requires all government agencies that maintain a system of records to provide notification of the legal authority for any request, the principal purpose(s) for which the information is to be collected, and where it will be maintained. To view this information, visit our Web site, or, if you do not have Internet access, call and request Publication 54, *Privacy Notification*. See *Need help?* for the Web address and telephone number.

Need help?



Visit our Web site at www.tax.ny.gov

- · get information and manage your taxes online
- · check for new online services and features

Telephone assistance

Sales Tax Information Center:

(518) 485-2889

To order forms and publications:

(518) 457-5431

Text Telephone (TTY) Hotline (for persons with hearing and speech disabilities using a TTY): (518) 485-5082

Persons with disabilities: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we will ensure that our lobbies, offices, meeting rooms, and other facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. If you have questions about special accommodations for persons with disabilities, call the information center.

Page 2 of 4 ST-220-TD (12/11)

1, _	, hereby affirm, under penalty of perjury, that I am
-4.4	(name) (title)
01 1	he above-named contractor, and that I am authorized to make this certification on behalf of such contractor.
Со	mplete Sections 1, 2, and 3 below. Make only one entry in each section.
Se	ction 1 — Contractor registration status
	The contractor has made sales delivered by any means to locations within New York State of tangible personal property or taxable services having a cumulative value in excess of \$300,000 during the four sales tax quarters which immediately precede the sales tax quarter in which this certification is made. The contractor is registered to collect New York State and local sales and compensating use taxes with the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance pursuant to sections 1134 and 1253 of the Tax Law, and is listed on Schedule A of this certification.
	The contractor has not made sales delivered by any means to locations within New York State of tangible personal property or taxable services having a cumulative value in excess of \$300,000 during the four sales tax quarters which immediately precede the sales tax quarter in which this certification is made.
Se	ction 2 — Affiliate registration status
	The contractor does not have any affiliates.
	To the best of the contractor's knowledge, the contractor has one or more affiliates having made sales delivered by any means to locations within New York State of tangible personal property or taxable services having a cumulative value in excess of \$300,000 during the four sales tax quarters which immediately precede the sales tax quarter in which this certification is made, and each affiliate exceeding the \$300,000 cumulative sales threshold during such quarters is registered to collect New York State and local sales and compensating use taxes with the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance pursuant to sections 1134 and 1253 of the Tax Law. The contractor has listed each affiliate exceeding the \$300,000 cumulative sales threshold during such quarters on Schedule A of this certification.
	To the best of the contractor's knowledge, the contractor has one or more affiliates, and each affiliate has not made sales delivered by any means to locations within New York State of tangible personal property or taxable services having a cumulative value in excess of \$300,000 during the four sales tax quarters which immediately precede the sales tax quarter in which this certification is made.
Se	ction 3 — Subcontractor registration status
	The contractor does not have any subcontractors.
	To the best of the contractor's knowledge, the contractor has one or more subcontractors having made sales delivered by any means to locations within New York State of tangible personal property or taxable services having a cumulative value in excess of \$300,000 during the four sales tax quarters which immediately precede the sales tax quarter in which this certification is made, and each subcontractor exceeding the \$300,000 cumulative sales threshold during such quarters is registered to collect New York State and local sales and compensating use taxes with the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance pursuant to sections 1134 and 1253 of the Tax Law. The contractor has listed each subcontractor exceeding the \$300,000 cumulative sales threshold during such quarters on Schedule A of this certification.
	To the best of the contractor's knowledge, the contractor has one or more subcontractors, and each subcontractor has not made sales delivered by any means to locations within New York State of tangible personal property or taxable services having a cumulative value in excess of \$300,000 during the four sales tax quarters which immediately precede the sales tax quarter in which this certification is made.
Sw	orn to thisday of , 20
-	(sign before a notary public) (title)

Schedule A — Listing of each entity (contractor, affiliate, or subcontractor) exceeding \$300,000 cumulative sales threshold

List the contractor, or affiliate, or subcontractor in Schedule A only if such entity exceeded the \$300,000 cumulative sales threshold during the specified sales tax quarters. See directions below. For more information, see Publication 223.

A Relationship to Contractor	B Name	C Address	D Federal ID Number	E Sales Tax ID Number	F Registration in progress

- Column A Enter C in column A if the contractor; A if an affiliate of the contractor; or S if a subcontractor.
- Column B Name If the entity is a corporation or limited liability company, enter the exact legal name as registered with the NY Department of State, if applicable. If the entity is a partnership or sole proprietor, enter the name of the partnership and each partner's given name, or the given name(s) of the owner(s), as applicable. If the entity has a different DBA (doing business as) name, enter that name as well.
- Column C Address Enter the street address of the entity's principal place of business. Do not enter a PO box.
- Column D ID number Enter the federal employer identification number (EIN) assigned to the entity. If the entity is an individual, enter the social security number of that person.
- Column E Sales tax ID number Enter only if different from federal EIN in column D.
- Column F If applicable, enter an X if the entity has submitted Form DTF-17 to the Tax Department but has not received its certificate of authority as of the date of this certification.

Individual, Corporation, Partnership, or LLC Acknowledgment

STA	ATE OF }
СО	: SS.: UNTY OF }
On	theday of in the year 20, before me personally appeared,
kno	wn to me to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument, who, being duly sworn by me did depose and say that
_h	e resides at,
Tov	vn of ,
Col	unty of ,
Sta	te of; and further that:
[Ma	ark an $m{\mathcal{X}}$ in the appropriate box and complete the accompanying statement.]
	(If an individual): _he executed the foregoing instrument in his/her name and on his/her own behalf.
	(If a corporation): _he is the
	of, the corporation described in said instrument; that, by authority of the Board of Directors of said corporation, _he is authorized to execute the foregoing instrument on behalf of the corporation for purposes set forth therein; and that, pursuant to that authority, _he executed the foregoing instrument in the name of and on behalf of said corporation as the act and deed of said corporation.
	(If a partnership): _he is a
	of, the partnership described in said instrument; that, by the terms of said partnership, _he is authorized to execute the foregoing instrument on behalf of the partnership for purposes set forth therein; and that, pursuant to that authority, _he executed the foregoing instrument in the name of and on behalf of said partnership as the act and deed of said partnership.
	(If a limited liability company): _he is a duly authorized member of
Not	ary Public
Dar	violation No.

CONSULTANT DISCLOSURE REPORTING REQUIREMENTS CONTRACTOR INSTRUCTIONS

Background:

Pursuant to New York State Finance Law Section 163(4)(g), state agencies must require all contractors, including subcontractors, that provide consulting services for State purposes pursuant to a contract to submit an annual employment report for each such contract, such report to include for each employment category within the contract: (i) the number of employees employed to provide services under the contract, (ii) the number of hours they work, and (iii) their total compensation under the contract. Consulting services are defined as analysis, evaluation, research, training, data processing, computer programming, engineering, environmental, health, and mental health services, accounting, auditing, paralegal, legal, or similar services.

Contractors selected for award on the basis of a procurement issued by DOCCS (Request for Proposals, Mini-Bid, or Invitation for Bids) must complete Form A, State Consultant Services – Contractor's Planned Employment from Contract Start Date through the End of the Contract Term upon notification of award. The completed Form A must include information for all employees that will be providing services under the contract, whether employed by the contractor or by a subcontractor.

Contractors selected for award are also required to complete **Form B, State Consultant Services Contractor's Annual Employment Report** annually for each year of the contract term, on a State fiscal year basis. The first report is due on May 15 for the period April 1 through March 31.

Form A must be submitted to DOCCS as the contracting agency, and Form B must be submitted to DOCCS (as the contracting agency), the Department of Civil Service, and the Consultant Reporting Section of the Bureau of Contracts at OSC, at the addresses provided in these instructions.

Form A, State Consultant Services – Contractor's Planned Employment from Contract Start Date through the End of the Contract Term and Form B, State Consultant Services Contractor's Annual Employment Report, are attached to these instructions. Please see these instructions for further information regarding completion and submission of the forms.

INSTRUCTIONS

FORM A:

<u>Upon notification of contract award</u>, use Form A, State Consultant Services Contractor's Planned Employment From Contract Start Date Through the End of the Contract Term, attached to these instructions, to report the necessary planned employment information prospectively from the start date through the end of the contract term. This is a one-time reporting requirement.

Complete Form A for contracts for consulting services in accordance with the following:

- **Employment category:** the specific occupation(s), as listed in the O*NET occupational classification system, which best describe the employees anticipated to be providing services under the contract. (Note: Access the O*NET database, which is available through the US Department of Labor's Employment and Training Administration, on-line at https://www.onetonline.org/ to find a list of occupations.)
- **Number of employees:** the total number of employees in the employment category anticipated to be employed to provide services under the contract, including part time employees and employees of subcontractors.
- **Number of hours to be worked:** the total number of hours anticipated be worked by the employees in the employment category.
- Amount payable under the contract: the total amount payable by the State to the State contractor under the contract, for work by the employees in the employment category, for services provided during the Report Period.

Submit completed **Form A** within 48 hours of notification of selection for award to DOCCS (as the contracting agency) at the address listed below.

New York State Consultant Services Contractor's Planned Employment

From Contract Start Date Through the End of the Contract Term

State Agency Name: NYS Department of Corrections and Community Supervision
State Agency Department ID: 3250226

Agency Business Unit: DOC01

Contractor Name: Contract Number:

Contract Start Date: / / Contract End Date: / /

Employment Category	Number of Employees	Number of Hours to be Worked	Amount Payable Under the Contract
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00
Total this Page	0.00	0.00	\$ 0.00
Grand Total			

Name of person who prepared this report:	
Title:	Phone #:
Preparer's Signature:	
Date Prepared: / /	
(Use additional pages, if necessary)	Page

of

FORM B							
New York State Consultant Services Contractor's Annual Employment Report							
Report Period	: April 1,	to March 31,					
Contracting State Agency Name: NY	S Dept. of Corre	ctions and Communit	v Supervision				
Contract Number:		Agency Business Ur					
Contract Term: / / to /	/	Agency Department					
Contractor Name:							
Contractor Address:							
Description of Services Being Provide	ed:						
Scope of Contract (Choose one that b	est fits):						
		ining					
☐ Data Processing ☐ Computer Pro	ogramming [Other IT consulting					
☐ Engineering ☐ Architect Services	s Surveying	☐ Environmental	Services				
☐ Health Services ☐ Mental Health	Services						
☐ Accounting ☐ Auditing ☐ Pa	ıralegal 🔲 Leg	gal 🔲 Other Consul	ting				
Number of Number of Amount Payable Employment Category Employees Hours Worked Under the Contract							
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00 \$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
	0.00	0.00	\$0.00				
Total this Page	\$ 0.00						
Grand Total	0.00		·				
Name of person who prepared this re	eport:	.					
Preparer's Signature: Date Prepared: / /		Phone #:					

Disclosure of New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision Information

THIS NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT is entered into as of	_, 20	by the
New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision ("DOC	CCS") v	which is
the party disclosing confidential information, and the Recipient, which is the	party re	eceiving
confidential information ("Recipient"), in order to protect the confidential information	nation v	which is
disclosed to the Recipient by DOCCS.		

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

- 2. The confidential information disclosed by DOCCS under this Agreement is described as: As stated in RFP 2023-22, and all personal information.
- 3. The Recipient shall keep the information confidential and shall use the confidential information only for <u>The Incarcerated Individual Parenting Program</u>. The Recipient shall not make any copies of the confidential information except as necessary for its employees who are entitled to view it under Section 1 above. Any copies made shall be identified as belonging to DOCCS and marked "confidential" or with a similar legend.
- 4. The Recipient shall, where applicable, protect the confidential information in a manner consistent with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA") of 1996 Privacy and Security provisions and all other applicable regulations.
- 5. The Recipient shall comply with all Federal and State regulations intended to protect criminal history records as they apply to the confidential information.
- 6. The Recipient shall comply with all DOCCS directives, policies, practices and procedures as they apply to the protection of the confidential information.
- 7. The Recipient shall, in the event, of unauthorized disclosure of the confidential information, immediately notify DOCCS, in writing, and fully comply with the requirements of the New York State Breach Notification Act.
- 8. Any unauthorized disclosure of procurement information may subject Recipient to criminal, civil, and/or administrative penalties.
- 9. To the extent permitted by law, the Recipient shall protect the disclosed confidential information by using the same degree of care, but no less than a reasonable degree of care, to prevent the unauthorized use, dissemination or publication of the confidential information as the Recipient uses to protect its own confidential information of a like nature.

- 10. The Recipient shall have a duty to protect all confidential information which is disclosed to it, whether disclosed in writing, orally or in any other manner and which is identified as confidential at the time of disclosure. If the disclosure is in writing, it shall be marked "confidential." If a disclosure is not in writing, DOCCS shall provide Recipient with a written memorandum summarizing and designating such information as confidential within thirty (30) days of the disclosure.
 - 11. This agreement controls information that is disclosed to Recipient between April 1, 2024 or upon OSC approval and through March 31, 2029 or contract end.
- 12. The Recipient's duties under paragraph 3,4,5,6 & 7 of this Agreement shall expire (1) year after the information is received. The recipient shall return or destroy all DOCCS confidential information. All paper documents and any copies, made in accordance with #3 above, are to be shredded. Electronically stored information is to be destroyed by shredding or securely wiping the media.
- 13. This Agreement imposes no obligation upon the Recipient with respect to confidential information which (a) was in the Recipient's possession before receipt by DOCCS; (b) is or becomes a matter of public knowledge through no fault of the Recipient; (c) is received by the Recipient from a third party without a duty of confidentiality; (d) is disclosed by DOCCS to a third party without a duty of confidentiality on the third party; (e) is independently disclosed by the Recipient with DOCCS' prior written approval; (f) is developed by the Recipient without reference to information disclosed hereunder.
 - 14. DOCCS warrants that it has the right to make the disclosure under this Agreement.
 - 15. Neither party acquires any intellectual property under this Agreement.
- 16. Neither party has an obligation under this Agreement to purchase, sell or license any service or item from the other party.
- 17. The Recipient shall adhere to U.S. Export Administration laws and Regulations and shall not export or re-export technical data, information or products received from DOCCS or the direct product of such technical data or information to any proscribed country listed in the U.S. Export Administration Regulations, unless properly authorized by the U.S. Government.
- 18. The parties do not intend that any agency or partnership be created between them by this Agreement.
- 19. All additions or modifications to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties.
- 20. This Agreement is made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York.
- 21. Neither party may assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. Any assignment made without said consent shall be null and void.

- 22. The recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless DOCCS and the State of New York from any and all suits, causes of actions, claims, grievances, damages, judgments, and costs of every name and description under this Agreement, unless such injuries or damages are directly attributable to the intentional acts or negligent conduct of DOCCS, the State of New York, or their employees.
- 23. The failure of DOCCS to insist upon strict adherence to any provision or other requirement of this Agreement shall not be considered a waiver to deprive DOCCS of the right to insist upon strict adherence of the terms of this Agreement in the future.
- 24. If any provision, or portion thereof, of this Agreement is, or becomes, invalid under any applicable statute or rule of law, it is to be deemed stricken and the rest of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
- 25. This Agreement may be terminated immediately by either party upon delivery of written notice of termination to the other party. Such termination shall not affect Recipient's duty with respect to confidential information disclosed prior to termination.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

NYS Department of Corrections and Community Supervision	
Ву:	By:
Print Name: Melissa McLaughlin	Print Name:
Title: Director, Budget and Finance	Title:
Date:	Date:

ATTACHMENT F

M/WBE and EEO Requirements & Forms

PARTICIPATION BY MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES: REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES

I. General Provisions

- A. The Department of Corrections and Community Supervision (hereinafter referred to as "DOCCS") is required to implement the provisions of New York State Executive Law Article 15-A and Parts 140-145 of Title 5 of the New York Codes, Rules and Regulations ("NYCRR") for all State contracts, as defined therein, with a value (1) in excess of \$25,000 for labor, services, equipment, materials, or any combination of the foregoing or (2) in excess of \$100,000 for real property renovations and construction.
- B. The contractor to the subject contract (the "Contractor" and the "Contract," respectively) agrees, in addition to any other nondiscrimination provision of the Contract and at no additional cost to "DOCCS, to fully comply and cooperate with DOCCS in the implementation of New York State Executive Law Article 15-A and the regulations promulgated thereunder. These requirements include equal employment opportunities for minority group members and women ("EEO") and contracting opportunities for New York State-certified minority and women-owned business enterprises ("MWBEs"). The Contractor's demonstration of "good faith efforts" pursuant to 5 NYCRR § 142.8 shall be a part of these requirements. These provisions shall be deemed supplementary to, and not in lieu of, the nondiscrimination provisions required by New York State Executive Law Article 15 (the "Human Rights Law") and other applicable federal, state, and local laws.
- C. Failure to comply with all of the requirements herein may result in a finding of non-responsiveness, non-responsibility and/or a breach of contract, leading to the assessment of liquidated damages pursuant to Section VII of this Appendix and such other remedies are available to DOCCS pursuant to the Contract and applicable law.

II. Contract Goals

- A. For purposes of this procurement, DOCCS has determined that the contract does not offer sufficient opportunities to set goals for participation by MWBEs as subcontractors, service providers and suppliers to the awarded contractor. Contractor is encouraged to make every good faith effort to promote and assist the participation of New York State Certified Minority and Women-owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) on this contract for the provision of services or materials. To locate New York State Certified MWBEs, the directory of Certified Businesses can be viewed at: https://ny.newnycontracts.com
- B. For purposes of providing meaningful participation by MWBEs on the Contract and achieving the MWBE Contract Goals established in Section II-A hereof, the Contractor should reference the directory of MWBEs at the following internet address: https://ny.newnycontracts.com.

Additionally, the Contractor is encouraged to contact the Division of Minority and Women's Business Development at (212) 803-2414 to discuss additional methods of maximizing participation by MWBEs on the Contract.

C. The Contractor understands that only sums paid to MWBEs for the performance of a commercially useful function, as that term is defined in 5 NYCRR § 140.1, may be applied towards the achievement of the applicable MWBE participation goal.

The portion of a contract with an MWBE serving as a broker that shall be deemed to represent the commercially useful function performed by the MWBE shall be 25 percent of the total value of the contract.

- D. The Contractor must document "good faith efforts," pursuant to 5 NYCRR § 142.8, to provide meaningful participation by MWBEs as subcontractors and suppliers in the performance of the Contract. Such documentation shall include, but not necessarily be limited to:
 - 1. Evidence of outreach to MWBEs;
 - 2. Any responses by MWBEs to the Contractor's outreach;
 - 3. Copies of advertisements for participation by MWBEs in appropriate general circulation, trade, and minority or women-oriented publications;
 - 4. The dates of attendance at any pre-bid, pre-award, or other meetings, if any, scheduled by DOCCS with MWBEs; and,
 - 5. Information describing specific steps undertaken by the Contractor to reasonably structure the Contract scope of work to maximize opportunities for MWBE participation.

III. Equal Employment Opportunity ("EEO")

- A. The provisions of Article 15-A of the Executive Law and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder pertaining to equal employment opportunities for minority group members and women shall apply to the Contract.
- B. In performing the Contract, the Contractor shall:
 - 1. Ensure that each contractor and subcontractor performing work on the Contract shall undertake or continue existing EEO programs to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status. For these purposes, EEO shall apply in the areas of recruitment, employment, job assignment, promotion, upgrading, demotion, transfer, layoff, or termination and rates of pay or other forms of compensation.
 - 2. The Contractor shall submit an EEO policy statement to DOCCS within seventy-two (72) hours after the date of the notice by DOCCS to award the Contract to the Contractor.
 - 3. If the Contractor, or any of its subcontractors, does not have an existing EEO policy statement, DOCCS may require the Contractor or subcontractor to adopt a model statement (see Form Equal Employment Opportunity Policy Statement).
 - 4. The Contractor's EEO policy statement shall include the following language:

- a The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, or marital status, will undertake or continue existing EEO programs to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination, and shall make and document its conscientious and active efforts to employ and utilize minority group members and women in its work force.
- b. The Contractor shall state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees that, in the performance of the contract, all qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status.
- c. The Contractor shall request each employment agency, labor union, or authorized representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, to furnish a written statement that such employment agency, labor union, or representative will not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, sex age, disability or marital status and that such union or representative will affirmatively cooperate in the implementation of the Contractor's obligations herein.
- d The Contractor will include the provisions of Subdivisions (a) through (c) of this Subsection 4 and Paragraph "E" of this Section III, which provides for relevant provisions of the Human Rights Law, in every subcontract in such a manner that the requirements of the subdivisions will be binding upon each subcontractor as to work in connection with the Contract.

C. Form EEO 100 - Staffing Plan

To ensure compliance with this Section, the Contractor shall submit a staffing plan to document the composition of the proposed workforce to be utilized in the performance of the Contract by the specified categories listed, including ethnic background, gender, and Federal occupational categories. The Contractor shall complete the staffing plan form and submit it as part of their bid or proposal or within a reasonable time, as directed by DOCCS.

D. Form EEO-1 - Workforce Utilization Report

- 1. The Contractor shall submit a Workforce Utilization Report, and shall require each of its subcontractors to submit a Workforce Utilization Report, in such form as shall be required by DOCCS on a QUARTERLY basis during the term of the Contract.
- 2 Separate forms shall be completed by the Contractor and any subcontractors.
- 3. Pursuant to Executive Order #162, contractors and subcontractors are also required to report the gross wages paid to each of their employees for the work performed by such employees on the contract on a quarterly basis.
- E. The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Human Rights Law, and all other State and Federal statutory and constitutional non-discrimination provisions. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of

race, creed (religion), color, sex, national origin, sexual orientation, military status, age, disability, predisposing genetic characteristic, marital status or domestic violence victim status, and shall also follow the requirements of the Human Rights Law with regard to non-discrimination on the basis of prior criminal conviction and prior arrest.

IV. Liquidated Damages - MWBE Participation

- A. Where DOCCS determines that the Contractor is not in compliance with the requirements of this Appendix and the Contractor refuses to comply with such requirements, or if the Contractor is found to have willfully and intentionally failed to comply with the MWBE participation goals, the Contractor shall be obligated to pay to DOCCS liquidated damages.
- B. Such liquidated damages shall be calculated as an amount equaling the difference between:
 - 1. All sums identified for payment to MWBEs had the Contractor achieved the contractual MWBE goals; and
 - 2. All sums actually paid to MWBEs for work performed or materials supplied under the Contract.
- C. In the event a determination has been made which requires the payment of liquidated damages and such identified sums have not been withheld by DOCCS, the Contractor shall pay such liquidated damages to DOCCS within sixty (60) days after they are assessed. Provided, however, that if the Contractor has filed a complaint with the Director of the Division of Minority and Women's Business Development pursuant to 5 NYCRR § 142.12, liquidated damages shall be payable only in the event of a determination adverse to the Contractor following the complaint process.

DOCCS - Rev. 5/15

MINORITY/WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES – EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY POLICY STATEMENT

M/WBE AND EEO POLICY STATEMENT

DOCCS EEO Policy Statement Form

I,following policies with respect to the project being devel	(the awardee/contractor) agree to adopt the oped or services rendered at
This organization will require its contractors and subcont contract participation goals and provide Equal Employing funded project by taking the following steps:	
M/WBE	EEO
 Actively and affirmatively solicit bids for contracts and subcontracts from qualified State certified MBEs or WBEs, including solicitations to M/WBE contractor associations. Utilize ESD Directory of State certified M/WBEs and solicit bids from them directly. Ensure that plans, specifications, request for proposals and other documents used to secure bids will be made available in sufficient time for review by prospective M/WBEs. Where feasible, divide the work into smaller portions to increase participation by M/WBEs and encourage the formation of joint ventures and other partnerships among M/WBE contractors to encourage their participation. Document and maintain records of bid solicitation, including those to M/WBEs and the results thereof. The Contractor will also maintain, or, where appropriate, require its subcontractors to maintain and submit, as required by DOCCS, records of actions that its subcontractors have taken toward meeting M/WBE contract participation goals. Ensure that project payments to M/WBEs are made on a timely basis so that undue financial hardship is avoided, and that bonding and/or other credit requirements may be waived and/or appropriate alternatives are developed to encourage M/WBE participation. 	military status, marital status, domestic violence victim status, arrest or conviction record, or predisposing genetic characteristics, and will undertake or continue existing programs of affirmative action to ensure that minority group members are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination, and shall make and document its conscientious and active efforts to employ and utilize minority group members and women in its work force on state contracts. (b) This organization shall state in all solicitation or advertisements for employees that in the performance of the State contract all qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, religion/creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation, military status, marital status, domestic violence victim status, arrest or conviction record, or predisposing genetic characteristics. (c) At the request of the contracting agency, this organization shall request that each employment agency, labor union, or authorized representative will not discriminate on the basis of race, religion/creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation, military status, marital status, domestic violence victim status, arrest or conviction record, or predisposing genetic characteristics, and that such union or representative will affirmatively cooperate in the implementation of this organization's obligations herein. (d) This organization will include the provisions of sections (a) through (c) of this agreement in every subcontract in such a manner that the requirements of the subdivisions will be binding upon each subcontractor as to work in connection with the State contract.
(a) This organization will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion/creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation,	
Agreed to thisday of	, 20
Sign:	_
Print:	Title:

Page 1 of 2

Minority/ Women Business Enterprise Liaison
is designated as the Minority/Women Business Enterprise Liaison (Name of Designated Liaison)
responsible for administering the Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises-Equal Employment
Opportunity (M/WBE-EEO) program.
M/WBE Contract Goals
% Minority and Women's Business Enterprise Participation
% Minority Business Enterprise Participation
% Women's Business Enterprise Participation
(Authorized Representative)
Title:
Date:
Contact:
Department of Corrections and Community Supervision Support Operations / Contract Procurement Unit The Harriman State Campus 1220 Washington Ave Albany, NY 12226



NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND COMMUNITY SUPERVISION

M/WBE UTILIZATION PLAN

INSTRUCTIONS: This form must be submitted with any bid proposal or proposed negotiated contract. This Utilization Plan must contain a detailed description of the supplies, purchases, and/or services to be provided by each certified Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprise (M/WBE) under the contract. Attach additional sheets if necessary. Contactor's Name:_____ Federal Identification Number: Solicitation/Contract Number: Address: City, State, Zip Code: Telephone Number: Region/Location of Work: M/WBE Goals in the Contract: MBE WBE % 1. Certified M/WBE Subcontractors/Suppliers 3. Detailed Description of Work/Purchase 4. Dollar Value of Subcontracts/ 2. Classification Name, Address, Email Address, and (Attach additional sheets, if necessary) Supplies/Services and intended Telephone No. performance dates of each component of the contract. **NYS ESD CERTIFIED** A. П мве □ WBE Federal ID No. NYS ESD CERTIFIED B. ☐ MBE ☐ WBE Federal ID No. NYS ESD CERTIFIED ☐ MBE ☐ WBE Federal ID No. IF UNABLE TO FULLY MEET THE MBE AND WBE GOALS SET FORTH IN THE CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR MUST SUBMIT A REQUEST FOR WAIVER. TO THE CONTRACTING UNIT. Submission of this form constitutes the Contractor's acknowledgement and agreement to comply with the M/WBE requirements set forth under NYS Executive Law, Article 15-A and 5 NYCRR Part 142. Failure to submit complete and accurate information may result in a finding of noncompliance or rejection of the bid/proposal and/or suspension or termination of the contract. NAME AND TITLE OF PREPARER (Print or Type): SUBMIT COMPLETED FORM TO: **Department of Corrections and Community Supervision Support Operations / Contract Procurement Unit** The Harriman State Campus 1220 Washington Ave **Albany, NY 12226**

M/WBE $100 \, (\text{Rev } 07/12)$

SIGNATURE AND DATE:				
	F(FOR AGENCY USE ONLY		
REVIEWED BY:	DATE:			
NEVIEWED DI.	J			
	ı			
UTILIZATION PLAN APPROVED: \square YES \square NO D	ate:			
Contract No:				
Contract Award Date:				
Estimated Date of Completion:				
Amount Obligated Under the Contract:				
NOTICE OF DEFICIENCY ISSUED: YES NO	vate:			
NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE ISSUED: $\ \square$ YES $\ \square$ NO	Date:			

Instructions:

- 1. Contractor Information: Enter contractor name, address, and federal employer identification number(FEIN).
- 2. Region/Location of Work: Enter region/location of work or facility name.
- 3. Project M/WBE Goals: Enter M/WBE Project Goals. These goals are to be accomplished by subcontracting with NYS certified M/WBE's.
- 4. Subcontractor: NYS Certified M/WBE Information: Enter name of certified M/WBE, address, telephone number, and Federal ID number. Verify in the Directory of Certified Minority and Women-Owned Businesses available at: www.esd.ny.gov/mwbe.html that they are a NYS certified minority or women-owned business.
- 5. Indicate certification type: MBE, WBE or both by checking the appropriate boxes, Y (Yes) or N (No).
- 6. Describe the type of services the M/WBE vendors will provide in relation to the contract, and estimate the amount the contractor will spend with these vendors.

Special Note: This section does not need to be completed if the contractor is a certified minority <u>and</u> women-owned business enterprise (dual certified) and responsible for one hundred percent of the contract performance. If this is the case, proceed to the signature section and attach a printout from the Directory of Certified Minority and Women-Owned Businesses available at: <u>www.esd.ny.gov/mwbe.html</u> showing the Contractor is a dual New York certified M/WBE. If the contractor is a NYS certified minority-owned business enterprise (MBE) <u>or</u> womenowned business enterprise (WBE), this section needs to be completed to satisfy the goal for which the Contractor is not certified. For example, if the Contractor is a NYS certified MBE, the Contractor is required to subcontract with a NYS certified WBE to achieve the WBE project goals.

7. Signature Section: Sign, print name, and date.

M/WBE 100 (Rev 07/12)



NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND COMMUNITY SUPERVISION

EEO STAFFING PLAN (EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY)

SI.	IRMI	T WIT	'H RII	D OR	PRC	POS	IΔS
J	االااحار	1 4411	п оп	ט טר	FNU	$r \mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{v}}$	ᇧᆫ

Solicitation No.:	Reporting Entity:	Report includes Contractor's:
	☐ Contractor	☐ Contractor's workforce to be utilized on this contract
	☐ Subcontractor	☐ Contractor's total workforce
		☐ Subcontractor's workforce to be utilized on this contract
Contractor/Subcontractor's Name:		☐ Subcontractor's total workforce
		Submit completed form to: Department of Corrections and Community Supervision
Contractor/Subcontractor's Address:		Support Operations / Contract Procurement Unit
FEIN:	Telephone NO.:	The Harriman State Campus 1220 Washington Ave Albany, NY 12226

Enter the total number of employees for each classification.

		Workfo	orce by nder	Workforce by Race/EthnicIdentification												
EEO Job Category	Total Work- force	Total Male (M)	Total Female (F)	White Hispanic (M)	e (Not /Latino) (F)	Black Hispanic (M)			eanic atino (F)	Asian Hispanio (M)	Alaskan N	Indian or Native(Not c/Latino) (F)	Disa (M)	bled (F)	Vete (M)	eran (F)
Executive/Senior Level Officials & Managers																
First/Mid Level Officials & Managers																
Professionals																
Technicians																
Sales Workers																
Administrative Support Workers																
Craft Workers																
Operatives																
Laborers and Helpers																

Service Workers																
Totals																
PREPARED BY (Signature):					TELE	TELEPHONE NO.:					DATE:					
E-					E-MA	E-MAIL ADDRESS:										
NAME AND TITLE OF PREPARER (Print or Type):									ı	FOR AGENO	CY USE (ONLY				
								REV	IEWED BY	' :				DATE:		

General instructions: All Offerors must complete an EEO Staffing Plan (EEO 100) and submit it as part of the bid or proposal package to the address provided. Where the workforce to be utilized in the performance of the State contract can be separated out from the Contractor's total workforce, the Offeror shall complete this form only for the anticipated workforce to be utilized on the State contract. Where the workforce to be utilized in the performance of the State contract cannot be separated out from the Contractor's total workforce, the Offeror shall complete this form for the Contractor's current total workforce. Subcontractors awarded a subcontract over \$25,000 for the construction, demolition, replacement, major repair, renovation, planning or design of real property and improvements thereon (the "work") except where the "work" is for the beneficial use of the Contractor must complete this form upon request of DOCCS.

Instructions for completing:

- 1. Enter the Solicitation Number that this report applies to along with the name and address of the Offeror.
- 2. Check off the appropriate box to indicate if the Offeror completing the report is the Contractor or a Subcontractor.
- 3. Check off the appropriate box to indicate type of workforce being reported.
- 4. Enter the total workforce by EEO job category.
- 5. Break down the total workforce by gender and enter under the heading "Workforce by Gender."
- 6. Break down the total workforce by race/ethnic background and enter under the heading "Workforce by Race/Ethnic Identification."
- 7. Enter the name, title, phone number, and E-mail address for the person completing the form. Sign and date the form in the designated boxes.

RACE/ETHNIC IDENTIFICATION

Race/ethnic designations as used by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission do not denote scientific definitions of anthropological origins. For the purposes of this report, an employee may be included in the group to which he or she appears to belong, identifies with, or is regarded in the community as belonging. However, no person should be counted in more than one race/ethnic group. The race/ethnic categories for this survey are:

WHITE - (Not of Hispanic origin) All persons having origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, North Africa or the Middle East.

BLACK – (Not of Hispanic origin) A person who has origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa.

HISPANIC or LATINO - All persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race

ASIAN & PACIFIC ISLANDER - All persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia or the Indian Subcontinent, including, for example, Cambodia, China, India, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Pakistan, the Philippine Islands, Thailand, and Vietnam. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian subcontinent or the Pacific Islands.

AMERICAN INDIAN or ALASKAN NATIVE - A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North or South America (including Central America), and who maintains tribal affiliation or community recognition.

OTHER CATEGORIES

- DISABLED INDIVIDUAL Any person who:
 - Has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activity (ies)
 - Has a record of such an impairment; or
 - Is regarded as having such impairment.
- VETERAN An individual who served in the military during time of war.

EEO 100 (Rev 07/12) Page 2 of 2

by associated procurements.

great value to the State and its taxpayers.

Public procurements can drive and improve the State's economic engine through promotion of the use of New York businesses by its Contractors. The State therefore expects Bidders/Proposers to provide maximum assistance to New York businesses in their use of the Contract. The potential participation by all kinds of New York businesses will deliver

PLEASE USE BLACK INK OR TYPEWRITER WHEN PREPARING YOUR BID. BE SURE YOU HAVE INSERTED YOUR COMPANY'S NAME IN THE BOX $\Rightarrow \Rightarrow \Rightarrow \Rightarrow \Rightarrow \Rightarrow \Rightarrow \Rightarrow \Rightarrow$	Bidder
ENCOURAGING USE OF NEW YORK STATE BUSINESSES IN CONTRACT PERFORMANCE	
New York State businesses have a substantial presence in State Contracts and strongly contribute to the economies of the state and the nation. In recognition of their economic activity and leadership in doing business in New York State, Bidders/Proposers for this contract for commodities, services or	Bidders/Proposers can demonstrate their commitment to the use of New York State businesses by responding to the question below:
technology are strongly encouraged and expected to consider New York State businesses in the fulfillment of the requirements of the Contract. Such partnering may be as subcontractors, suppliers, protégés or other supporting roles.	Will New York State Businesses be used in the performance of this Contract?
Bidders/Proposers need to be aware that all authorized users of this Contract will be strongly encouraged, to the maximum extent practical and consistent with legal requirements, to use	YESNO
responsible and responsive New York State businesses in purchasing commodities that are of equal quality and functionality and in utilizing services and technology. Furthermore, Bidders/Proposers are reminded that they must continue to utilize small, minority and women-owned businesses, consistent with current State law.	If yes, identify New York State Business(es) that will be used: (Attach identifying information)
Utilizing New York State businesses in State Contracts will help create more private sector jobs, rebuild New York's infrastructure, and maximize economic activity to the mutual benefit of the Contractor and its New York State business partners. New York State businesses will promote the Contractor's optimal performance under the Contract, thereby fully benefiting the public sector programs that are supported	

ATTACHMENT G

Diversity Practices Questionnaire

Diversity Practices Questionnaire

l,	, as	(title)
of	firm or con	npany (hereafter referred
to as the company), swear and/	or affirm under penalty of	perjury that the answers
submitted to the following ques	stions are complete and a	ccurate to the best of my
knowledge:		

- 1. Does your company have a Chief Diversity Officer or other individual who is tasked with supplier diversity initiatives? Yes or No If Yes, provide the name, title, description of duties, and evidence of initiatives performed by this individual or individuals.
- 2. What percentage of your company's gross revenues (from your prior fiscal year) was paid to New York State certified minority and/or women-owned business enterprises as subcontractors, suppliers, joint-venturers, partners or other similar arrangement for the provision of goods or services to your company's clients or customers?
- 3. What percentage of your company's overhead (i.e. those expenditures that are not directly related to the provision of goods or services to your company's clients or customers) or non-contract-related expenses (from your prior fiscal year) was paid to New York State certified minority- and women-owned business enterprises as suppliers/contractors?¹
- 4. Does your company provide technical training² to minority- and women-owned business enterprises? Yes or No

¹ Do not include onsite project overhead.

² Technical training is the process of teaching employees how to more accurately and thoroughly perform the technical components of their jobs. Training can include technology applications, products, sales and service tactics, and more. Technical skills are job-specific as opposed to soft skills, which are transferable.

If Yes, provide a description of such training which should include, but not be limited to, the date the program was initiated, the names and the number of minority- and women-owned business enterprises participating in such training, the number of years such training has been offered and the number of hours per year for which such training occurs.

- 5. Is your company participating in a government approved minority- and womenowned business enterprise mentor-protégé program? Yes or No

 If Yes, identify the governmental mentoring program in which your company participates and provide evidence demonstrating the extent of your company's commitment to the governmental mentoring program.
- 6. Does your company include specific quantitative goals for the utilization of minority- and women-owned business enterprises in its non-government procurements? Yes or No

 If Yes, provide a description of such non-government procurements (including time period, goal, scope and dollar amount) and indicate the percentage of the goals that were attained.
- 7. Does your company have a formal minority- and women-owned business enterprise supplier diversity program? Yes or No

 If Yes, provide documentation of program activities and a copy of policy or program materials.
- 8. Does your company plan to enter into partnering or subcontracting agreements with New York State certified minority- and women-owned business enterprises if selected as the successful respondent? Yes or No

If Yes, complete the attached Utilization Plan

All information provided in connection with the questionnaire is subject to audit and any fraudulent statements are subject to criminal prosecution and debarment.

Signature of Owner/Official		
Printed Name of Signatory		
Title		
Name of Business		
Address		
City, State, Zip		
STATE OF		
COUNTY OF) ss:	
On the day of		, 202_, before me, the undersigned, a Notary
Public in and for the State of		, personally appeared
		_, personally known to me or proved to me on the
basis of satisfactory evidence	e to be the	e individual whose name is subscribed to this
certification and said person	executed	this instrument.
		Notary Public

ATTACHMENT H

Bid Submission Checklist

New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision

Bid Submission Checklist

All Bidders must complete and submit the Bid Submission Checklist to certify that all required information, including mandatory forms and document requirements for the RFP, have been completed and/or met and included in this bid submission.

Check Box	Checklist Item	Number of Originals	Number of Exact Copies
	Application Cover Sheet (see Attachment B) & Cover Letter	2	•
	Part I Response to Mandatory Requirements and Manda and Document Requirements	tory Forms	
	Bidder's Response to Mandatory Requirements (see Section XI, A)	1	1
	Procurement Lobbying Certification - SFL §139-j and §139-k (see Attachment E)	1	1
	Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire (see Section IX.A.2): Online Questionnaire Certified Date:		
	OR Paper Questionnaire Submission	1	1
	M/WBE – EEO Policy Statement (see Attachment F)	1	1
	EEO Staffing Plan (see Attachment F)	1	1
	Bid Submission Checklist (this form)	1	1
	Signed copies of all addenda released for this solicitation	1	1
	Part II Technical Proposal Submittal		
	Technical Proposal (see Section XI B)	2	4
	Part III Diversity Practices Questionnaire		
	Diversity Practices Questionnaire (Attachment G)	2	
	Part IV Cost Proposal Submittal		
	Cost Proposal Form (see Attachment C) *	3	
* Note:	Cost Submittal must be in a sealed envelope labeled "RFP 2023	3-22 Cost Pro	posal."
AUTHO	DRIZED SIGNATURE COMPANY NAME		

Note: Cost Submittal must be in a sealed envelope labeled "RFP 2023-22 Cost Proposal.						
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE	COMPANY NAME					
PRINTED NAME	TITLE					
DATE						

ATTACHMENT I

DOCCS Directives & Training Manual 7.150

NEW YORK STATE Community Supervision DIRECTIVE	Fingerprinting/e History Inquiry Employees and	- New	NO. 2216 DATE 11/01/2018
SUPERSEDES DIR# 2216 Dtd. 08/15/17	DISTRIBUTION A	PAGES PAGE 1 OF 9	DATE LAST REVISED
REFERENCES (Include but are not limited to) Directives #2112, #4750; OSC Payroll Bulletin #231; DCJS Use and Dissemination Agreement; ACA Expected Practice 4-4061	APPROVING AUTHORITY	M.Dna)

I. POLICY: All employees and contractors of the Department of Corrections and Community Supervision (DOCCS) will be subjected to a criminal history inquiry in order to obtain background information pertinent to the security of operations, to verify data on employment applications, and to receive notification when Department employees are arrested. Employees and contractors may also be fingerprinted in accordance with this directive. This policy applies to all titles as defined in Section II, Definitions.

II. DEFINITIONS

- A. <u>Employee</u>: An individual paid either annually, by calendar, 21 pay periods, or by a fee to perform duties within a correctional facility.
- B. <u>Part-Time/Half-Time Employee</u>: An annual salaried employee whose work schedule is less than 100 percent of the time.
- C. <u>Per Diem Employee</u>: An employee that is not annual salaried who is paid on an hourly basis.
- D. <u>Extra Service Employee</u>: A State employee who renders a service to an agency, office, or correctional facility other than the one in which they are regularly employed on a full-time basis. Extra service employees are salaried by the agency, office, or facility the employee renders service to.
- E. <u>Outside Agency Employee</u>: A State employee who is employed by an agency other than DOCCS, whose work assignment is within a DOCCS office or facility (e.g., Information Technology Services (ITS), Office of Mental Health (OMH), Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) staff).
- F. <u>Contract Service Provider/Consultant</u>: A non-State employee who provides, under a formal agreement, a service to the facility but does not receive direct compensation as salary from the Department and whose duties are not performed under the direct supervision of security staff (e.g., Registered Nurse, Optometrist, Computer Software Engineer, etc.).
- G. <u>Contractor</u>: A non-State employee who provides, under a formal agreement, material, labor, repair, or maintenance on facility property, but does not receive direct compensation as salary from the Department.
- H. <u>Volunteer</u>: A volunteer is a person who is authorized to provide a service to DOCCS and its incarcerated individuals. Refer to Directive #4750, "Volunteer Services Program," for processing direction on types of volunteers.

CRIMINAL HISTORY INQUIRIES III.

Employees Α.

- Correction Officers and Peace Officers: Criminal history inquiries shall be 1. conducted on all Peace Officer applicants by the Department's Employee Investigation Unit (EIU) as part of the pre-employment investigation.
- Non-Uniform (Civilian) Employees: Criminal history inquiries shall be conducted on 2. all non-uniform (civilian) staff. Superintendents, Regional Directors, Central Office Personnel, or their designees shall request a criminal history inquiry on individuals by electronically transmitting a criminal history request via http://criminalhistoryrequest/. The electronic criminal history request form must be submitted to EIU and the EIU response must be received by the requestor prior to the first day of employment. Derogatory criminal history information received in response to inquiries will be referred to the Director of Personnel for review.

NOTE: Summer School Teachers: Prior to the start of each summer session, facilities must request a criminal history inquiry be conducted.

NOTE: Paid interns will be processed as employees.

NOTE: Non-paid interns will be processed as volunteers.

- Per Diem Employees: Criminal history inquiries shall be conducted in the same manner as non-uniform (civilian) staff (see Section III-A-2 above).
- Extra Service Employee: Criminal history inquiries shall not be conducted on extra service employees that are permanent DOCCS staff. Criminal history inquiries shall be conducted on all extra service employees that are not DOCCS staff. Superintendents, Regional Directors, Central Office Personnel, or their designees shall request a criminal history inquiry on individuals by electronically transmitting a criminal history request via http://criminalhistoryrequest/. The electronic criminal history request form must be submitted to EIU and the EIU response must be received by the requestor prior to the first day of employment. Derogatory criminal history information received in response to inquiries will be referred to the Director of Personnel for review.

B. **Outside Agency Employees**

- Information Technology Services (ITS): Screening will be performed initially by New York State Police (NYSP). DOCCS will not receive notifications on clean hires. DOCCS will not receive notifications on automatic disqualifications. DOCCS (EIU@doccs.ny.gov) will receive notifications of "hits" on prospective ITS hires that do not automatically disqualify under Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS), but who ITS wants to place here, so that DOCCS can review to determine suitability. EIU will refer "hits" to Office of Special Investigations (OSI); OSI will confer with the Chief Information Officer to determine suitability.
- Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV): Criminal history inquiries shall be conducted on all DMV employees whose work assignment is within a DOCCS office or facility. Superintendents, Regional Directors, Central Office Personnel, or their designees shall request a criminal history inquiry on individuals by electronically transmitting a criminal history request via http://criminalhistoryrequest/.

The electronic criminal history request form must be submitted to EIU and the EIU response must be received by the requestor prior to the first day of employment. Derogatory criminal history information received in response to inquiries will be referred to the Director of Personnel for review.

Office of Mental Health (OMH): Criminal history inquiries shall be conducted on all OMH employees whose work assignment is within a DOCCS office or facility. Superintendents, Regional Directors, Central Office Personnel, or their designees shall request a criminal history inquiry on individuals by electronically transmitting a criminal history request via http://criminalhistoryrequest/. The electronic criminal history request form must be submitted to EIU and the EIU response must be received by the requestor prior to the first day of employment. Derogatory criminal history information received in response to inquiries will be referred to the Director of Personnel for review.

NOTE: OMH staff are exempt from providing their Social Security Number to DOCCS for the purposes of criminal history inquiry and fingerprinting.

- C. <u>Contract Service Providers and Consultants</u>: Criminal history inquiries shall be conducted on all contract service providers and consultants. Superintendents, Regional Directors, Central Office Personnel, or their designees shall request a criminal history inquiry on individuals by electronically transmitting a criminal history request via http://criminalhistoryrequest/. The electronic criminal history request form must be submitted to EIU and the EIU response must be received by the requestor prior to the first day of employment. Derogatory criminal history information received in response to inquiries will be referred to the Director of Personnel for review.
- D. <u>Contractors</u>: Criminal history inquiries shall be conducted on all contractors. Superintendents, Regional Directors, Central Office Personnel, or their designees shall request a criminal history inquiry on individuals by electronically transmitting a criminal history request via http://criminalhistoryrequest/. The electronic criminal history request form must be submitted to EIU and the EIU response must be received by the requestor prior to contractor entry into any DOCCS facility/office. Derogatory criminal history information received in response to inquiries will be referred to the Director of Personnel, Superintendent, Regional Director, OSI, or designee as appropriate for review.
- E. <u>Volunteers</u>: See Directive #4750, "Volunteer Services Program," Section VI-C-3.

 **UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE WILL YOUTHFUL OFFENDER (YO), JUVENILE
 DELINQUENT (JD), OR JUVENILE OFFENDER (JO) INFORMATION BE RELEASED
 FROM THE EMPLOYEE INVESTIGATIONS UNIT (EIU).**

IV. FINGERPRINTING

A. Responsibility

 Correction Officer and Peace Officer applicants requiring pre-employment screening shall be fingerprinted by EIU at the time of the initial background interview. Fingerprint responses (RAP sheets) will be retained in the background investigation file in EIU. 2. Non-uniform (civilian) staff will be fingerprinted on the initial date of employment. Central Office employees shall be fingerprinted by the Bureau of Personnel at EIU, facility employees shall be fingerprinted by the facility ID Officer, and Community Supervision employees shall be fingerprinted by trained staff on the FBI FD-258 APPLICANT card (blue). The fingerprints will be forwarded to EIU for processing immediately. Fingerprint responses (RAP sheets) will be forwarded to the originating facility/office by EIU. Responses that contain derogatory information that was not revealed when the criminal history inquiry was processed for employees and per diem employees will be reviewed by the Bureau of Personnel in Central Office (see also Directive #2112, "Report of Criminal Charges").

NOTE: Teachers, Vocational Instructors, and other 10-month employees assigned to the regular school year will be fingerprinted only once, even when they do not work the summer session. Summer School Teachers/Vocational Instructors will be fingerprinted only once as long as they work every consecutive summer. If there is a break in service and they fail to work one summer, they will be treated as a new employee during future summers, fingerprinted and charged the applicable fee.

NOTE: Paid interns are processed as non-uniform (civilian) employees.

NOTE: Non-paid Interns are processed and fingerprinted as volunteers.

- 3. Per diem employees shall be processed in the same manner as non-uniform (civilian) staff (see Section III-B-2 above).
- 4. Extra service employees who are permanent DOCCS employees will not be fingerprinted. Extra service employees who are not DOCCS employees but are assigned to the Department's facilities, Community Supervision offices, or to Central Office will be fingerprinted on the initial date of assignment. Fingerprints will be taken on the FBI FD-258 APPLICANT card (blue). A journal voucher (JV) must accompany all fingerprint cards in order to provide the required processing fee. Failure to submit the JV will result in a delay in processing. Fingerprint responses (RAP sheets) will be retained by EIU. Responses that contain derogatory information that was not revealed when the criminal history inquiry was processed for extra service employees will be reviewed by the Bureau of Personnel in Central Office. Upon notification from Personnel to proceed, EIU will notify the sender/submitter of the prints via email and confirm the transaction was successful and that there is now a RAP sheet on file at EIU. Where it has been determined that the extra service employee shall no longer enter DOCCS facilities/offices, EIU will notify the Superintendent, Regional Director, Division Head, or their designee.
- 5. Outside Agency Employees
 - a. ITS employees screening will be performed initially by New York State Police (NYSP). DOCCS will not receive notifications on clean hires. DOCCS will not receive notifications on automatic disqualifications. DOCCS (EIU@doccs.ny.gov) will receive notifications of "hits" on prospective ITS hires that do not automatically disqualify under CJIS, but who ITS wants to place here, so that DOCCS can review to determine suitability. EIU will refer "hits" to OSI; OSI will confer with the Chief Information Officer to determine suitability.

- DMV staff assigned to the Department's facilities. Community Supervision b. offices, or to Central Office will be fingerprinted on the initial date of assignment. Fingerprints will be taken on the FBI FD-258 APPLICANT card (blue) and submitted to EIU. A JV must accompany all fingerprint cards in order to provide the required processing fee. Failure to submit the JV will result in a delay in processing. Fingerprint responses (RAP sheets) will be retained by EIU. Responses that contain derogatory information that was not revealed when the criminal history inquiry was processed for DMV employees will be reviewed by the Director of Personnel. Upon notification from Personnel to proceed, EIU will notify the sender/submitter of the prints via email and confirm the transaction was successful and that there is now a RAP sheet on file at EIU. Where it has been determined that the DMV employee shall no longer enter DOCCS facilities/offices, EIU will notify the Superintendent, Regional Director, Division Head, or their designee.
- OMH staff assigned to the Department's facilities will be fingerprinted on the C. initial date of assignment. Fingerprints will be taken on the FBI FD-258 APPLICANT card (blue) and submitted to EIU. A JV must accompany all fingerprint cards in order to provide the required processing fee. Failure to submit the JV will result in a delay in processing. Fingerprint responses (RAP sheets) will be retained by EIU. Responses that contain derogatory information that was not revealed when the criminal history inquiry was processed for OMH employees will be reviewed by the Director of Personnel. Upon notification from Personnel to proceed, EIU will notify the sender/submitter of the prints via email and confirm the transaction was successful and that there is now a RAP sheet on file at EIU. Where it has been determined that the OMH employee shall no longer enter DOCCS facilities/offices, EIU will notify the Superintendent, Regional Director, Division Head, or their designee.
 - NOTE: OMH staff are exempt from providing their Social Security Number to DOCCS for the purposes of criminal history inquiry and fingerprinting.
- Contract service providers and consultants will be fingerprinted on the initial date of assignment. Contract service providers and consultants assigned to Central Office shall be fingerprinted by the Bureau of Personnel at EIU, those assigned to a facility shall be fingerprinted by the facility ID Officer, and those assigned to Community Supervision shall be fingerprinted by trained staff on the FBI FD-258 APPLICANT card (blue) and submitted to EIU. A JV must accompany all fingerprint cards in order to provide the required processing fee.
 - Failure to submit the JV will result in a delay in processing. Fingerprint responses (RAP sheet) will be retained by EIU. Responses that contain derogatory information that was not revealed when the criminal history inquiry was processed for Contract Service Providers will be reviewed by the Director of Personnel. Upon notification from Personnel to proceed, EIU will notify the sender/submitter of the prints via email and confirm the transaction was successful and that there is now a RAP sheet on file at EIU. Where it has been determined that the Contract Service Provider shall no longer enter DOCCS facilities/offices, EIU will notify the Superintendent, Regional Director, Division Head, or their designee.

NOTE: If the contract service provider employee is working at more than one facility, the facility should contact EIU at (518) 485-9500 to determine if fingerprints were previously submitted by another facility. It will only be necessary for one set of fingerprints to be submitted.

7. Contractors who work within any DOCCS facility or office will be fingerprinted where the Superintendent, Regional Director, Division Head, or their designee has determined that based on the nature of the anticipated work, a contractor will have direct contact with incarcerated individuals, or the contract provides for six months or more of services. Direct contact with incarcerated individuals means contact beyond incidental contact, such as direct contact with incarcerated individuals while providing the contracted service, or contact with incarcerated individuals while the contractor is performing work in an operational program or housing area. Correctional facility contractor fingerprints will be taken by the facility ID Officer. Community Supervision contractors shall be fingerprinted by trained staff within the Community Supervision offices. Central Office or Training Academy contractors shall be fingerprinted at EIU on the FBI FD-258 APPLICANT card (blue) and submitted to EIU. A JV must accompany all fingerprint cards in order to provide the required processing fee. Failure to submit the JV will result in a delay in processing. EIU will notify the sender/submitter of the prints via email and confirm the transaction was successful and that there is now a RAP sheet on file at EIU. EIU will also include any discrepant information that may have been revealed on the RAP sheet that was not included with the initial criminal history inquiry.

NOTE: Contractors may be working at more than one facility/office; the facility/office should contact EIU at (518) 485-9500 to determine if fingerprints were previously submitted by another facility. It will only be necessary for one set of fingerprints to be submitted.

8. Volunteers: See Directive #4750, Section VI-C-3.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE WILL YOUTHFUL OFFENDER (YO), JUVENILE DELINQUENT (JD), OR JUVENILE OFFENDER (JO) INFORMATION BE RELEASED FROM THE EMPLOYEE INVESTIGATIONS UNIT (EIU)

B. <u>Fingerprint Cards*</u>: The processing person shall verify the identity of the person being fingerprinted via a valid government issued picture ID, enter all pertinent data by following the instructions on the card, take the prints using the "rolled impression" method in the numbered print blocks, and the "plain impression" method in the lower row of blocks, secure the signature of the person being fingerprinted, and then sign as the official taking the fingerprints.

To avoid delay in the processing of fingerprint cards, be sure to complete cards clearly and legibly. To reorder fingerprint cards, contact EIU at (518)485-9500.

The FBI FD-258 APPLICANT card (blue) shall be completed for all titles as defined in Section II of this directive and forwarded to:

NYS DOCCS Attn: EIU 1220 Washington Avenue Albany, NY 12226 – 2050.

^{*}See the summary Processing Chart, Attachment A.

C. Fees*

- 1. Correction Officer and Peace Officer applicants requiring pre-employment screening at EIU must pay the fingerprint processing fee. The \$75 fingerprint processing fee will be made via a U.S. Postal Money Order at the time the applicant is Live Scanned at EIU.
- 2. New non-uniform (civilian) staff will have the \$75 fingerprint processing fee taken out of their first full paycheck via payroll deduction. When these employees are fingerprinted on the first day of work, the Personnel office must notify the Payroll office that a fingerprint deduction (per OSC Payroll Bulletin #231) needs to be processed. If a non-uniformed civilian staff employee separates from service before they receive a full check, the facility MUST obtain the fingerprint fee from any money the employee is due. It is the responsibility of the facility to obtain the fingerprint fee will result in the facility making payment from the facility funds to make the fingerprint fee account whole.
- 3. Per diem employees and physicians must pay the fingerprint processing fee. The \$75 fingerprint processing fee will be made via a U.S. Postal Money Order, which should accompany the fingerprints when they are forwarded to EIU.
- 4. Extra service employees that are not permanent Department employees assigned to the Department's facilities, Community Supervision offices, or to Central Office will have the fingerprint processing fee paid via JV by the facility/office submitting the fingerprints.
- 5. Outside agency employees assigned to the Department's facilities, Community Supervision offices, or to Central Office will have the fingerprint processing fee paid via JV by the facility/office submitting the fingerprints.
- 6. Contract service providers and consultants assigned to the Department's facilities, Community Supervision offices, or to Central Office will have the fingerprint processing fee paid via JV by the facility/office submitting the fingerprints.
- 7. Contractors assigned to the Department's facilities, Community Supervision offices, or to Central Office will have the fingerprint processing fee paid via JV by the facility/office submitting the fingerprints.
- 8. Volunteers: Persons who are deemed a volunteer will not be charged a fee per the DCJS Use and Dissemination Agreement.
- *See the summary Processing Chart, Attachment A.
- D. Audits: Periodic audits of all facilities will be conducted by EIU for compliance of fingerprint submission and collection of fees. Where it has been found that an employee has left service before the fee was collected, in accordance with the procedures of this directive, EIU will notify the facility (DSA and Steward) and the Director of Budget and Finance of the person that left owing fingerprint fees and how much. The Central Office Division of Budget and Finance will contact the facility to process their end of the JV and forward it to Central Office for processing to move the money into the fingerprint fee account.
- E. If suspect information on matters with potential terrorism connections is returned during any inquiry, it shall be forwarded to the local joint terrorism task force or similar agency.

The following Processing Chart summarizes the fingerprint processes:

Staff	Criminal History Inquiry (prior to entry or employment in any DOCCS facility or office)	Who takes fingerprints	When to take fingerprints	What fingerprint card to use	Collect Fee?	Submit to
Correction Officer Parole Officer Parole Officer Trainee Warrant and Transfer Officer Institution Safety Officer	YES	EIU	Pre- Employment Screening	Live Scan	YES (\$75 US Postal Money Order)	EIU
Non-uniform (civilian) staff Paid Interns	YES	C - Personnel F - ID Officer	Initial date of employment	FBI FD-258	Payroll Deduct*	EIU
Per Diem Employees	YES	C - Personnel F - ID Officer	Initial date of employment	FBI FD-258	YES (\$75 US Postal Money Order)	EIU
Outside Agency Staff OMH & DMV Staff	YES	C - Personnel F - ID Officer	First day in facility	FBI FD-258	\$75 Journal Voucher	EIU
Extra Service Employees	*YES	C - Personnel F - ID Officer	*Initial date of employment	FBI FD-258	\$75 Journal Voucher	EIU
Contract Service Providers Consultants	YES	C - Personnel F - ID Officer	First day in facility	FBI FD-258	\$75 Journal Voucher	EIU

C = Central Office or Community Supervision Offices

This Processing Chart continues on the next page.

F = Facility

^{*}Extra service employees who are currently permanent employees of DOCCS will not need a criminal history inquiry or fingerprints.

NO	2216, Fingerprinting/Criminal History Inquiry - New Empl	oyees and Contractors
	DATE 11/01/2018	PAGE 9 of 9

Contractor	YES	C - Personnel F - ID Officer	**As determined by Superintendent -or- Regional Director, Division Head, -or- Designee**	FBI FD-258	\$75 Journal Voucher	EIU
Information Technology Services (ITS) Employee	NYSP	NYSP	Pre- Employment	N/A	N/A	N/A

C = Central Office or Community Supervision Offices

Attachment A continued

F = Facility

^{**} Mandatory where it has been determined that based on the nature of the anticipated work, a contractor will have other than incidental contact with incarcerated individuals, such as contact with incarcerated individuals while the contractor is not under direct supervision by security staff (*Direct staff supervision* means that security staff is in the same room with, and within reasonable hearing distance of, the resident or incarcerated individual). Also, if the contract provides for six months or more of work, the prospective contractor will be fingerprinted.

NEW Corrections and	TITLE		NO. 4027
STATE Community Supervision	Sexual Victim Prevention &		DATE 07/21/2022
DIRECTIVE			
SUPERSEDES DIR #4027 Dtd. 02/15/22	DISTRIBUTION A B	PAGES PAGE 1 OF 9	DATE LAST REVISED
REFERENCES (Include but are not limited to)	APPROVING AUTHORITY	0	
See Section VI			

I. POLICY

Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) Standard 115.11/211: Zero Tolerance Statement:

The Department has zero tolerance for sexual abuse, sexual harassment, and unauthorized relationships. No employee shall engage in sexual conduct, sexual contact, or an unauthorized relationship with an incarcerated individual or a releasee, whether in a correctional facility or under Community Supervision; engage in sexual harassment of an incarcerated individual or a releasee; or engage in retaliation related to such an incident or investigation. No incarcerated individual or releasee shall engage in sexual abuse or sexual harassment or engage in retaliation related to such an incident or investigation.

Incarcerated individuals and releasees have the right to be free from sexual abuse and sexual harassment. Sexual abuse, sexual harassment, and unauthorized relationships violate Department rules, may violate criminal statutes, and are a serious breach of the public trust. Additionally, they constitute serious threats to safety and security.

All allegations of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, unauthorized relationships, and retaliation against staff, an incarcerated individual, or a releasee for reporting a sexual abuse or sexual harassment incident or for participating in an investigation will be thoroughly investigated. Furthermore, any perpetrator of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, an unauthorized relationship, or retaliation related to such an incident or investigation will be dealt with severely through discipline or prosecution to the fullest extent permitted by law.

- II. GOVERNING POLICIES AND RULES: The following Employees' Manual Sections and Standards of Incarcerated Individual Behavior are of particular relevance to the Department's Sexual Victimization Prevention and Response policy. Even if not specifically referenced herein, employees are reminded that other provisions of the Employees' Manual may be applicable to the prevention of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, and unauthorized relationships.
 - A. Employees' Manual Section 2.15 prohibits unauthorized relationships including, but not limited to, engaging in any conversation, communication, dealing, transaction, association, or relationship with any incarcerated individual, formerly incarcerated individual, releasee, or former releasee, which is not necessary or proper for the discharge of the employee's duties.
 - B. Employees' Manual Section 2.19 prohibits an employee from engaging in sexual abuse, sexual harassment, or related retaliation. Every staff person, including any employee, contractor or contract employee, volunteer or intern of the Department, or any employee, contractor or contract employee assigned to work in a Department correctional facility by any other State agency, is prohibited from engaging in any type of sexual conduct or sexual contact with any incarcerated individual or releasee.

- C. Employees' Manual Section 2.20 establishes the duty to report sexual abuse and sexual harassment, and retaliation; and provides for confidentiality apart from disclosures that are required by policy and as necessary for treatment, investigation, and other security and management decisions. This Directive extends the duty to report to include unauthorized relationships.
- D. Employees' Manual Section 2.45 requires employees to report any information concerning corruption, fraud, criminal activity, conflicts of interest, misconduct, or abuse by an employee or supervisory staff.
- E. Incarcerated Individual Rule 101.10, "Standards of Incarcerated Individual Behavior," prohibits incarcerated individuals from engaging in, or soliciting others to engage in sexual acts. Other sexual contact and conduct of a sexual nature are also prohibited under the Incarcerated Individual Rule Series 101.

III. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

- A. <u>PREA Coordinator (PREA Standard 115.11[b])</u>: The Commissioner has designated the Associate Commissioner for PREA Compliance as the agency-wide PREA Coordinator, who is responsible for the implementation of policies and programs to address sexual victimization of incarcerated individuals and others under the jurisdiction of the Department, unauthorized relationships, and related forms of misconduct.
 - 1. The Associate Commissioner for PREA reports to the Commissioner and is a member of the Executive Team.
 - 2. The Associate Commissioner for PREA oversees the Sexual Abuse Prevention & Education Office.
- B. <u>Director of PREA Compliance</u>: The Director of PREA Compliance serves under the Associate Commissioner for PREA as the assistant agency-wide PREA Coordinator. The Director of PREA Compliance is responsible for administering the PREA Audit program; provides direct oversight of agency-wide PREA implementation activities; and assists in the development and implementation of programs and policies in areas relating to compliance with PREA and the reduction of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, and unauthorized relationships within the Department.
- C. <u>PREA Compliance Managers (PREA Standard 115.11[c])</u>: Each facility shall have a PREA Compliance Manager with sufficient time and authority to coordinate the facility's efforts to comply with the PREA standards and implementation of policies and programs to address sexual victimization of incarcerated individuals within the facility.
 - Assistant Deputy Superintendent (ADS) PREA Compliance Managers (PCM) shall be appointed to designated primary correctional facilities and may have PREA compliance oversight duties at one or more facilities as designated by the Associate Commissioner for PREA.
 - An ADS PCM is responsible for fulfilling PREA Compliance Manager duties at their primary correctional facility under the supervision of the Associate Commissioner for PREA, Director of PREA Compliance, and the facility Superintendent.
 - a. Each ADS PCM shall be responsible for coordinating and providing oversight of PREA Compliance activities and efforts to address sexual victimization at their designated cluster facilities in coordination with the Superintendent and facility executive team at each cluster facility.

- The ADC DOM is supported to me
- b. The ADS PCM is expected to maintain ongoing communication with the Associate Commissioner, Director of PREA Compliance, and OSI to facilitate sexual victimization prevention efforts and investigative matters and shall keep the Associate Commissioner apprised of any issues requiring attention, including but not limited to matters regarding audit and compliance.
- 2. Each Superintendent shall designate a Security Supervisor, not to fall below the rank of Lieutenant, as the PREA Point Person (PPP) for the correctional facility. The designated PPP will liaison with the facility's designated ADS PCM in a joint effort to implement the PREA Standards within the facility.

IV. SEXUAL VICTIMIZATION PREVENTION POLICY MANUAL

- A. The Sexual Victimization Prevention Policy Manual (SVPPM) supplements this Directive and shall have the same force and effect as a Directive in setting forth the Department's policies for the prevention of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, unauthorized relationships, and retaliation related to such incidents or investigations, and provides detailed operating procedures implementing the National PREA Standards.
 - The SVPPM is issued by the Associate Commissioner and electronically maintained and distributed by the Sexual Abuse Prevention and Education Office (SAPEO). Relevant sections of the SVPPM shall be distributed by the ADS PCM or designated PPP to staff who have an operational need within their respective disciplines.
 - 2. Requests for interpretation of a SVPPM section or for a variance from the direction or requirements set forth in a section of the SVPPM shall be submitted, in writing, to the Associate Commissioner.
 - 3. Each SVPPM section shall be coded as either "A B", "A", or "D" (as noted in the "Distribution" box in the printed heading) for distribution and security purposes using the distribution codification established by Directive #0001, "Introduction to the Policy and Procedure Manual."
- B. The SVPPM is reviewed on an annual basis. Revisions to the content are made as warranted by SAPEO.

V. PROCEDURE

A. Policies to Ensure Referrals of Allegations for Investigations (PREA Standard 115.22/222): An administrative or criminal investigation shall be completed for all allegations of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, and unauthorized relationships. Pursuant to Directive #0700, "Office of Special Investigations (OSI)," the Commissioner has designated OSI to conduct these investigations.

B. Reporting

- 1. Staff Reporting (PREA Standard 115.61/261).
 - a. All staff shall report to a supervisor immediately:
 - (1) Any knowledge, suspicion, or information regarding an incident of sexual abuse or sexual harassment that occurred in a facility whether or not the facility is part of the Agency, and any unauthorized relationship. This duty to report includes any knowledge, suspicion, or information regarding an incident of sexual abuse or sexual harassment of a releasee whether in a community based residential program or while under Community Supervision, and any unauthorized relationship with a releasee.

- (2) Any acts of retaliation against an incarcerated individual, releasee, or staff for reporting such an incident or for participating in an investigation of an incident of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, or an unauthorized relationship.
- (3) Any staff neglect or violation of responsibilities that may have contributed to an incident or retaliation.
- b. For reporting purposes under this directive, "employee" includes any employee, contractor, contract employee, volunteer, or intern of the Department or any employee, contractor, or contract employee assigned to work in a Department correctional facility by any other State agency.
- c. The duty to report includes verbal, written, third-party, and anonymous reports, regardless of whether staff personally believe the information to be true or reliable.
- d. Staff may privately report suspected sexual abuse, sexual harassment, or an unauthorized relationship by calling the Department of Corrections and Community Supervision's (DOCCS) OSI's Sex Crimes Division at 1-844-OSI-4NYS or 518-457-2653, or via the <u>online reporting portal</u>.
- e. Apart from reporting to designated supervisors or officials, staff shall not reveal any information related to a sexual abuse or sexual harassment report to anyone other than to the extent necessary, as specified in Agency policy including, but not limited to, the SVPPM, to make treatment, investigation, and other security and management decisions.
- f. Pursuant to Directive #0700, "Office of Special Investigations (OSI)," and Directive #2111, "Report of Employee Misconduct," under no circumstances shall a facility or Community Supervision bureau investigation involving sexual abuse, sexual harassment, or an unauthorized relationship be initiated unless and until OSI has been consulted. The only exception to this rule is when an initial facility or Community Supervision bureau investigation is authorized pursuant to one of the following:
 - (1) An approved Coordinated Response to Reports of Sexual Victimization Facility Operations Manual (FOM) (see SVPPM, Section 115.65).
 - (2) Form #4027RC, "Watch Commander Quick Reference Chart" (see SVPPM, Section 115.65).
 - (3) Form #4027CS, "Community Supervision Supervisor/Reentry Manager Quick Reference Chart" (see SVPPM, Section 115.65).
- Incarcerated Individual and Releasee Reporting (PREA Standard 115.51/251):
 The Department provides multiple internal ways for incarcerated individuals and releasees to privately report sexual abuse and sexual harassment, retaliation by other incarcerated individuals, releasees, or staff for reporting sexual abuse and sexual harassment, unauthorized relationships, and staff neglect or violation of responsibilities that may contribute to such incidents.
 - a. As set forth in the Employees' Manual, Section 2.20, and this Directive, staff are mandated to accept reports of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, and unauthorized relationships made verbally, in writing, anonymously, and from third parties.

- b. Incarcerated individuals and releasees may report to OSI. Reports may be made by writing to: DOCCS Office of Special Investigations, 1220 Washington Ave., Building 4, Albany, NY 12226-2050. Incarcerated individuals may also use the OSI Reporting Line by dialing 444 on the incarcerated individual telephone system during regular business hours. Calls to 444 are not monitored by facility staff. Releasees and family members may also contact the OSI reporting line at 1-844-OSI-4NYS, via email to OSIComplaint@doccs.ny.gov, or by submitting an online complaint at https://doccs.ny.gov/doccs-office-special-investigations-osi.
- c. Incarcerated individuals and releasees may also report to the State Commission of Correction (SCOC), a separate State office that is not part of the Department by writing to: State Commission of Correction, Alfred E. Smith State Office Building, 80 South Swan Street, 12th Floor, Albany, New York 12210. Incarcerated individuals may use privileged correspondence for this purpose. The SCOC will receive and immediately forward reports of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, and unauthorized relationships to OSI. An incarcerated individual or releasee may request that the SCOC allow them to remain anonymous and the SCOC will not include their name in the report.
- 3. Third-party reporting (PREA Standard 115.54/254): Third-party reports on behalf of anyone under the Department's custody or supervision can be made to any employee. The receiving employee shall immediately forward such report to the facility Superintendent or Bureau Chief. Immediate after-hours reports concerning an incarcerated individual may be made to the facility Watch Commander. Anyone may report an incident of sexual victimization involving an incarcerated individual or a releasee to the Department's OSI through the OSI reporting line at 1-844-OSI-4NYS, via email to OSIComplaint@doccs.ny.gov, or by submitting an online complaint at https://doccs.ny.gov/doccs-office-special-investigations-osi.

C. Medical and Mental Health Care

- Access to emergency medical and mental health services (PREA Standard 115.82/282).
 - a. All reports of sexual abuse must be medically assessed immediately at the facility or by an outside hospital emergency department, regardless of whether or not the allegation has been independently verified prior to the victim's presentation for treatment (see Health Services Policy Manual, Section 1.60).
 - b. If no qualified medical and mental health practitioners are on duty at the time a report of recent abuse is made, the Watch Commander will ensure that security staff first responders take preliminary steps to protect the victim and shall immediately notify the appropriate medical and mental health practitioners pursuant to the facility specific Coordinated Response to Reports of Sexual Victimization FOM and shall document the action taken on Form #4027WC (see SVPPM, Section 115.65).
 - c. Incarcerated victims of sexual abuse shall be offered timely information about and timely access to emergency contraception and sexually transmitted infections prophylaxis per Health Services Policy Manual, Sections 1.12B and 1.60.

- Treatment services shall be provided to the victim without financial liability and d. regardless of whether or not the victim cooperates in any investigation arising from the incident as set forth in Health Services Policy Manual, Section 1.60.
- Ongoing medical and mental health care for sexual abuse victims and abusers 2. (PREA Standard 115.83/283).
 - The facility shall offer medical and mental health evaluations and, as appropriate, treatment to all incarcerated individuals who have been victimized by sexual abuse in any prison, jail, lockup, or juvenile facility.
 - The evaluation and treatment, as appropriate, will include follow-up services, treatment plans, and, when necessary, continuing care upon transfer or release.
 - Incarcerated victims of sexual abuse will be provided with ongoing medical and mental health services consistent with the community standard of care, the nature and scope of which are determined by medical and mental health practitioners according to their professional judgment.
 - (1) Medical Care shall be in accordance with applicable sections of the Health Services Policy Manual.
 - (2) Mental Health Services shall be in accordance with the current Memorandum of Understanding between DOCCS and the Office of Mental Health (OMH), and in accordance with policy promulgated by OMH.
 - Upon learning that an incarcerated individual has a history of committing an act of sexual abuse against another incarcerated individual, including, but not limited to, a finding of guilt of a Tier disposition per the Incarcerated Individual Rule Series 101 for a sex offense, penal law offense of a sexual nature, or attempt thereof while incarcerated, the Offender Rehabilitation Coordinator (ORC) shall complete a referral to Central Office Guidance for evaluation for the Sex Offender Counseling and Treatment Program (SOCTP) and Form #3150, "DOCCS - Mental Health Referral," for consideration by OMH for other appropriate mental health treatment to address sexual offending behavior.

D. Reports of Sexual Victimization

- The Deputy Superintendent for Security of each facility shall be responsible for maintaining a bound and numbered "Report of Sexual Victimization Logbook" that shall be a chronological listing of each report of sexual victimization or related conduct (i.e., sexual abuse, sexual harassment, sexual threat, unauthorized relationship, inappropriate frisk, etc.) that occurs.
- To preserve confidentiality, the logbook shall be secured and access to it limited to those personnel with an operational need, including the ADS PCM and the designated PPP. The ADS PCM shall conduct regular reviews of the logbook and ensure that details from case updates are properly recorded.

- 3. Report of Sexual Victimization Logbook entries shall include the following:
 - Report log number.

NOTE: Each incident shall be numbered utilizing the facility three-letter code, followed by the four-digit calendar year of the report, and a three-digit number identifying the consecutive order that the report was received during that year (i.e., ADK-2022-001 denotes the first Sexual Victimization Report at Adirondack for calendar year 2022).

- Date and time of the report. b.
- Date and time of the incident. C.
- Name, DIN, and role of the incarcerated individual(s) involved. d.
- e. Location of the incident.
- f. Brief description of the incident.

NOTE: If the incident was also an Unusual Incident (UI), it is sufficient to list only the UI number in this section.

- Name, title, and role of staff and others involved. g.
- Date and time facility health services was contacted. h.
- Date and time that the incarcerated individual was referred to OMH by i. completion of Form #3150 or other means.
- Date, time, and manner OSI was contacted, noting who was contacted. j.
- k. Case result (substantiated, unsubstantiated, or unfounded) and date of determination.
- Date notification sent via legal mail to the incarcerated individual.
- Monthly Report of Sexual Victimization Summary: Each correctional facility shall complete Form #4027MR, "Monthly Report of Sexual Victimization Summary," using Form #4027MRC, "Monthly Report of Sexual Victimization Summary Continuation Sheet as needed, that shall be a chronological listing of each report of sexual victimization that occurs during a given month for review by the Superintendent. The Monthly Report shall be reviewed and approved by the ADS PCM and the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall forward a copy of the Monthly Report to the Associate Commissioner for PREA, at PREA@doccs.ny.gov, with a copy to the Deputy Commissioner for Correctional Facilities by the 15th of each month.

The original shall be secured for proper storage and a new summary will be started. Monthly Report of Sexual Victimization Summary entries shall include the following:

- Report of Sexual Victimization log number. 1.
- 2. Date and time of the report.
- 3. Date and time of the incident
- 4. Name, title, and role of the incarcerated individual(s) involved.
- 5. Location of the incident.
- Brief description of the incident noting if the alleged act was threatened, attempted, or completed sexual conduct, touching, harassment, voyeurism, retaliation concerning an incident of sexual abuse, or a report of inappropriate contact during a frisk.

- NOTE: If the incident was also a UI, it is sufficient to list only the UI number in this section.
- 7. Date, time, and manner that OSI was contacted.
- 8. Name, title, and role of staff and others involved.
- 9. Total number of reports of sexual abuse, sexual harassment, unauthorized relationships, and improper frisk allegations by month and year-to-date (if none, indicate that on the form).

F. Sexual Abuse Incident Reviews (PREA Standard 115.86/286)

- Each facility is required to conduct a sexual abuse incident review within 30 days of the conclusion of every sexual abuse investigation, including where the allegation has not been substantiated, unless the allegation has been determined to be unfounded. In furtherance of that mandate, OSI will develop the necessary investigative documentation in order to facilitate the completion of those incident reviews.
- At the conclusion of any PREA reportable substantiated or unsubstantiated investigation, OSI will submit the necessary Sexual Abuse Incident Review Information (SAIRI) to SAPEO. SAPEO will forward an incident review packet to the Superintendent, ADS PCM, and the designated PPP with instructions to conduct the incident review and report back to SAPEO with any findings and recommendations.
- OSI will also provide SAPEO with the relevant incident review information for any substantiated non-PREA reportable unauthorized relationship investigations. Such incidents present significant security threats. Accordingly, these acts of misconduct are included in the incident review process with the goal of identifying policy and operational improvements that will help detect and prevent unauthorized relationships.

G. Audits of Standards Implementation (PREA Standard 115.93/293)

- Correctional Facility PREA Compliance Audits: During each three-year PREA Audit Cycle (e.g., August 20, 2022 - August 19, 2025), the agency shall ensure that each facility is audited at least once.
 - One-third of each facility type (i.e., adult prison and community confinement facility) shall be audited during each PREA Audit Year pursuant to a schedule established by the Associate Commissioner for PREA.
 - Audits shall be conducted by one or more Department of Justice-Certified PREA Auditors.
- Contract Community Based Residential Program PREA Compliance Audits: During each three-year PREA Audit Cycle (e.g., August 20, 2022 - August 19, 2025), the agency shall ensure that each contracted Community-Based Residential Program (CBRP) is audited at least once to the extent required under the applicable contract.
 - CBRP audits are the responsibility of the contractor.
 - The CBRP audit schedule is established by the Associate Commissioner for PREA Compliance in coordination with the Office of Reentry Services.
 - The Office of Reentry Services oversees the conduct of CBRP PREA Compliance Audits as part of their contract monitoring responsibilities.

3. Audits shall primarily be the responsibility of the facility and shall be supported by Central Office SAPEO. For each audit, external staff shall be made available for audit interviews and records review including the agency PREA Coordinator or designee, representatives from OSI's Sex Crimes Division, and the appropriate Community Supervision Reentry Manger, as required under the audit process established by the U.S. Department of Justice.

VI. REFERENCES

- National PREA Standards 28 CFR, Part 115
- Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA)
- ACA Expected Practices:
 - 5-ACI-1C-09, 5-ACI-3D-08, 5-ACI-3D-09, 5-ACI-3D-10, 5-ACI-3D-11,
 5-ACI-3D-12, 5-ACI-3D-13, 5-ACI-3D-14, 5-ACI-3D-15, 5-ACI-3D-16,
 5-ACI-6C-14
- Directive #0001, "Introduction to the Policy and Procedure Manual"
- Directive #0700, "Office of Special Investigations (OSI)"
- Directive #2011, "Disposition of Departmental Records"
- Directive #2111, "Report of Employee Misconduct"
- Sexual Victimization Prevention Policy Manual (SVPPM)
- Health Services Policy Manual (HSPM)
- Facility Operations Manual (FOM)
- Employees' Manual

NEW YORK	Corrections and	TITLE	_	NO. 4750
STATE	Community Supervision	Volunteer Services Program		DATE 12/21/2022
	DIRECTIVE			
SUPERSEDES DIR # 475	50 Dtd. 07/21/20	DISTRIBUTION A B	PAGES PAGE 1 OF 15	DATE LAST REVISED
REFERENCES (Include but are not limited to) See Section III		APPROVING AUTHORITY APPROVING AUTHORITY) e

- I. PURPOSE: This directive establishes Department of Corrections and Community Supervision (DOCCS) policies and procedures for the administration and supervision of the Volunteer Services Program.
- II. PROGRAM GOALS: The Volunteer Services Program is designed to promote the involvement of responsible community persons in the continuum of services and programs made available to the incarcerated individual and their family.

III. REFERENCES

- Penal Law §130.05
- Public Officers Law, Section 17
- Executive Order No. 6
- ACA Expected Practices
 - 5-ACI-1A-06, 5-ACI-1G-01, 5-ACI-1G-02, 5-ACI-1G-03, 5-ACI-1G-04, 5-ACI-1G-05, 5-ACI-1G-07, 5-ACI-5E-05, 5-ACI-6B-10, 5-ACI-6B-11, 5-ACI-7F-06
 - o 2-CO-1B-11, 2-CO-1G-01, 2-CO-1G-02, 2-CO-1G-03, 2-CO-1G-04, 2-CO-1G-05, 2-CO-1G-06, 2-CO-1G-07, 2-CO-1G-08, 2-CO-1G-09, 2-CO-1G-10, 2-CO-5E-01
 - 4-APPFS-1C-04, 4-APPFS-1C-05, 4-APPFS-1C-06, 4-APPFS-1C-07, 4-APPFS-3A-02, 4-APPFS-3A-12, 4-APPFS-3D-16
 - o **2-1058**
- DOCCS Directives #2208B, #2216, #2601, #4027, #4065, #4322, #4403, #4423, #4425
- Program Services Manual
- DOCCS Training Manual

IV. PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND SUPERVISION

- A. The Director of Ministerial, Family and Volunteer Services (MFVS) is responsible for the administration of the Statewide Volunteer Services Program.
- B. The Assistant Director of Family and Volunteer Services reports to the Director of Ministerial, Family and Volunteer Services, and is responsible for the day-to-day administration of Volunteer Services. The Assistant Director supervises the Regional Coordinators of Correctional Volunteers Services (RCCVS).
- C. RCCVS provides policy direction and serves as the liaison between Central Office and facility staff. They are program consultants to the Deputy Superintendents for Program Services (DSP), Supervisors of Correctional Facility Volunteer Services (SCFVS), facility staff, community groups, and organizations. RCCVS are responsible for the initial and ongoing training and education of the SCFVS in their assigned regions.

- They are also responsible for the review of Volunteer Services purchase requests and for monitoring the Volunteer Services Program in their regions.
- D. Facility Superintendents must review each new request for a volunteer, volunteer group, or volunteer program.
- E. DSPs are responsible for the overall management of their facility's Volunteer Services Program and for the activity of the individual assigned as the Volunteer Services Contact Person (VSCP), as well as the Volunteer Staff Supervisors (VSS) who supervise volunteer programs. They assist the SCFVS in identifying Volunteer Services' needs and assure that all required Volunteer Services' reports are submitted in a timely manner. With the SCFVS, they review all applicants and ensure that all volunteers are properly registered. The DSPs are also responsible for ensuring that a current and complete list of active volunteers and volunteer programs is maintained at their facility.

NOTE: The DSP, at a facility where an SCFVS is based, is responsible for the day-to-day supervision of that SCFVS, together with the RCCVS, as well as ensuring that the SCFVS provides adequate coverage to each of their assigned facilities.

- F. The SCFVS, under the direction of an RCCVS and a DSP, recruits and orients community persons and staff to work as volunteers in a correctional setting. SCFVS are required to maintain an up-to-date Microsoft Access Database of all registered volunteers in their region; the Director of MFVS will determine the minimum data required. They are also responsible for the completion of the annual "Volunteer Services Program Evaluation," Form #MFVS3085, for all regular ongoing programs at each of their assigned facilities, and for promoting effective relations between volunteers and staff. SCFVS are responsible for training and support of the facility VSCP. They may assist in community/public relations, if so designated by the Superintendent at any of their assigned facilities.
- G. The VSCP, appointed by the Superintendent, will be responsible for the coordination of the Volunteer Services Program at each facility. Tasks will include, but not necessarily be limited to: the maintenance, care, and security of volunteer files; the processing of applications; the preparation of Volunteer Services' gate clearances; and the gathering of Volunteer Program statistics for monthly reports that will need to be reviewed and approved by the DSP. For purposes of supervision, they will report to the DSP and a SCFVS. Their annual performance evaluation should reflect their additional duties as the facility VSCP, with input provided by the SCFVS.
- H. VSSs are responsible for conducting screening interviews, using Form #MFVS3082, "Report of Interview of Volunteer Applicant," with potential volunteers who apply to provide a service in their respective program area. They are also responsible for the training and direct supervision of these volunteers. They should not supervise more than 40 volunteers.

V. TYPES OF VOLUNTEERS

A. <u>Volunteer</u>: A volunteer is a person who is authorized to provide a service to the Department or its incarcerated individuals without direct compensation from the Department.

B. A volunteer is required to comply with the rules, regulations, and guidelines required of Department employees and its volunteers. The Department makes no representations to volunteers about the applicability of either Workers' Compensation benefits or representation and indemnification under the Public Officers Law.

DATE 12/21/2022

- Inquiries should be directed to either the Workers' Compensation Board Bureau of Compliance or to the Office of the Attorney General. A volunteer is subject to all of the policies and procedures as referenced in Section X of this directive and in Form #4750C, "Standards of Conduct for Volunteers Within the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision." Volunteers are expected to support the Departmental Mission and are not to portray the Department in a negative fashion.
- 1. Paid Professional: This category of volunteer often represents their employer and provides a service to the Department. These individuals, though paid by their employer to provide the service, are defined as volunteers and registration, orientation, and TB testing requirements are the same as for regular ongoing volunteers.
- 2. Volunteers providing professional services will be required to provide documentation that they are certified, licensed, and/or otherwise qualified to provide the service for which they are applying.
 - Department Personnel: Department personnel may provide a volunteer service if that service is clearly different from their paid work assignment and has been approved by the Superintendent and the DSP at the facility where the employee works.
 - NOTE: Former employees who have been terminated, or who have resigned or retired rather than face dismissal, will not be allowed to volunteer.
- 3. Foreign National: A foreign national will be considered for volunteer programs provided they can produce valid identification and documentation that they are in this country legally.
- 4. Religious Volunteer and Spiritual Advisor: All volunteers requesting involvement in religious programs must be reviewed and approved by the Coordinating Chaplain and appropriate Chaplain of the faith group involved, if one is assigned to the facility. As outlined in subsection IV-H, the appropriate Chaplain must also conduct a screening interview with the prospective volunteer and document this interview, which will be placed in the volunteer's file. If the volunteer represents a religious organization from the community but is to be assigned to a non-religious assignment, approval by the facility Coordinating Chaplain and appropriate Chaplain of the faith group is not required. Volunteers representing religious organizations must be advised not to proselytize (attempt to persuade someone to convert to one's faith) among incarcerated individuals.

A Spiritual Advisor is an individual who, with the written endorsement of a bona fide ecclesiastical body, has been identified as a religious volunteer capable of providing spiritual advice and direction to incarcerated individuals of that particular faith group on an individual basis.

Spiritual Advisors who have obtained volunteer status approval from the Department must request an exemption from the prohibition concerning visitation, correspondence, and phone calls from incarcerated individuals as outlined in subsection V-D-4-b. In addition, the following procedures must be followed:

- a. Provide documentation to the Coordinating Chaplain stating that a pastoral relationship with the incarcerated individual(s) existed prior to incarceration.
- b. Provide written endorsement from a bona fide ecclesiastical body identifying the volunteer as a cleric or lay person who can function in this capacity.
- c. Provide the Coordinating Chaplain with a written description of the volunteer's activities in the role of Spiritual Advisor, including a list of the names of incarcerated individuals who will meet with the volunteer. This description must be reviewed by the Chaplain in charge of the faith group involved.

It shall be the responsibility of the Coordinating Chaplain to obtain these documents prior to commencement of an incarcerated individual-Spiritual Advisor relationship and maintain said documents for the duration of said service.

- 5. Persons with Criminal History: Volunteer applicants with an arrest and/or conviction history shall not be automatically disqualified to serve. Each applicant shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. As a rule, the following will apply:
 - a. Prospective volunteers with unclear arrest dispositions, active warrants, detainers, or Orders of Protection that are found through their criminal history check may be excluded from volunteering until such incidents are resolved.
 - b. A formerly incarcerated person or releasee may be considered for a volunteer assignment in a facility one year following their release from incarceration.
 - c. A formerly incarcerated person shall not be considered as a volunteer if they were prosecuted and found guilty, in a court of law, of assault of correctional staff, aggravated harassment of an employee, attempted escape from a correctional facility, promoting or possessing prison contraband, hostage incident, or rioting.
 - d. A formerly incarcerated person's record of institutional adjustment and, if applicable, adjustment to probation or parole supervision, will be evaluated and considered prior to approval. Disciplinary sanctions similar to behavior actions listed in subsection V-B-5-c, or in addition, being found guilty of behavior such as assault on incarcerated individuals, gang-related behavior, mass demonstration or radicalization of other incarcerated individuals, sexual misconduct, etc., may exclude an individual from consideration.
 - e. During the period after release, the formerly incarcerated person shall have demonstrated involvement in community activities related to the area in which they wish to serve as a volunteer.
 - The person will also be required to show a positive adjustment to community life by providing employment history and a recommendation by their Probation/Parole Officer, if applicable.

f. Prospective volunteers with open charges will not be considered as volunteers until official documentation detailing the final disposition of the charges is submitted.

A review by the SCFVS and the facility DSP will be conducted on all formerly incarcerated persons, releasees, probationers, and persons with warrants, detainers, and Orders of Protection, who apply as volunteers. Final approval will rest with the facility Superintendent. Exception to this policy will be given consideration only when substantial, written justification is submitted to the Superintendent or designee.

- 6. Regular Ongoing Volunteer: Individuals who provide a service more than six times per year, including a variety of activities and events. These volunteers may come from a variety of organizations such as community-based, faith-based, not-for-profit, or civic groups, educational institutions, and the general community.
- 7. One-Time Volunteer: Individuals who provide a service for special one-time activities, including but not limited to incarcerated individual organization events, family day events, sports activities, theatrical performances, graduations, religious observances, etc., are to be registered as one-time volunteers.
 - NOTE: One-time refers to only one time in any NYS DOCCS facility (see <u>Form #4750B</u>, "Volunteer Registration Process Chart," for requirements).
 - <u>Form #MFVS3080A</u>, "Application for One-Time Volunteer Status," must be utilized for one-time volunteers. Subsequent service to a NYS DOCCS facility must be processed as either an occasional or a regular ongoing volunteer utilizing <u>Form #MFVS3080</u>, "Application for Volunteer Status."
- 8. Occasional Volunteer: Individuals who provide services periodically (six times or fewer per year in a combination of facilities) for Choir/Theatrical Performances, Sports Teams, Resource Fairs, Academic Guest Lecturers, and one-day attendance (eight hours or fewer) at Religious Events (see Form #4750B for requirements). Approvals for other groups may be obtained by contacting the appropriate RCCVS.
- C. <u>Volunteer Groups</u>: Individuals who enter a facility as part of a community group must individually complete the registration process, unless verification is received that the individual has been registered at another DOCCS facility within the past 12 months.
 - 1. All volunteer groups or organizations must have a Key Volunteer who acts as the designated contact, and the name of this person will be provided to the SCFVS.
 - 2. The Key Volunteer shall assist staff in the screening and selection of volunteers who will provide services under the organization's auspices by completing a letter of endorsement for each new regular ongoing volunteer. This letter is to be done on the agency's letterhead and should follow the format provided on Form #4750A, "Volunteer Endorsement Letter." The Superintendent or designee shall have final approval for all volunteers.
 - Any literature or other materials sponsored by the group or organization must be approved in advance by the DSP or designee before distribution to incarcerated individuals.

- Material approvals will be subject to a determination of appropriateness. Once the DSP has approved the materials, they should be placed on the gate clearance.
- 4. Some community groups celebrate special events with food and beverage; however, in the correctional setting, volunteers and staff are prohibited from bringing in food and beverage items, except for their personal consumption during the time they are in the facility. On occasion, the DSP will review and approve a request for a special event (i.e., Kairos Retreat, Residents Encounter Christ (REC), graduations) and if approved, items will be ordered from the Statewide menu.

D. Volunteer Requirements

- 1. Under normal circumstances, the minimum age for a volunteer is 21.
 - a. Exceptions can be made with special approval from the Superintendent for persons ages 17-20 for special one-time programs, as described in subsection V-B-7, or for participants in internship programs or youth employment programs. With regard to internships, all colleges must provide internship paperwork and description of activities. All volunteer interns must be registered through the New York Student Internship Leaders Portal at: nysinternships.cs.ny.gov.
 - b. Volunteers who are 17 or 18 years of age must provide written permission from their parent or legal guardian.
 - c. If approved, volunteers under the age of 21 must be under direct supervision of DOCCS staff or other NYS Agency staff working full time in the facility, at all times while inside the facility, with approval from the Superintendent.
- 2. All volunteers providing professional services will require additional documentation to ensure that they are certified, licensed, and/or otherwise qualified to provide such services.
- 3. A volunteer may be turned away from the facility if their manner of dress or appearance causes security or other pertinent concerns. Volunteers must adhere to the dress code outlined in Directive #4403, "Incarcerated Individual Visitor Program." If turned away for one's dress or appearance, this action should be documented for inclusion in the volunteer's file. Regarding grooming, a male volunteer shall not be subject to the same restrictions on hair length or beards as Department employees.
- 4. Restrictions: During orientation, volunteers must be cautioned regarding the seriousness of personal/emotional involvement with incarcerated individuals. This will include visiting, corresponding (including secure messaging (email) and packages) and accepting phone calls. In order to avoid any misunderstanding, the following guidelines must be strictly observed:
 - a. Volunteers are prohibited from having any sexual contact or engaging in any sexual conduct with an incarcerated individual. DOCCS has a zero-tolerance policy for sexual abuse. It is a crime for any employee to engage in sexual conduct or sexual contact with an incarcerated individual.

For purposes of Penal Law §130.05, an employee also includes any person providing direct services to incarcerated individuals in a State correctional facility pursuant to a contractual arrangement with the Department or, in the case of a volunteer, a written agreement with the Department.

All volunteer applicants must read the most updated version of the Policy on the Prevention of Sexual Abuse of Incarcerated Individuals. All volunteers are to be provided with training on Directive #4027, "Sexual Victimization Prevention & Response." All volunteer applicants must acknowledge receipt in writing that they will be held accountable for and act in accordance with the policy and the law. All volunteer applicants must acknowledge that they understand the Department's zero-tolerance policy regarding sexual abuse and sexual harassment and how to report such incidents under DOCCS' sexual abuse and sexual harassment prevention, detection, and response policies and procedures.

b. Volunteers are prohibited from corresponding with (including secure messaging (email) and packages), visiting with, or accepting telephone calls from incarcerated individuals at any DOCCS facility unless they receive permission. If a volunteer wishes to seek approval, the volunteer must submit the request and rationale, in writing, to the Superintendent at the facility where they are a volunteer. The SCFVS must review all requests with the RCCVS who may in turn consult with the AD FVS and/or the Director MFVS. The Superintendent is authorized to deny such requests. The denial must be sent, in writing, to the volunteer and a copy sent to the Director of MFVS. The letter must state that the volunteer may appeal, in writing, to the Deputy Commissioner for Program Services within 30 days of the date of the letter. The Deputy Commissioner for Program Services will then issue a final determination to the volunteer within 30 days of receipt of the appeal.

If the Superintendent supports the request, it must be forwarded to the Director of MFVS for recommendation; after which, it will be forwarded to the Deputy Commissioner for Program Services for final determination.

Prospective volunteers must be asked to disclose whether or not they have any close friends or family members who are incarcerated within the State correctional system at the time of their application/screening. Furthermore, volunteers must be asked if they have, or intend to have, any in person, telephone or other contact with any individuals who have been released from a NYS DOCCS facility within the past five years. If so, this information must be disclosed in writing to the SCFVS at the time of application and thereafter any time contact is initiated. Documentation must be maintained in the volunteer's file.

c. Exceptions: Volunteers may accept collect phone calls at their agency/group administrative office if they have prior authorization from the Deputy Commissioner for Program Services and if the organization's policy is to accept collect phone calls from incarcerated individuals. Volunteers may not accept phone calls on their cell phones or at their place of residence.

At all times, the nature of the calls must be directly related to areas of service provided by the volunteer agency/group for the Department and calls may not be of a personal nature. The volunteer agency/group authorization must be so noted in the appropriate program proposal file. Volunteers are to be advised that all incarcerated individual telephone conversations are subject to electronic monitoring by Department personnel (see Directive #4423, "Incarcerated Individual Telephone Calls").

- d. In certain specific limited circumstances, as approved by the Deputy Commissioner for Program Services, some programs will be permitted to provide service via select remote methods following the approved Remote Services Guidelines. Any determination of exemption to Remote Services Guidelines would be at the discretion of the Deputy Commissioner for Program Services.
- e. Volunteers are required to notify the SCFVS if they know and/or recognize any incarcerated individual at any of NYS DOCCS' facilities.

VI. PROCEDURES

- A. <u>Volunteer Program Development</u>: Prior to a new regular ongoing or occasional volunteer program being initiated or modified at any facility, a Program Proposal must be submitted and approved. The most current Program Proposal form can be accessed through the DOCCS Training Folder.
- B. <u>Job Descriptions</u>: A volunteer job description is to be developed before the volunteer begins work. The job description must be developed by the appropriate VSS, and should include the following:
 - 1. A general description of the duties that the volunteer will perform.
 - 2. Meaningful, appropriate, and measurable work activities.
 - 3. Location of the activity and frequency.
 - 4. Name of the VSS.
 - 5. Name of the program's Key Volunteer.

Volunteer job descriptions shall be signed and agreed upon by the volunteer and the VSS, and a signed copy of the job description shall be on file in the Volunteer Services Office. Volunteers may only serve in the job as described in the file description. Any volunteer who wishes to serve in another job must be approved as described above.

C. Registration Procedures: Depending on the level of volunteer services provided, the volunteer applicant will complete a registration process that may consist of a volunteer application, Standards of Conduct and All Applicable Policies, a criminal history check, fingerprinting, references, a screening interview, TB test, and ID card. Refer to Form #4750B, which defines the registration procedures required for the level of volunteer activity.

a. All volunteer applicants will complete a registration process that will consist of Form #MFVS3080, Part I, "Volunteer Information," and if applicable, Part II, "Criminal History" (see exceptions for government employees with Peace or Police Officer Status on Form #4750B), as well as a review and acknowledgement of Form #4750C and all applicable policies. Volunteers providing professional services should also attach documentation verifying that they are certified or qualified to do so.

NOTE: If an applicant indicates that they have charges currently pending, the application process should be suspended until such time as a disposition of the charges is reached.

Sections I and II of Form #MFVS3080 must be scanned and filed electronically in a folder with the volunteer's name and facility, created and saved in the shared drive (e.g., Doe, John – Fishkill CF). Then, utilizing the information provided by the volunteer, enter the information into the following link: http://criminalhistoryrequest/. When the Criminal History Check Detail, Criminal History Response, and if applicable, Prospective are received, a copy must be filed in the volunteer's electronic folder.

- b. Part III, "Facility Executive Review," of <u>Form #MFVS3080</u> will be completed by staff and approvals will be obtained from the Superintendent, DSP, and Deputy Superintendent for Security (DSS) prior to the volunteer beginning their service.
- c. Part IV, "Acknowledgement of Orientation," of <u>Form #MFVS3080</u> will be reviewed for completeness, acknowledged, and signed by the volunteer and SCFVS who conducted the volunteer orientation.
- 2. Screening Interview: Upon receipt of a volunteer application, prospective volunteers who wish to serve on more than an occasional basis will be screened through an interview process by the appropriate VSS. <u>Form #MFVS3082</u> will be used as a guide and will be completed during the interview, and a copy shall be placed in the volunteer's file as a reference in approving or disapproving the prospective volunteer's application.

3. Criminal History

- a. A criminal history check will be completed by the Department's Employee Investigation Unit (EIU) on volunteer applicants, including regular ongoing, occasional, and one-time volunteers (see exceptions on <u>Form #4750B</u>). This process will begin when EIU receives the criminal history request.
- For regular ongoing volunteers, fingerprints will be taken by the facility ID
 Officer as outlined in Directive #2216, "Fingerprinting/Criminal History Inquiry –
 New Employees and Contractors."

The completed fingerprint cards will then be forwarded to EIU for processing. The following address is to be utilized:

NYS DOCCS Employee Investigation Unit State Office Campus 1220 Washington Avenue Albany, NY 12226

If fingerprints are rejected for any reason, the SCFVS will be notified.

c. Applicants for regular ongoing status with derogatory information reported on the EIU criminal history check must wait for the return of their fingerprint report and Superintendent's approval before beginning their volunteer service.

The RCCVS receives criminal history background information on each volunteer whenever derogatory information is noted. Occasionally these documents reveal no convictions, active warrants, detainers, orders of protection, open cases, unclear arrest dispositions or other information that would disqualify the individual. In these cases, the RCCVS will provide documentation to the SCFVS indicating that there are no convictions to report and that they may proceed with registration process without waiting for the fingerprint results.

Those persons with no derogatory information may begin their volunteer assignment before their fingerprint report is returned.

One-time and occasional applicants with derogatory information will not require fingerprints. EIU checks must be updated on an annual basis.

NOTE: If the criminal history and/or fingerprint reports show a discrepancy in what the volunteer has disclosed, this may result in the volunteer's non-approval, suspension, and/or termination.

- d. EIU must receive the completed fingerprint card within 30 days of conducting a criminal history check. If the fingerprint card is not received within this timeframe, EIU will notify the Director of Ministerial, Family and Volunteer Services on a monthly basis and volunteer assignments may be suspended until the fingerprint card is received.
- 4. Health Services Screening/Vaccinations
 - a. TB Testing: Facilities must strictly adhere to the Department's Division of Health Services guidelines for TB testing for volunteers, as follows:
 - (1) Any volunteer who will be in any facility once per month or more, and/or have eight hours or more of continuous incarcerated individual/staff contact, must be skin tested.
 - (2) Any volunteer who wishes to be skin tested may be tested.
 - (3) Arrangements for skin testing of volunteers will be made through the facility medical department and/or the facility Volunteer Services Contact Person.

- (4) Volunteers may be tested by their own physicians, if they desire, just as employees may, according to Directive #4322, "Tuberculosis Control Program."
- b. Hepatitis B Vaccine: Anyone who would have reasonable likelihood of exposure to blood or body fluids would be eligible for the vaccine. All persons receiving the vaccine must have bloodborne pathogens training through the facility where they are volunteering before starting the vaccine series of three injections.
- 5. All volunteer gate clearances should be submitted in a timely manner to allow sufficient time for the DSP, SCFVS, or the VSCP to verify that the individuals are properly registered volunteers.
- 6. Emergency contact information for each volunteer shall be kept on file in the Watch Commander's Office.

D. Volunteer Orientation

If approved, the regular ongoing volunteer will be scheduled to attend a volunteer orientation conducted by the facility SCFVS and a member of the security staff. This orientation will cover the "Standards of Conduct for Volunteers," Form #4750C, all applicable policies, benefits for volunteers, security issues, health-related issues, and facility-specific information prior to the beginning of the volunteer activity.

For occasional, one-time, or government agency volunteers who have Peace or Police Officer status, the orientation will be appropriate to the level of services provided and can be conducted by the DOCCS staff member supervising the event. Facilities will ensure that all regular ongoing volunteers participate in a refresher orientation every 24 months.

E. Training

- 1. Job-specific training for the volunteer activity will be given by the volunteer's VSS and may or may not include a tour of the facility grounds.
- 2. Volunteers will be required to attend periodic in-service training consistent with their level of incarcerated individual contact. Those identified by the SCFVS as providing services more than nine hours per week will be required to attend trainings offered by the Department. Specific training requirements will be determined by the Director of Ministerial, Family and Volunteer Services after consultation with the Director of the Training Academy (see Form #4750D, "Required Training for Various Categories of Volunteers").
- 3. All non-Departmental and contracted employees that are assigned to work within DOCCS facilities must adhere to the guidelines outlined in the NYS DOCCS Training Manual, Subject 7.150. This policy requires that contracted volunteers complete a standardized 16-hour orientation prior to beginning their service. This orientation is in addition to the volunteer orientation provided by the SCFVS.

VII. PROGRAM MONITORING AND EVALUATION

A. Supervising, monitoring, evaluating, and reporting on volunteers and volunteer programs is a joint effort among VSSs, the facility VSCPS, and the SCFVS, with oversight provided by the DSP and the RCCVS.

- The DSP, with final approval of the Superintendent, will determine the VSS for a 1. program.
- Program Proposals will be sent to the appropriate Central Office Division Director, by the Superintendent or designee, for each new program. The DSP will ensure that a file is maintained that includes up-to-date Program Proposals for all regular and occasional volunteer programs, a current list of volunteers, and the names of the Key Volunteers and VSSs. The SCFVS will assist the DSP in maintaining this information.
- Annual Program Evaluations, using Form #MFVS3085, will be completed by the facility SCFVS, with copies sent to the facility DSP and RCCVS. The Annual Program Evaluation affords a necessary tool for evaluating the effectiveness of a program as well as providing a provision for volunteers to contribute suggestions regarding the establishment of policy and procedure for the volunteer services program.
- Staff must be aware of their responsibility to supervise volunteers and the programs that are assigned/accepted in their area, and that they must provide the facility Office of Volunteer Services with statistical data on volunteers involved in the program/service.
- C. The decision regarding which facility staff person will have responsibility for supervising a volunteer or volunteer program rests with the facility Superintendent or designee.
- D. During periods of facility emergencies, volunteer activity may be suspended or limited. It will be the responsibility of the DSP to ensure that volunteers are notified in a timely manner of any change in the program schedule to avoid any unnecessary travel of the volunteers.
- To ensure that Volunteer Services programs meet the needs of the incarcerated individuals and facilities, each program will be evaluated on an annual basis by the facility SCFVS, utilizing Form #MFVS3085. A copy of this evaluation must be made available to the facility DSP and to the RCCVS.
- VIII. STATUS OF VOLUNTEERS: Volunteers should be made to feel that they are a part of the facility staff and should be treated with courtesy and respect. Any allegations of the mistreatment of volunteers should be reported immediately through the appropriate channels. Staff encouragement and acceptance of volunteers will help to keep the volunteers motivated, and productive, and will nurture a teamwork mentality. Vital to any volunteer program is the recognition of the contribution, achievements, and the status of the volunteer as a quasi-staff person.

As set forth in Section V, the Department recognizes and registers different types of volunteers. A volunteer who provides service to the Department without receiving compensation from any source is, by law, entitled to the benefits set forth in subsections VIII-A-1 and VIII-A-2. All volunteers are to be treated the same with respect to subsection VIII-A-

- 3. Those registered as volunteers who receive compensation for their service from some source should direct inquiries regarding Workers' Compensation Law benefits to the Workers' Compensation Board, Bureau of Compliance, and inquiries concerning defense and indemnification to the Office of the Attorney General.
- Insurance Coverage/Indemnification
 - Workers' Compensation for Volunteers

- a. All volunteers who are registered, oriented, screened for TB, and approved as a volunteer by the facility Superintendent are covered for injuries related to their volunteer work by Workers' Compensation Benefits.
 - Staff who are supervising volunteers, must report any injuries to volunteers, in accordance with Directive #4065, "Reporting Injuries and Occupational Illnesses," and Directive #2208B, "Workers' Compensation Benefits (Non-Uniformed Employees)."
- b. It should be noted that a volunteer who has been fully registered and approved is eligible for Workers' Compensation, whether the service is performed in the community or in a correctional facility. Contract volunteers who receive an hourly rate for their work will be covered by the contract agency. The job description must indicate the location, within the facility, where the services are to be provided.
- 2. Indemnification Coverage for Volunteers
 - a. DOCCS volunteers have been afforded protection from financial loss arising out of a civil action.
 - b. The law provides that the State would save harmless and indemnify volunteers of the Department from financial loss arising out of a judgment in any civil action by reason of a claim of alleged negligence or other act of such person participating in a Volunteer Services program, provided that the damages were sustained while such person was acting in the discharge of their duties and within the scope of such duties, and the claim did not result from the willful and wrongful act or gross negligence of such person (Public Officers Law, Section 17).
 - c. The law applies to volunteers authorized to participate in a Volunteer Services program, provided such volunteer gives notice of such claim upon themselves within five days of service of such claim upon themselves (Public Officers Law, Section 17). Individuals who have insurance policies that would cover them for claims arising pursuant to the volunteer programs must first use such policies before the State will defend and/or indemnify them.
- 3. Diversity Management: All volunteers who are registered and approved are afforded equal opportunity protection in accordance with Directive #2601, "Equal Employment Opportunity and Diversity & Inclusion Program," based on NYS Executive Order No. 6.
- B. <u>Volunteer and Volunteer Staff Supervisor Recognition</u>: Certificates of Appreciation will be awarded to volunteers at an annual recognition ceremony, or at some other suitable occasion. VSSs will also be recognized because their work with volunteers often exceeds their normal full-time duties. Employee evaluations shall reflect this extra effort.
- C. <u>Meals</u>: Volunteers who provide service in a facility and whose volunteer assignment extends over an established meal period or is a minimum of four hours of continuous service may be furnished a meal from the facility Mess Hall. The free meal shall be the same as that provided to the incarcerated population.

Volunteers, with permission from the Superintendent or designee, may be allowed to bring food (i.e., dietary needs/restrictions) for their own consumption.

IX. VOLUNTEER MISCONDUCT

A. During volunteer orientation, volunteers must be informed that a formal suspension/dismissal procedure exists and what constitutes grounds for suspension and/or dismissal. Grounds for suspension/dismissal of volunteers are usually based on a violation of the "Standards of Conduct for Volunteers," Form #4750C, and all applicable policies, and the nature of such a violation.

For other instances of misconduct, volunteers will receive counseling by the SCFVS. This counseling session/meeting will be documented by the SCFVS, signed by all parties present, and a copy will be placed in the volunteer's file. This documentation should include all pertinent information regarding the matter and should also include information relative to the outcome of the meeting. A copy of this information shall be forwarded to the appropriate RCCVS.

If suspension/dismissal is necessary, the process to be used is set forth below. It is mandatory that proper documentation be available if dismissal is contemplated.

B. Procedure for Suspension/Dismissal

- Should anyone have a sound reason to question a volunteer's actions, the witnessing party shall report, in writing, all relevant information to the facility SCFVS. A written report will be prepared by the SCFVS and submitted to the facility Superintendent or designee for review and action. Such action may consist of limiting, postponing, or suspending the services of the volunteer. The SCFVS will be consulted during this review. A determination may be made by the facility Superintendent and/or the Director of Ministerial, Family and Volunteer Services to consult with and/or include the Department's Office of Special Investigations depending on the nature of the violation. Only the Superintendent or Acting Superintendent has the authority to suspend a volunteer.
- 2. A volunteer who has been suspended must be notified, in writing, by the facility Superintendent within five days. This letter must inform the volunteer of the allegations, the date of the temporary suspension, and that volunteer activity in all facilities has been suspended pending an investigation. If the volunteer is scheduled to volunteer during the week of the suspension, the SCFVS must call the volunteer to notify them of the suspension, so as to avoid the volunteer arriving at the facility.
- A copy of the suspension letter, as well as documentation regarding the violation, and a copy of the volunteer's file will be forwarded to the appropriate RCCVS, who will review the contents for completeness and then review the case with the Assistant Director of Family and Volunteer Services.
- 4. The RCCVS will discuss the case with the facility Superintendent, who must approve of the final disposition. If there is not a consensus on the final disposition, the Superintendent will consult with the Supervising Superintendent and the Director of Ministerial, Family and Volunteer Services.

- 5. If the severity of the volunteer's violation warrants Statewide termination, the RCCVS will recommend to the Assistant Director that the volunteer's activity in all DOCCS facilities be terminated. Final decision rests with the Deputy Commissioner for Program Services.
- 6. The volunteer must receive written notification of the decision directly from the RCCVS. Copies of all relevant paperwork must be forwarded to the Office of Ministerial, Family and Volunteer Services in Central Office.
- 7. The letter must state that the volunteer may appeal, in writing, to the Deputy Commissioner for Program Services within 30 days of receipt of the letter. The Deputy Commissioner for Program Services will then issue a final determination to the volunteer within 30 days of receipt of the appeal.
- X. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT FOR VOLUNTEERS AND APPLICABLE POLICIES: The Standards of Conduct for Volunteers are subject to change by the Deputy Commissioner for Program Services. It will be the facility's responsibility to ensure that all active volunteers have been oriented to the new standards, and to ensure that they are followed.
 - A. <u>Standards of Conduct for Volunteers and All Applicable Policies</u>: The "Standards of Conduct for Volunteers," <u>Form #4750C</u>, and all applicable policies will be used by all facilities for regular ongoing, occasional, one-time only, and remote service volunteers. Standards and policies must be given as part of the registration process for all volunteers and will be presented by staff in a positive manner. Each standard should be explained and clarified so that the volunteer will understand what constitutes good security practices relative to contraband and appropriate type of behavior.
 - B. <u>Documentation</u>: The volunteer will acknowledge, in writing, that they have in fact been presented with the following policies, understands them, and intends to comply. The signed <u>Form #MFVS3087</u>, "Acknowledgement of 'Standards of Conduct for Volunteers' and All Applicable Policies," must be maintained in the volunteer's file.
 - 1. Form #4750C, "Standards of Conduct for Volunteers."
 - 2. Policy on the Prevention of Sexual Abuse of Incarcerated Individuals and a copy of Directive #4027.
 - 3. Policy Statement on Sexual Harassment in the Workplace.
 - 4. Non-Discrimination in Employment Based on Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity.
 - 5. Writing Letters of Recommendation for Incarcerated Individuals.
 - 6. Language Access.
 - 7. Suicide Prevention Memorandum.
 - 8. Wrist Watches/Devices Memorandum.
 - 9. Contraband Smartglasses Memorandum.
 - 10. List of Allowable Items.
 - C. <u>New Policies</u>: Volunteers will be informed of new relevant policies that are issued and if requested, provide written acknowledgement of said policy.

Directive #4900, "Security in Gate Areas/Secure Posts"
contains confidential security information and is not available through this medium.

NEW Corrections and		TITLE		NO. 4936
STATE	Community Supervision	Search of DOCCS Employees		DATE 05/13/2022
	DIRECTIVE			
SUPERSEDES		DISTRIBUTION	PAGES	DATE LAST REVISED
DIR #493	36 Dtd. 07/30/21	Α	PAGE 1 OF 10	
REFERENCES (Include bu NYS Penal Law; D #4937, #4938; Em	Directives #2115, #3083, #4900, #4910,	APPROVING AUTHORITY	Nove	5

I. PURPOSE: The presence of contraband within a Department workplace or a correctional facility and its possibility of subsequent possession and/or use by incarcerated individuals threatens the security of the facility; it endangers the safety of incarcerated individuals, employees, visitors, and the community.

Introducing or possessing contraband in a facility is a violation of the New York Penal Law and Department of Corrections and Community Supervision (DOCCS) Rules and Regulations and violators are to be prosecuted. Employees attempting to introduce contraband or who are in possession of contraband shall be subject to both prosecution and disciplinary action.

Sound security operations require routine, periodic, and special searches of all persons entering the workplace. This directive outlines the security procedures to be followed in searching employees while on Department property, which may include workspaces. See also Directive #4900, "Security in Gate Areas/Secure Posts," and Directive #4910, "Control of & Search for Contraband."

II. GUIDELINES: Section 2.30 of the Department's Employees' Manual states:

Any employee on Department property or while on duty is subject to search, which may include workspaces. All employees will routinely be subjected to a metal detector search and packages and other articles carried into the workplace may be routinely inspected. Pat or strip searches may be conducted. Any article that may not be properly taken into or out of the facility may be confiscated and turned over to the Officer in Charge for appropriate disposition. Refusal by an employee to submit to a search is insubordination, shall be cause to refuse them entry to the facility or workplace, and may constitute grounds for disciplinary action. The Department's policy and procedures concerning such searches are contained in this directive.

Among the many procedures that may be taken to ensure safe and secure facilities and workplaces is the procedure that permits the searching of employees at any time they are on Department property. The need for this procedure has been demonstrated by those occasions when employees have been found to possess contraband within the facilities or in the workplace.

It must also be recognized that all employees shall be treated fairly and in a dignified manner on those occasions when a search is required. Screening staff must be respectful of a person's belongings. Belongings and contents should not be handled carelessly, or in a manner that attracts unnecessary attention. Screening staff shall not make unnecessary or inappropriate comments regarding a person's belongings that might cause embarrassment. Additionally, no incarcerated individuals will be allowed to remain in the area, or allowed to view screening procedures, when electronic searches of staff are being conducted.

- A. <u>Metal Detector Searches</u>: All employees will be subject to metal detector searches upon entering a correctional facility in accordance with Directive #4900 (walk-through, Cellsense, and/or handheld). On a daily basis, the Superintendent or designee (rank of Captain or above) will determine in what manner this will occur, ranging from a random predetermined number of employees entering the facility that will change each shift and day, up to and including all staff entering that facility. The determination will be documented in the Watch Commander's Logbook. It is the responsibility of the staff person being searched to clear the metal detector. Metal detector searches must be supervised by a Sergeant or higher.
 - 1. It is expected that the vast majority of staff persons will clear the metal detection screening with minimal delay. However, if the metal detector alerts and the alerting area is isolated and cannot be resolved, a handheld metal detector will be utilized. In the case of a staff person who may be wearing an underwire bra, the use of a handheld metal detector should resolve the alert to the satisfaction of the supervisor without the need for additional steps. However, if this particular alert or any other alert cannot be resolved to satisfaction of the supervisor, they will immediately notify the Watch Commander who in turn will notify the Superintendent, Deputy Superintendent for Security (DSS), or Officer of the Day (OD) to determine the next appropriate step or if additional processing procedures are necessary.
 - 2. Staff persons who have medical conditions that do not allow them to clear or pass through a walk-through metal detector device will be issued a pass by the Superintendent, upon receipt of administratively acceptable medical documentation indicating their medical condition and the extent of the restriction(s) regarding their ability to clear electronic screening. The purpose of the medical alert pass is not to relieve the entering person of the responsibility to clear the staff entrance and search procedure, but to provide an opportunity for the person and the administration to tailor the procedure to that person's unique medical situation. Screening staff conducting searches of entering staff persons with medical passes must still be reasonably assured that no prohibited objects are entering the facility.

NOTE: Board of Parole member, Central Office staff and other Department employees entering any correctional facility for official business will be processed as facility employees, they will be subject to metal detector and periodic pat frisk searches under the same manner as prescribed in subsection II-A & B.

3. Packages, containers, and other articles carried into the facility shall also be searched/frisked upon entrance and exit of the facility and may be subject to x-ray. NOTE: Packages, containers, and other articles containing documents and equipment carried by members of the Board of Parole and their Court Reporters, Central Office staff, the Office of Special Investigations, the Bureau of Labor Relations in connection with an official investigation or labor relations cases, and the facility Executive team may be visually inspected, however, frisking staff are prohibited from reading or reviewing the content of such documents and shall not view the contents of the file folders without the approval of the Commissioner.

- B. Pat Frisk Searches: The Superintendent will order periodic pat frisk searches of any employee to be conducted in a designated area. Pat frisk searches shall be supervised by a uniformed supervisor of the rank of Sergeant or above or a non-uniformed employee of a higher pay grade than the employee being searched. The Officer conducting the pat frisk search must be of the same gender as the employee being searched unless exigent circumstances require a cross-gender pat frisk. A transgender employee shall be frisked by a staff member whose gender is consistent with the searched employee's gender identity. A gender nonconforming/gender nonbinary person may identify their preference for the gender of the frisking employee. The Watch Commander or above, after a discussion with the employee, will determine who should conduct a pat frisk of an individual who identifies as transgender or gender nonconforming/gender nonbinary. In addition, the Watch Commander may approve a pat frisk of an employee based on suspicion or inability to clear the metal detector.
 - Religious headwear is not considered part of a person's belongings, but rather their person. Random pat frisks should not ordinarily include removal and inspection of religious headwear. Except in emergencies, prior authorization is required by the Watch Commander or above to search the religious headwear of an employee.
 - 2. General Procedures: When pat frisking an employee, the process shall be conducted with the employee standing, with their arms extended out to either side, parallel to the ground (not against the wall unless necessary). Mats should be utilized for the person to stand on, upon removal of shoes, particularly during inclement weather. If any item is confiscated from an employee during the frisk the item must be treated as evidence, until it is determined by the highest-ranking supervisor overseeing the search that the item(s) confiscated does not constitute evidence.
 - a. In the event of discovering an employee's medication, this will be handled with reasonable care taking into consideration the sensitive nature of such items and will be addressed in an area offering privacy.
 - b. The employee shall be required to remove their hat, coat, and any extra layer of clothing, which should be placed on a table, chair, or other available location.
 - c. The employee should also be provided a place to sit down for the removal of their shoes.

NOTE: All outwear garments and shoes shall also be frisked.

- d. When the screener is frisking the upper clothed thigh area of the employee, they shall use a downward motion along the leg, frisking all sides of the leg to the bottom and use care not to pat the clothed genital area of the person. This procedure will be repeated on the remaining side.
- e. Frisk of a Female Chest Area (includes Transgender Female staff): The screening employee shall use the back and side of the hand only and use care not to pat the clothed nipple area of the female employee. This procedure will be repeated on the remaining side.

- C. <u>Search of Personal Belongings</u>: Bags, containers, other personal property and their contents shall be thoroughly searched in such a way as not to lose, damage, or destroy any articles. Particular care should be shown when searching food items. Before searching food items, a change of gloves is required. Employees shall be permitted to carry, on their person or in their clear bags, those items that are outlined in Attachment A, "Staff Allowable Items List," of this directive.
 - If any item is confiscated from an employee during the search, it will be treated as evidence until it is otherwise determined not to constitute evidence. If medication is in question, the employee shall be taken to a private area to discuss.
- D. <u>Use of Canine (K-9) to Search Staff, Work Areas, and Personal Belongings</u>: In addition to the above, the Department may deploy K-9s to sniff employees, their work areas, and their personal belongings for the presence of illegal drugs and contraband. A positive indication by a K-9 provides reasonable cause to conduct a further search of the person, place, or item. The Department shall use passive indication K-9s (those that indicate by sitting in front of or staring at the location) for the sniffing of people.

E. Strip Searches

- Definition: For purposes of this directive, a strip search is defined as an inspection of the naked body of the person, and an examination of the person's clothes and personal effects.
- 2. A strip search of a facility employee may only be conducted on the order of the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel, or designee (not below Deputy Counsel).
- 3. Reasonable Suspicion Definition: Reasonable suspicion must be directed at a specific person and based on specific articulable facts and rational inferences.
- 4. Factors Include: The nature of the tip or information, the reliability of an informant, the degree of corroboration, and other facts contributing to suspicion or lack thereof. Information that contraband is being introduced into a correctional facility, including confidential information, provided either by reliable and credible sources or which is independently corroborated.
 - Other factors include, but are not limited to, observation, technological equipment, K-9 indicators, or pat frisk detection that contraband is present under the clothing of an employee. The Department will not strip search an employee based solely upon the information of incarcerated individuals or anonymous sources unless the information is corroborated by reliable and credible sources or objective evidence.
 - Vague, unspecified, rudimentary hunches, or intuitive feelings, absent any of the additional factors listed above, do not meet the Reasonable Suspicion standard.
- 5. Requesting Authorization: The Superintendent, Officer of the Day, Deputy Commissioner, Deputy Commissioner/Chief of Investigations, Assistant Commissioner/Assistant Chief of Investigations, or Director of Operations from the Office of Special Investigations, or higher-ranking authority shall document the basis for their request to strip search an employee on State property. The requestor shall communicate all such information to the Office of Counsel, Deputy Commissioner and Counsel.

The Deputy Commissioner and Counsel will then make a determination as to whether sufficient facts have established reasonable suspicion, as defined in subsection II-E-3. The Communications Control Center shall be contacted in order to assist in locating the Deputy Commissioner or designee during hours when such offices are closed. The Deputy Commissioner and Counsel, or designee's determination shall be documented.

6. Authorization: When the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel determines reasonable suspicion exists, their name shall be noted in the search request documentation. If the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel determines that reasonable suspicion does not exist to order a strip search, no strip search will occur. No documentation of the request may be kept in the employee's personnel records.

Any employee who refuses to submit to an authorized strip search shall be notified that they may be subject to adverse administrative action up to and including suspension of duty without pay.

The following illustrations will provide guidance in determining whether there is reasonable suspicion in order to approve an employee strip search.

- a. <u>Illustration #1</u>: Superintendent Doe receives information from two Correction Officers that employee Roe is bringing contraband into the correctional facility on a certain day. One of the Officers has given the Superintendent reliable information in the past. There is reasonable suspicion, and the Superintendent may request the employee's strip search.
- b. <u>Illustration #2</u>: Incarcerated individual Jones informs Superintendent Doe that employee Roe is helping incarcerated individual Smith to escape from the facility. Another employee confirms this with additional information that Roe is bringing in drugs and a hacksaw on a certain date. There is reasonable suspicion, and the Superintendent may request the employee's strip search.
- c. <u>Illustration #3</u>: Superintendent Doe receives general rumors from uniformed supervisors and another reliable source that employee Roe was bringing contraband into the facility. Further, the Superintendent received the same general information from an incarcerated individual who has provided reliable information in the past at another facility. Finally, contraband had been discovered at the facility. There is reasonable suspicion, and the Superintendent may request the employee's strip search.
- d. <u>Illustration #4</u>: Incarcerated individual Jones gives information to the Department that employee Roe was bringing drugs into the facility. There is no evidence that this incarcerated individual had a history of providing reliable information in the past. Further, there is no corroborating evidence. These circumstances do not support reasonable suspicion, and the Superintendent should not request the employee's strip search.
- e. <u>Illustration #5</u>: A search of an employee seeking entry to a correctional facility leads the searching employee to conclude that contraband is likely concealed beneath the clothing. There is reasonable suspicion, and the Superintendent may request the employee's strip search.

- 7. Procedure: A sequential approach to searching an employee's person is expected. An employee should be ordered to surrender any contraband on their person as a first step. Then, a pat frisk, metal detector, or other technological equipment search is appropriate. If the search indicates the presence of contraband beneath the clothing, the employee shall be ordered to surrender any item believed or suspected of being contraband concealed beneath their clothing. Once a strip search of an employee has been authorized, the employee will be informed that they may have a union representative present if they wish.
- Strip searches must be supervised by a uniformed supervisor having at least the rank of Lieutenant, or at a minimum security facility where it may be a Sergeant if they are the ranking supervisor on duty.
- 9. No more than one searching employee may be present in addition to the supervising employee. Additional staff presence must be approved by the Superintendent, Acting Superintendent, or OD and must be documented as provided in subsection II-E-12.
 - Employees who are strip searched will be treated in a professional manner. Such strip searches shall be conducted in areas which are clean and heated, have appropriate floor covering on which to stand, and have a space, not on the floor, for the employee's clothing to be placed.
- 10. The employee to be searched shall be escorted to the appropriate private area and kept under direct visual observation until commencement of the search.
 - The supervising and searching employees must be of the same gender as the employee being searched (refer to subsection II-B for additional information). If a ranking female security supervisor is not available, the Superintendent shall designate a female employee (holding a higher grade than the employee being searched) to be present during the search.
- 11. An employee may refuse to submit to a strip search, but such refusal shall be a cause to deny the employee's entry into the facility and shall be grounds for disciplinary action.
 - The employee being searched may request the presence of a witness or union representative. If the employee being searched is a non-uniformed employee, every effort should be made to have the employee's supervisor present during the search if the employee so requests.
 - When on Department property not associated with a correctional facility (e.g., Central Office, satellite offices, regional parole offices, and other Department properties), pat or strip searches may be conducted only on the order of the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel or designee (not below Deputy Counsel).
 - The search area on other Department properties will be designated by the assigned Deputy Commissioner, and in correctional facilities, will be designated by the Superintendent or Acting Superintendent.
- 12. Report of Strip Search: Subsequent to the search, the employee will be provided with a report that will include date of search, time of day, location, identification of searching employees, supervising employee, representative or witness present, and the results of the search. This statement report shall be delivered to the employee and, upon the employee's request, the union representative no later than the end of the workday following the day the strip search was conducted.

A copy of this statement shall be forwarded to the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel as well as the Deputy Commissioner with oversight of the responsible service unit (security, health, administration, programs, Community Supervision, etc.).

Prohibited Strip Searches and Frisks

- Random strip searches are not allowed.
 - Definition: For purposes of this directive, a random strip search is a strip search conducted for security or investigatory reasons when there has not been a proper request made, based on reasonable suspicion, to the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel, and/or the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel has not approved the strip search.
 - Random strip searches are not to be ordered. There must be a finding of reasonable suspicion, followed by a formal request to the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel, and approval from the Deputy Commissioner and Counsel that an individual employee was attempting to introduce contraband into the correctional facility prior to ordering the strip search of an employee.
- 2. Strip frisks are not permitted without a search warrant.
 - Definition: For purposes of this directive, a strip frisk is defined as a search including a visual examination of the anal and genital areas of the person searched.
 - No employee shall be strip frisked, unless the Department has first secured a search warrant for that person to be strip frisked.

III. ITEMS FACILITY STAFF ARE ALLOWED TO CARRY INTO A CORRECTIONAL **FACILITY**

- All employees will be required to use one clear bag (approximate dimensions 11" wide by 7" deep by 10" tall, with a zipper pouch in front) as distributed by the Department.
- All employees may alternatively purchase an optional clear bag, at their own expense, not to exceed 1,521 cubic inches, with black nylon edging and one black carry strap/handle, with a zippered pouch in front, consistent with Agency-level Labor Management Agreements.
- C. All staff will be permitted to identify their issued or optional clear bag with their name placed on the bottom of the bag only. The bag will not be altered in any manner, including but not limited to, any items affixed/placed, inscribed, sewn on, etc., to the clear bag.
- Uniformed Security Services Unit staff (correction officers, sergeants) working in a Shock Incarceration Correctional Facility holding a bid job or relief bid of "Drill Instructor" will continue to be permitted to utilize the duffel style clear bag issued by the Department.
- Staff members requiring the use or carry of personal medical devices/supplies of a private sensitive nature, or female employees who are carrying feminine hygiene products shall be permitted to carry said items in a pouch that is clear on one side and solid on the other. This bag will fit into the clear bag, as outlined in subsection III-C. which will allow for appropriate inspection, while maintaining privacy from a distance. Staff shall be permitted to carry, on their person, or in their clear bags, those items that are outlined on Attachment A, "Staff Allowable Items List."

STAFF ALLOWABLE ITEMS LIST

- Clear employer-provided bag or optional larger bag as specified in subsections III-B & D in this directive. All other bag(s) are prohibited except for staff, whose job assignment requires carrying documents into and/or out of the facility may be permitted to carry a briefcase, file box, or folders as approved by the Superintendent.
- Uniformed staff are permitted the items as listed in Directive #3083, "Uniform/Equipment Issue and Appearance"
- Employees required to wear Department issued clothing are permitted one change of clothing to be secured in a locker not accessible by incarcerated individuals
- Wallet/badge case with personal documents (e.g., identification cards, credit cards, driver's license, bank cards, etc.)
- Cash, no more than \$100, for food, ordered from an outside business, vending machines, and/or employee mess dining room, if equipped
- Vehicle/personal keys
- 2 pens and 2 pencils
- Calendar book
- Notepad
- Pad folio (1)
- Highlighter (1)
- Key clip(s)
- Food/drinks (reasonable amounts as determined by the Watch Commander or above)
 - Uncooked eggs, meats, poultry, and fish are PROHIBITED
 - Unprepared frozen food is PROHIBITED
 - Microwaveable prepared meals are permitted
 - Packaged in the original packaging, if store bought, or in see-through clear plastic containers
 - Metal and glass containers are prohibited with the exception of a vacuum-insulated mug
 - All consumable canned goods (e.g., beverages/soda, food that can be heated); however, once opened, shall be removed by the individual who brought it into the facility at the conclusion of their tour of duty.
 - o Tea
 - o Ground coffee and coffee filters
 - Coffee cream
 - Sugar
- Plastic eating utensils
- Cold pack
- Elastic bandage or self-adhesive bandage wrap (1)
- Wrist wrap (1)
- Adhesive bandage (6)
- Antibiotic ointment (small tube)
- Adult incontinence product
- · Ceramic coffee mug
- Feminine hygiene products
- Tissues
- Toothbrush

- Toothpaste (travel size only)
- Breath mints (1) retail package
- One (1) lip balm
- Lotion (travel size only)
- Hand sanitizer (travel size only)
- Sunscreen (travel size only)
- · Plastic comb or brush
- Raincoat
- Sweater
- Change of shoes
- · Winter jacket, scarf, gloves, hat/earmuffs, facemask, and boots
- Umbrella (no golf size or pointed end)
- Watch (PROHIBITED: Internet, Cellular, Bluetooth, or Wi-Fi capable/enabled)
- Rings
- Earrings (no hoop or dangling, stud only)
- Bracelet(s)
- Necklace(s)
- Small compact mirror
- Eyeglasses (2 pairs) and non-mirrored sunglasses (1 pair)
- Contact lenses
- Contact lenses solution (1 Bottle)
- · Hearing aids/batteries
- Tobacco products (maximum of one pack, can, pouch, or factory container of tobacco product)
- Electronic Cigarettes are PROHIBITED
- Pack of matches or lighter (2)
- Employees may carry a personally-owned knife with a folding blade (blade not to exceed 2" in length). The knife will be carried in such a way that it is out of view. Under no circumstances will a knife be carried in a sheath/pouch exposed. Combination tools, such as a Leatherman tool are not authorized.
- Medication In accordance with 7.13 of the Employees' Manual:
 - Controlled substances are not permitted to be possessed, stored, or consumed in any facility, except upon valid order or prescription from a qualified physician.
 Under no circumstances shall incarcerated individuals have access to opiates, narcotics, or other substances producing similar affects.
 - Employees who must, on orders of a physician, take medication during working hours shall bring into the institution only the dosage which they will be required to take during their tour of duty (including Epi-pens and Diabetic supplies). See Directive #2115, "Drug Tests for Employees;" #4937, "Urinalysis Testing;" and #4938, "Contraband Drug Testing."
 - Over the Counter (OTC) medications that are readily identifiable are allowed into the facility; only the dosage which is required for tour of duty is allowed.
- Approved items for Shock Incarceration Drill Instructors:
 - o 1 Department issued clear duffel bag
 - o 1 clear personal hygiene bag (must fit inside of clear duffel bag)
 - o 1 shampoo (trial size)
 - 1 soap/body wash (travel size)

- o 1 deodorant (non-aerosol)
- 1 towel (bath size)
- o 1 washcloth
- o 1 hair dryer (by approved gate clearance to be secured in locker)
- 1 clothes hanger (plastic)
- Athletic supporter
- Department issued physical training attire (e.g., 1 sweatshirt, 1 sweatpants, 1 t-shirt, 1 pair of shorts)
- o Sneakers

Personal items not listed above, such as personal affects for an office, may be approved by the facility Superintendent and placed on a gate pass with a copy of such approval available for review.

Absent the aforementioned provision regarding personal items and the approval process, no items other than those listed above shall be allowed to be brought into the facility without the express written approval of the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner for Correctional Facilities.

NEW YORK STATE Community Supervision	Subject: 7.150 Orientation Program for Per Diem and Non- Departmental Employees		
TRAINING MANUAL	Supersedes:	Page:	
	04-15-2022	1 of 4	
Authorized By:	Reference:	Date:	
MI MILLS	ACI-1C-23, 1D-17	08-19-2022	

I. PURPOSE:

To establish a standardized 16-hour orientation program for persons working within the New York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision but are not employed by DOCCS.

II APPLICABILITY:

Personnel who are assigned work within DOCCS as either a per diem or non-departmental employee, for example: Office of Mental Health (OMH) and agency-contracted employees. This policy is not applicable to construction contractors.

III POLICY:

All staff to whom this subject applies will receive a 16-hour orientation program. The orientation program will be administered during the employee's first two days at the facility. Orientation for volunteers is covered under Directive #4750, Section V, D. The facility will determine what additional training is necessary for each individual.

IV PROCEDURE:

The Facility Training Contact will oversee the orientation of non-departmental and per diem employees. This person will be responsible for arranging the necessary staff to be available for escorting and explaining the functions of the various areas of the facility.

The new non-departmental or per diem employee will meet with the Facility Training Contact and/or appropriate escorting staff member. The Training Contact will ensure the employee receives orientation information on the areas designated on the 16-Hour Orientation Sign-Off Sheet (Attachment A).

The staff member who delivers the information will sign in the appropriate area on the Orientation Sign-Off Sheet to verify orientation in the specific topic.

The training escort will act as a guide for the new, non-departmental employee. The introduction to security will be divided into two components, which will include a tour of the facility as well as an orientation of the informational topics outlined on the Orientation Sign-Off Sheet. If there is security information specific to a facility, it should be included in the tour and/or as a topic to be covered.

Subject: 7.150	Topic:	Date:	Page
Orientation Program for Per Diem	Pre-Service Orientation and In-		-
and Non-Departmental Employees	Service Familiarization Programs	08-19-2022	2 of 4

An escort must remain with the new employee for the duration of the tour and be prepared to give a verbal overview of each area. Positive dialogue between the guide and employee should be encouraged, allowing for questions and comments throughout the tour. Each question will be treated with courtesy and professionalism. It is important to remember that this is the first opportunity for the person to see the facility in operation and individual reactions will vary.

Facility staff members shall be introduced at the guide's discretion to supplement the tour and provide information related to the different areas of the facility. The tour must be preplanned and timed, always beginning in the same area and ending in a room conducive for the presentation of the outlined topics.

Following the tour, the guide will share information regarding important security topics such as those listed above, and basic dos and don'ts. This presentation should include handouts, safety fact sheets, and relevant facility materials, which can be used as a reference in the future.

This segment also provides the opportunity to address the disciplinary process, explain the security hierarchy in a facility, and explain the respect for the chain of command by the security workforce. Like the tour, presentation of the topic materials, handouts, and videos should be well planned and timed.

At the conclusion of the second day, the new non-departmental employee will sign the Orientation Sign-Off Sheet acknowledging receipt of 16 hours of orientation. This form will be forwarded to the Training Contact for filing.

Per diem employees must also sign two Report of Training Forms (RTFs) – a general RTF for the full 16 hours of orientation (code 27012) and the specific RTF for the Sexual Abuse Prevention and Response Introduction/Transfer Video (17093). The forms will be submitted together as separate hours will not be credited for the video. A copy of the signed RTF-PREA must be forwarded to the appropriate PREA Compliance Manager.

To ensure the per-diem employee orientation is properly recorded in KHRT, the Training Contact must also forward a copy of the appropriate, completed orientation form along with the completed, **original** RTFs to:

- Facilities Regional Training Office
- Community Supervision Regional Training Coordinator
- Central Office and Board of Parole Albany Training Academy

	Subject: 7.150	Topic:	Date:	Page
١	Orientation Program for Per Diem	Pre-Service Orientation and In-		
l	and Non-Departmental Employees	Service Familiarization Programs	08-19-2022	3 of 4

ATTACHMENT A ORIENTATION SIGN-OFF FORM Non-Departmental and Per Diem Employees

	_CORRECTIONAL FACILITY
PRINT NAME:	
DATE ASSIGNED	TITLE/RANK
Introduction to the Superintendent	
Introduction to the Executive Team	
Clean Air Policy/ Smoking	
Sexual Harassment Policy	
Sexual Victimization Directive 4027	
PREA Introduction/Transfer Training (Requires separate RTF, course code 17093)	
RED Book Synopsis	
Maintaining Professional Boundaries Video	
Parking Regulations	
Personal Alarm System	
Accreditation	
Facility Tour (Security Operations)	
Overview and Tour of Programs with DSP	
Training Bulletins	****
Tool and Key Control	
Control of Contraband	

Subject: 7.150	Topic:	Date:	Page
Drientation Program for Per Diem	Pre-Service Orientation and	In-	J
nd Non-Departmental Employees	Service Familiarization Progra		4 of
Counties Flammahles and Tavis	_		
Caustics, Flammables, and Toxics			
Facility Emergency Procedures			
Stormwater Management Plan (if applicable)		X+1	
OER Privacy and Security of Hea Information Video	lth		
NOTE: If the facility does not have	e a particular Department listed	write "N/A." Addition	onal
lines have been added to accomm			
I completed the 16-Hour Orientati	on Brogram on		
r completed the 10-Hour Orientati	Dat	Δ	
I agree to act in accordance with tand/or informed of.		-	rided
Non-Departmental/Per Diem Emp Sign	loyee:	Print Name	
Escort/Guide: Sign		Print Name	

Page

ATTACHMENT J

Facilities Map

